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Commission Reardon: Good Morning. Thank you. On behalf of Governor Andrew
Cuomo and the Labor Department, | welcome you to today’s Hearing on Subminimum
Wage in New York State. The Department of Labor works on behalf of both workers
and businesses. We provide income support to workers who lose their jobs and we
ensure the employees receive proper pay and work in safe environments. We help
businesses find and maintain skilled workforce and we provide them with no cost
services designed to help them thrive in New York’s growing economy. One of
Governor Cuomo’s 2018 State of the State proposals directed me to evaluate a series of
hearings possibility of ending the minimum wage tip credits in New York State. In some
work places such as carwashes and restaurants where wages and tips are generally both
low, a worker’s income can rely upon their tips. These tips meant as a reward for good
service instead serve as a critical wage subsidy that brings worker’s wages up to just the
legally mandated minimum wage. This system disproportionately impacts women and
minorities and prevents some workers are coming forward to voice concerns fearing
retaliation.

Governor Cuomo has directed this agency to ensure that no workers are more susceptible
to exploitation because they rely on tips to survive. This is the first of seven hearings to
solicit public comment on how best to address potentially eliminating the minimum wage
tip credit. Before regulations are formally advanced related to the subminimum wage, we
want to hear from workers about how the subminimum wage impacts their ability to earn
a fair wage as it relates to tips and to raise a family. We want to hear from businesses
and other industry professionals how the subminimum wage impacts, how you run your
business and interact with your workers. We understand that we are talking about
potentially changing rules that have been in place for decades and that is why we are here
today, to ensure that any actions are fair and well thought out. Through these hearings,
we are asking for input about the scope of the problem and the potential scope of our
solutions including any hardships created by the subminimum wage, reasons for and
ramifications of eliminating the subminimum wage in your industry, and
recommendations for the elimination timeline should we move in that direction and
complicating factors.

Let me also draw an important distinction. This Hearing is about eliminating the
subminimum wage. It is not about eliminating tipping. We fully support tipping and
worker’s rights to earn those tips here in New York State, in fact when the Federal
Government looks to attack worker’s tips in New York State we will continue to protect
your tips.

I’d like to, silence please, I’d like to introduce members of our panel listening today.
Mario Musolino, Executive Deputy Commissioner, Natale Cary, Deputy Commission of
Administration and Chief Financial Officer, and | am Roberta Reardon, the
Commissioner of Labor here in New York State. Testimony will be strictly limited to
three minutes to allow as many people as possible to testify. You will get a yellow
warning light as 30 seconds are left. It will show red when your time is up. Before we
begin, | want to thank everyone in this room for taking the time to participate in today’s
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Hearings and for the insight that you all can provide in helping us address these very
important issues. This is an important meeting for all of us. Our first speaker today,
Sylvia Allegretto, Labor Economist from UC Berkeley.

Sylvia Allegretto: Thank you Commissioner Reardon and New York State Department
of Labor allowing me to take this opportunity. My name is Sylvia Allegretto. I’m an
economist and Chair of the Center on Wage and Employment Dynamics at Berkeley.
Much of my research is focused on minimum and subminimum wages and | have written
extensively in peer reviewed academic journals. | come to this profession rather late.
Prior to becoming an, prior to being an economist, |1 was a food and cocktail server for
seven years. So while this testimony relies on my research, it is also influenced by my
experience. There is a commonly held misconception that restaurant wait staff,
bartenders, car wash attendants, nail salon workers are generally young, new entrants into
the labor force looking for some extra money, but the reality in New York is that the
average tip worker is 35 years old, the majority are women, one-third are parents, and
they typically earn around $11.00 an hour which includes tips. Tip workers also have
extremely low rates of workplace benefits such as paid sick leave, vacation pay, or
retirement plans, which leaves many workers and their families to navigate difficult
circumstances. The lack of benefits actually means that workers have to make that much
more to be able to afford even a sick day. Tip workers are required by law to earn at least
the regular minimum wage but there is evidence that regulators, workers, and owners that
monitoring and enforcing the two-tiered system is at best confusing, difficult and
expensive. At its worse, it simply isn’t done. Often the owner is on the worker to
approach their boss when they have been shorted pay and likely uncomfortable situation.
The report that | released today lays out these issues and may more including instances of
poverty, reliance on public subsidies, sexual harassment, and a sizeable pay inequity due
to gender. Can New York adopt a one wage plus tip system? The question has been
answered in Alaska, California, Minnesota, Montana, Nevada, Oregon, and Washington
State. The seven states that currently do not allow for a subminimum wage policy. In
these states, tip workers are paid a full minimum wage plus tips. Interestingly,
employment growth in the food service restaurant has out paced private sector
employment growth by an average of 5% over the last five years in these seven states.
Clearly, there are profitable business models in no low and high subminimum wage
states. It is true that some workers do well, but keep in mind that across New York there
are countless more diners, 24-hour truck stops and low to moderately priced restaurants
than there are high priced eateries. At the very least, a single wage policy ensures that a
tip is a tip and is a gratuity and as most customers intent it to be and not a wage subsidy
for business owner. An effective policy would ideally raise pay and overall job quality
for this workforce. | believe a thoughtful phase-out of the subminimum wage in New
York is feasible.

Commission Reardon: Thank you very much. Richard Zoob, Chief Operating Officer
for Dinosaur BBQ, and before you start, you can sit down. I’'m going to ask everybody in
the room, I’m sorry we didn’t catch this earlier, any of you who have signs on long poles,
you must remove the sign from the pole per the Police. We cannot have any of those
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poles in the room. So if you have a sign on a pole, please take it off now, otherwise,
we’re going to have to come and take the sign. Thank you.

Richard Zoob: My name is actually Joshua. If I could start over, | apologize. My name
is Joshua Chasen (sounds like), | have a e-mail here that | am from Richard Zoob, that |
am trading places with him as far as testimony. Thank you, | just wanted to reflect that,
thank you very much. Esteem members of the Department of Labor, my name is Joshua
Chasen. | am a co-founder and Vice President of the Restaurant Worker’s of America.
RWA is a national non-profit organization that we launched in January. Our organization
was born out of our victory for Tip Credit Reinstatement in my home state of Maine. In
Maine, we lost our tip credit in 2016, through a ballot initiative and through a Grassroots
effort by tipped workers, our legislature righted this injustice. When injustice becomes
law, resistance becomes duty. We formed a Facebook group called the Restaurant
Workers of Maine and began speaking to our Legislatures. After much hard work, our
legislatures listened to the people who are most intimately impacted by this law change
and sought out to help us. After a very extensive e-mail and phone campaign, the longest
public hearing is our states history, we garnered bipartisan support and ultimately won
reinstatement. Very few of us in Maine had as appetite for one unfair wage, so we
followed the money behind the ballot initiative and learned that Restaurant Opportunities
Center or ROC was alleging to speak for our industry and claiming to be a worker
advocacy group. Many of us wondered what ROCs end game was. My research led me
to quotes like, ultimately this system of tipping needs to go, and we want non-union
restaurant industry to feel threatened by the union or by us, both said by Saru Jayaraman
and ROC’s President. Last month in St. Paul, a ROC owner, said eliminating the tip
credit is the first step to getting to no tips. ROC talks the phrase Tips on Top but they
regularly speak out of both sides of their mouths. We’ve learned that ROC and Saru are
seeking to up and redesign and ultimately destroy the restaurant industry. The real
Restaurant Workers of America want to save the tip credit and help save our industry. |
come before you today as a bartender and server of 17 years and an advocate for the
hardworking people of my industry. The RWA stands with the brethren of our Empire
State in hopes to preserve their tip credit. In the coming weeks and months, this
distinguished panel will hear from many tip workers sharing with you what we love about
our industry. They will quell the notion that we need to be saved or that we have any
interest in this false raise in this proposal. While we recognize that this proposal may not
end tipping, with ROC spending $80,000 last year to lobby Governor Cuomo, it would be
a natural conclusion that the people lobbying folks like yourselves are seeking to do just
that; end tipping entirely. This testimony, the testimony provided here today and across
the state will show that we love our jobs and they help us earn a great living and provide
for our families. We will show that we often look at our coworkers like family and treat
each other as such. A huge swath of bartenders and servers are college educated and we
choose to do this because we love the freedom and flexibility of our schedules, we like
the social environment and most importantly, we make great money. With the tip credit
we are already guaranteed the minimum wage while maintaining the opportunity to earn
much more than that in tips. If the tip credit is eliminated, we will see enormous
unintended consequences rolling across the state. Please, | beg of you, do not eliminate
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the tip credit in full service restaurants. Eliminating the tip credit will kill jobs and cut
workers earnings off at the knees. | certainly hope that New York will follow Maine’s
lead that this is a horrible idea.

Commissioner Reardon: Amanda, Amanda Fugazy. Amanda Fugazy. Amanda Fugazy,
last chance, Amanda Fugazy. Okay, Walter Barrientos from Make the Road.

Walter Barrientos: Good Morning. My name is Walter Barrientos and I’'m the Long
Island Organizing Director for Make the Road New York. We are a membership based
organization representing about 22,000 members across down state New York including
Long Island and Westchester. We represent about 1,200 member here on Long Island;
many of them immigrants just like me. | stand here before you because | am part of a
delegation of members and staff who have turned out here today to highlight the need for
ensuring that all workers regardless of industry or where they work in the workplace are
guaranteed the same minimum wage. | am not testifying here today only in my
professional capacity, | should mention that when | was growing up here on Long Island,
I was a tipped worker at a restaurant in my last year of college and I almost didn’t make it
because the restaurant owner where | worked refused to give us our tips and when I had
to change my schedule for a final project, she actually told me that I didn’t have a job
anymore and did not give me the last three weeks of my pay just before | graduated. | am
also speaking...

Commissioner Reardon: The Fire Marshall has told us you must immediately sit down or
leave the room. He will close this event down if you don’t get out of the aisles. So if
there is a seat, please take it. If not, you’re going to have to wait outside until a seat is
available.

Male: There’s seats out here, whatever. Maybe we should propone

Commissioner Reardon: There is no postponing this Hearing, so please take the seats or
we will have to clear the room.

Male: Raise your hand if you have a seat.

Commissioner Reardon: We’re going to start again, thank you very much. Sorry for the
confusion.

Walter Barrientos: Thank you. I also stand here because my father-in-law is a tip worker
at a parking garage in New York City. He is 64 years old and he makes about $8.00 an
hour. The rest is suppose to come from tipping but because he’s an older man and
they’re actually forcing him to retire, they keep giving him the night shift when no one
comes to park and no one leaves a tip and that is why I’m here, not just speaking about
our members, my father-in-law also happens to be a Make The Road member. But those
are the cases that we are representing and why we are saying that it is fair and important
that the state reverse its course and make sure that minimum wage is guaranteed for all
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workers. Let’s remember, and I think it’s, you can see it in the audience here today that
inequities in the workforce were created and are a legacy of slavery in this country
because I mentioned this I think it’s important. It is the same reason, it is the same reason
why nannies and cooks were not guaranteed the same wage because they were domestic
workers. That’s why they were excluded from the work, from the labor standards and so
we are only here today asking the state and Governor Cuomo to ensure that we catch up
to the 21 Century and that we really insure that we have racial equity in the workplace
and that we stop these legacies of exploitation of workers of color because it’s not the
workers in the front all the time, it’s often the people who are washing the dishes, the
people who are cleaning the floors at the end.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Josselyn Paniagua. Josselyn Paniagua.

Josselyn Paniagua: (Interpreter) Good Morning. My name is Josselyn Paniagua. | live
here on Long Island and have been working in the restaurant industry as a waitress for
about a year and | am a member of Make the Road New York. | work at a small
restaurant near my home four days a week. Everyday | work | work a minimum of 11
hours and sometimes when it’s really busy, I go up to 12% hours per shift. They pay me
$50.00 a day as a waitress and like | said earlier, but | also have to wash dishes, and on
the good days | go home with $120.00 but on the bad days | go home with $80.00 after
almost a 12 hour shift.

Interpreter: Can we request silence please?

Josselyn Paniagua: (Interpreter) Unfortunately surviving with less than the minimum
wage for someone like me affects me a lot. There have been many times when | have felt
very desperate and anxious because it has been very impossible for me to come up with
the money for rent and pay my phone and provide for my family in El Salvador. At the
same time, | also have to pay a cab which is an extra expense but it’s necessary for
workers like me because there’s no, there’s limited public transportation here on Long
Island and it’s also encumbering. Can we request silence please?

Commissioner Reardon: As a reminder, speakers who are using an interpreter have six
minutes. | hit the three minute timer at the beginning that’s why it reset, I apologize.

Interpreter: Thank you.

Josselyn Paniagua: (Interpreter) And it makes it really hard for me to attend English
classes. As any other young person, | have dreams and aspirations and | want to get a
better job and more training but with this salary it is impossible. On top of that on days
when | have felt sick, | have to take think two or three times before | call out sick because
they don’t pay me for my sick days and when I don’t go to work, they don’t pay me. In
recent days...
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Commissioner Reardon: | want everyone to respect other speakers in this room. You are
all going to have a chance to talk and if you disrespect the people at the table, they will in
turn disrespect you.

Josselyn Paniagua: (Interpreter) In recent days when it snowed, they closed the business
for multiple days and they didn’t pay us. I have a lot of strengths and abilities and I
deserve to be paid the minimum wage, a fair minimum wage by my employer plus any
tips that are voluntary from the people who serve me, who | serve. | want the same as my
other workers in California, Nevada, and Alaska. And she also added it’s just fair that
she is a waitress and she is washing dishes and she deserves the minimum wage just like
everyone else at the place, at the worksite.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Dulce Hernandez. Dulce Hernandez.

Female: Will Dulce Hernandez, Alexandra Sanjuan, Jose Noel Membreno, Gabriela
Andrade, and Cristobal Guiterrez please make your way down to the left hand, to the
seats that are marked reserved for speakers?

Commissioner Reardon: And again, | just want to remind everybody, this is a very hot
topic for everybody in this room, respectfully, and I understand the emotions are running
high but you want respect when you are testifying. | hope you will give respect to the
other people as well. Thank you.

Dulce Hernandez: (Interpreter) Good Morning. My name is Dulce Hernandez and | live
here on Long Island and I’ve been working in the restaurant industry for 11 years as a
waitress. There have been good days when I’ve made enough money but there have been
many bad days when I have not even made the minimum wage and it has impacted me
greatly. I’'m a mother and I have to pay all the expenses for me and my child. And there
were times when I just felt really desperate because I didn’t know how I was going to
feed my child or how | was going to pay the other expenses and it has affected me greatly
because | have aspirations and dreams as a young person in finding a better job and more
training but having to work these kinds of jobs doesn’t allow me the flexibility to do that.
It’s impossible with this salary. Unfortunately under the current minimum wage structure
workers like me are forced to find jobs, a second job or a third job to be able to
complement their income, and like me other people have had to struggle with sometimes
in this same industry and other jobs despite our strengths and abilities. This is why we’re
fighting to ensure that all of us will have the same wage regardless of where we work in
our business and ensuring we have the same protections as workers in California, in
Alaska, and other states. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Alexandra Sanjuan.
Alexandra Sanjuan: Good Morning. My name is Alexandra Sanjuan and I’'m a member

of Make the Road New York. | had been working in the restaurant industry for 20 years.
As a single mother of two children, I know the struggle that you have when you work as
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a tipped worker. During all this time, that | was the only economic support of my family,
| understand what it means when you go to work and you do not make any tips or you
been sent home because business areas slow or not working for a steady salary makes
very hard to bring food to your table because tips are not mandatory. They are just
suggested to the client that is the difference when you work in another industry even if it
is in the minimum wage, you know how much you count on. This industry is very
unstable. You don’t even know if they are going to let you work on your schedule sheet
because that depends on busy the restaurant is. For many years, | used to live in Queens
and | work in restaurants on Long Island. I had to pay for my babysitter, transportation,
and many times | was sent home earlier without making any money, not even to pay for
my train, and in other cases, | was sent home earlier when | was able to maybe wait or
work only one of the tables and go home maybe with $10.00 in tips, and we have to take
also into consideration that many places, they not even pay the subminimum wage to the
workers and some restaurants, they not even pay any house pay, they just work for tips.
The restaurant industry is a very hard job. We cannot rely on the tips we are supposed to
make because you never know if you are going to make them or not. When you go to
work, you don’t know how much you are going to make and sometimes you are suppose
to work four or five days in a week but really you’re only really working maybe one or
two. | used to pay $200.00 a week for my babysitter and sometimes I not even make
enough money to pay for that because | went to work and | was sent home and | ended
working maybe one day a week. We are not asking to cut the tips, what I’m asking is we
should make the minimum wage that is fair for everybody and the tips that they are
basing your salary is something you should make extra. You should not be counting with
these tips and I really believe in one fair minimum wage for all. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Jose Noel Membreno.

Jose Noel Membreno: Hello, I will be speaking on behalf of Jose Noel from Make the
Road. My name is Nick Sieven (sounds like) and I’'m a member of the Long Island
Progressive Coalition, LIPC is a Grassroots organization fighting for social, racial,
economic, and environmental justice and | stand before you today as a former tip worker.
As a college student, you often try to find work that accommodates a hectic schedule;
therefore, it was easy to find myself delivering food for a local takeout restaurant on
Friday and Saturday nights. Even though | worked prime delivery hours, I still only left a
15 hour weekend with only around $50.00 in tips. Fortunately, the owners valued the
work of the other delivery drivers and myself and we each received the minimum wage
along with our tips. But this experience is unique for many of those working in the
restaurant industry. For example, as a server at a local catering hall, my sister was
subject to our tip credit laws. She would often enter a long shift at work not knowing
whether or not she would be leaving with a salary that would cover her expenses. On top
of her already uncertain salary, her supervisors where also taking an unfair and illegal
portion of her and her coworker’s earnings. This story is all too familiar for those who
rely on tips to make ends meet. These workers are mostly women and immigrants whose
earnings depend on the generosity of others. Not only are these individuals from
marginalized populations, they are the hardest workers that | have ever met. My former



Subminimum Wage Event Page 8 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

coworkers worked long shifts, weekends, and holidays to make sure that they can provide
for their families. We cannot allow our laws to value tip workers less than other workers
in New York. If my former employers are able to maintain a small takeout restaurant for
nearly a decade while paying each worker the minimum wage, other employers can do
that as well. Not only do | support this as a former tip worker, but my organization, Long
Island Progressive Coalitions supports this as well. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Gabriela Andrade

Gabriela Andrade: Good Morning. I’m here to speak in the name Jose Hector Melina
(sounds like) one of our members and also a worker. Good Morning. My name is Jose
Hector Melina. I’ve been living here in Long Island for the past years. I have been
working in the industry, of the restaurant industry for 11 years. | work for a well, very
big known chain of restaurants, around five hours or six hours a day for $7.50 an hour.
On a good day | make $80.00 to $90.00 a day. On a bad day I just make $40.00 or
$50.00. If there’s not enough people or clients there, I’'m sent home which means | just
go for no reason and many of us are undocumented so we just do not speak. We are very
afraid. Unfortunately surviving with the minimum wage right now has been very tough.
Sometimes | feel very desperate because | could barely pay my rent and pay my cell
phone bill. I also need to pay a taxi or a ride because | cannot drive which is an extra
expense. So | feel like | deserve the fair minimum wage as the other workers do, not just
here in other states, but my fellow workers in other industries. Thank you very much.

Commissioner Reardon: and Cristobal Guiterrez.
Cristobal Guiterrez. Yep
Commissioner Readron Yep, oh sorry.

Cristobal Guiterrez: Good Morning. My name is Cristobal Guiterrez and I'm a Legal
Advocate of Make the Road in the Workplace Justice Legal Team. Thank you for the
opportunity to share this testimony and we commend Commissioner Reardon for holding
these Hearings. In 2016, New York joined a progressive group of states and local
governments to increase the minimum wage to $15.00 an hour, yet tip workers were left
behind and remain second-class workers with wage rates substantially below their
colleagues in other industries. Tipped workers are overwhelming female, younger, and
tend to have lower levels of education in their overall workforce. The subminimum wage
and the tip allowance under the current law leads to tremendous impediments in
enforcing the minimum wage laws and results in substantial wage theft. When our
clients asked what seems to be a simple question, what is the minimum wage, the answer
is it depends as you know on what industry they are work, on how many employees are in
the company, where in the state it is. On top of that you have to add the tip credit and
allowance, there are maximums and minimums; they are different depending on the
industry on the average tip the worker makes in a week. Employers rarely verify that
tipped workers are earning enough tips each week to meet the minimum wage. Low
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wage tip workers, many of whom have limited English, should not bear the burden of
ensuring their employers are paying them at the proper rate. And the tip wage rates are
not just convoluted to immigrant workers; they are also convoluted for employers who
have a hard time following the rules and end up covering mistakes or knowing violations
once a worker has come forward and filed claims. Many of our clients, particularly
immigrant women working in nail salons, many of whom are in this room, report that
they are told to sign a sheet where the tip amount is left blank to be completed by the
employer later in case of an investigation of the Department of Labor or a lawsuit.
Minimum labor standards are in place to address power differentials between employers
and workers to prohibit employers from imposing the most draconian conditions on
workers by creating a subcategory of workers who are not paid the full minimum wage
and rely on tips from customers to make a living where making as an extension in the law
itself that is unequal. We strongly recommend that you eliminate this inequality. We ask
you to level the playing field for low wage workers by raising the minimum wage base
for tip workers to the minimum full wage.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Javier Guzman.

Female: Next five speakers, Javier Guzman, Heather Apolo, James Mallios,
Beverly Neufeld, and Rose Weiss.

Commission Reardon: Javier Guzman. Thank you.

Javier Guzman: Good Morning. My name is Javier Guzman. I’'m a former union
organizer for the UFCW, the United Food and Commercial Worker’s Union. During
many years | organized many workers in Long Island and | saw first hand how some
employers will have workers that earn tips abuse the obsolete way to pay those workers.
Many low income, mostly immigrant folks do not have a clear sense on how much they
have to get paid below the minimum wage. Some employers go far below from what the
law says and do not compensate the worker when they do not make enough. Some
workers do not pay those workers overtime arguing that tip workers do not qualify for
overtime pay. Some restaurants and bars force their employees to buy uniforms and pay
for the dry cleaners arguing that they make enough money in tips to pay for it. | saw
some car wash companies who shared the worker’s tips with all employees including
management. | think that minimum wage for all workers is fair because workers make
efforts to provide an excellent service to earn that gratuity. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Heather Apolo. Heather Apolo. Last chance. Heather Apolo.
Okay. James Mallios.

James Mallios: Hi, my name is James Mallios. I’'m the managing partner of some
restaurants in New York City and in South Hampton on Long Island. I’m here to tell you
that I stand for ROC proposition that a higher wage is not incompatible with profitability
for business. The current bifurcated system is broken and is not sustainable for New
York State. First it’s unjust for workers and it doesn’t help business and I'1l tell you why.



Subminimum Wage Event Page 10 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

For workers first, we pay someone less, a subminimum wage contributes to the idea that
the customer can determine their wage, at least the harassment, bad behavior, demeanor.
I mean, I’m the boss, | throw people out when | get spoken to in a really shitty way. | can
only imagine what happens to other people and | know what happens to other people.
Second, it is not fair to the workers because when you go, how many times do you go to a
restaurant and they say, Oh the food was great, | tip more. Well, the cook who did that
doesn’t share in that tip. The person that you are tipping in that clean bathroom, the
porter, doesn’t share in that tip and that bifurcated system is broken and erroneous with
the regulations that you’re familiar with. Now why can restaurants work with a higher
wage and why is it sustainable? First, we have a labor crisis in our business, in our work.
We face threats to the new economy and the current system is not sustainable. My e-mail
address is jamesmallios@nyc.com. I’ll gladly send you my spreadsheets. But paying
people less is not a solution to a labor crisis. In fact, the solution to a labor crisis being
better conditions and higher pay, | mean not just Wall St, | mean they are doing just fine
and they get paid quite a bit, so what we have found is that we pay higher than market
wages at our restaurants. We have very little turnaround, like less than 10% and the cost
of turnover is extremely high if you see the annexed studies, so we have found that our
profitability because we keep people and can pay them more when we can above market
is very good in terms of the standards of our business. We are able to expand. Second,
the reason why, sorry, excuse me, | was trying not to read from notes but | need a second.
The other thing is that this bifurcated system where you have some workers being paid
less and really unfairly than other workers in minimum wage, it contributes to this idea
that we can’t run like any other business. Every other business is allowed to run where
you have seniority and merit and factors that go into pay that we somehow stand apart
from and that’s not a way to run a business. Look, you’re hearing from a lot of people
who have lived this everyday. I live this too, like I’'m a small business owner. It’s not
like, I pay for my kids that like to go to school and all this stuff, I really believe that if
you change the way the labor to make everyone have a fair, one fair minimum wage,
which I support with all my heart and allow then the workers to share those tips equally
amongst themselves, we can win. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Beverly Neufeld. Beverly Neufeld. Last change, oh, there you
are.

Beverly Neufeld: Substituting for Beverly Neufeld, my name is Suzanne Adeli (sounds
like). I’m a life long resident of Westchester County and come from a family of several
restaurant workers, restaurant mangers, and restaurant owners. Today, I’m a representing
an organization called the Food Chain Worker’s Alliance. The Alliance is a national
alliance representing over 300,000 food workers nationwide with tens of thousands in
New York State, a large sector of workforce is employed in the restaurant industry and
rely on tips to survive. Despite the fact that this is one of the largest and the fastest
growing sectors in the state, the restaurant industry in New York offers some of the states
lowest paid jobs. As a result, the tip workers experience poverty at nearly twice the rate
of the general workforce and over 40% earn an annual income below twice the federal
poverty level, barely enough to meet basic expenses. We are aware that in seven US
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States, tipped workers receive equal wages. Each of these states has maintained a
thriving restaurant industry and strong employment. Poverty rates in one fair wage state
are 10% lower than in New York. In one fair wage state, full service restaurants opened
and operated at a rate nearly double that of New York. Tip wage workers in one fair
wage state report making as much or more in tips than tip wage workers in New York.
Restaurant employment rates are equal or higher in one fair wage state. Relying on tips
to survive also makes workers vulnerable to exploitation by employers and consumers
especially women, immigrants, and people of color. With One Fair Wage New York has
the opportunity to protect workers from wage theft and discrimination and to protect
women from workplace harassment. The restaurant and hospitality industry is the single
largest source of sexual harassment claims to the Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission. Tipped workers are vulnerable to sexual harassment because they are
forced to rely on customers for their income. The seven states where there is equal pay
for tipped workers have half the rate of sexual harassment. The restaurant industry in all
of the industries with a major, with a majority of tipped workforce contribute
tremendously to our economies. With equal pay, they industries will continue to thrive
while improving the quality of life for their workers, their communities, and their
potential consumer base. We urge you to move towards One Fair Wage for all workers.
Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Rose Weiss.

Female: The next five testifiers will be: Jacqueline Anne Ross, Elvis Diaz, Valencia
Howard, Darrel Sukhdeo, and Winston Wright.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.

Rose Weiss: Thank you Commissioner for the opportunity to share these concerns. My
name is Rose Weiss. I live in Astoria, New York, and I’ve been a Chef in the restaurant
industry for 14 years. I’m in favor of raising the tipped minimum wage to the regular
minimum wage. Though a back-of-house non-tipped worker my entire career, | see
clearly that raising the current tip minimum wage is an essential step towards minimizing
harassment for both front and back of house workers and professionalizing our industry
overall. Due to my front-of-house coworker’s reliance on tips for a full salary, I have
witnessed how many are compelled to tolerate inappropriate behavior on the job
including sexual harassment. My server and bartender sisters, especially my front-of-
house sisters of color tolerate whatever a customer says or does to them including
derogatory language and unwanted touching on a regular basis. This endurance is seen as
just to come with the territory of serving food and drinks. Anything that happens in this
industry to any employee affects the whole industry and all employees. Sadly the
phenomenon of normalized harassment doesn’t stay in the dining room. When anyone in
the kitchen or dining room is subjected to harassing behavior or any behavior, all workers
are at risk of that behavior. The tip subminimum wage ensures a tolerance for
harassment of servant staff and such behavior is in turn normalized for all workers and
management throughout the restaurant. Any restaurant worker knows this. | have been
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one of the few women workers in the kitchen in most kitchens | worked. As a young
cook, in one of New York City favorite Michelin starred restaurants, | was excluded from
the game my fellow line cooks played of tapping each other on the testicles when they
past by each others work station. | was not expected to care and years later as a su chef, |
was repeatedly undermined by gender discrimination and lewd remarks about my body as
| asserted myself as a manager. These are all forms of work and all of us, those who mop
floors or serve tables or cook food. In the great State of New York in 2018, all of us
deserved to be paid for all of our work at least a regular minimum wage. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Elvis Diaz. Elvis Diaz. Do | have Elvis Diaz? No?
Valencia Howard. I want to remind you, you’re all going to have your chance to speak.
Valencia Howard. Oh, okay, Elvis.

Elvis Diaz: (Interpreter) Victoria Hernandez from SEPA Mujer will be taking Elvis’s
turn and I will be interpreting. Okay, never mind. Hi, my name is Victoria Hernandez. |
live in Long Island since 13 years ago and been working before in restaurant. | think it
was a very good job to be in a restaurant working and | be a waitress to making cash and
a better life, but I was wrong. At the time, | was making like $5.15 an hour plus tips.
Today | make like maybe $60.00 or $70.00, and | work like maybe 12 hours or less. It
was the same amount and discriminated because I was, I’'m Spanish, I speak Spanish and
I don’t have a very good English but I try to do better now. So that’s why I decided to
speak in English. There was a lot of sexual harassment, discrimination for the color
because you are Spanish. And we here now, I’m not working no more in the restaurants
but I’'m here with the women and the person that are working the restaurants now. We’re
not eliminated the tips. We want a fair salary plus tips. It’s not only the restaurant and
waitress, it’s the nail salons, it’s the car wash, where stole the tips and the owners from
these business, they stole the tips too, to pay their salaries. I think it’s time to stop this
and get a better salary so it’s not only for me, it’s for our families. So I have two kids,
they are going to grow up soon and they are going to work. What’s the first work they
are going to find? Be a waitress because it’s more money and I don’t want my kids to be
treated like the way we are treated now. So fairer salary, | think. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Valencia Howard. Valencia Howard.

Valencia Howard: (Interpreter) No, Amy will be speaking in turn of Valencia. My
name is Amy Sanchez, I’m here to speak on behalf of Maria Santos, a colleague. Hi, my
name is Maria. I am to this country 20 years ago. I’ve been working in delis and my
salary has always been very low since 2006. In one of the delis that | worked, they did
not pay us on time and sometimes they would just give us $100.00 or $200.00, just
enough to not complain and months went by. I looked for other jobs just to survive. But
| have to keep working there to get paid so | spent eight months until that deli was closed
and they did not pay me everything. 1 did not do anything because at that time | did not
know my rights then they offered me a job again and made promises of payments but
they ended up paying me very low. In the winter, | only worked four or five hours a day
and with that | cannot survive. | searched again but | stayed there. After awhile they
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offered me work in another deli where the tips were distributed amongst them and they
did not give them to us. Here I lived a lot of abuse. | worked overtime which they did
not pay me and on top of that stole my tips. They also abused me psychologically. They
treated me with bad words calling us useless and other insults I can’t say. The last year
was very hard for me because they even made me cry saying that if they did not want to,
they did not pay me. One does not leave work for fear or not being able to find another
job. But I got out of there and it was the best decision | made. That is why | am now
joining here for a fair salary since one works and makes great efforts to be recognized.
Now I realize that | am not the only one who supports this decision. | unite to defend our
rights also because we live in an area where everything is very expensive. That is why
we need to be respected in the workplace. Thank you, this is my humble story.

Commissioner Reardon: Darrel Sukhdeo.

Darrel Sujhdeo: Good Afternoon Madam Commissioner and team members of the panel.
| want to begin by saying thank you very much for coming here to listen to us today. It
turns out that the tip minimum wage is a legacy from slavery that has been used to
suppress workers rights in an effort to line the buckets of restaurant owners and
managers. We have no objection to owners and managers making money; what we
object to is making money at the expense of the employees. | a product of Indentureship
also known as Indian slavery. Most of you have not even heard this term before but let
me give you a quick lesson. When slavery was abolished, a scheme was devised to hire
Indian farm workers on five-year Indentureship contracts promising payment and
paradise. When these workers arrived in the colonies, they were placed in the same
barrack-type housing that the slaves occupied. Previously they were also treated exactly
the same as the slaves, being whipped, raped, families were separated, there was a
tremendous amount of wage theft, and they were severely underpaid. | worked in ethnic
restaurants where there was very little unknown tipping simply because it’s not part of
the ethnic culture. | had to go home with the subminimum wage only, at that time
$150.00 a week. Needless to say, | was too poor to be considered low-income. We need
to add a category called Below Income. Restaurant employees have to rely on food
stamps to feed their family. How can this be fair when owners are making tens of
millions in profits? Although Indentureship was abolished in 1917, today | feel like my
forefathers and mothers because I’'m being treated just like my predecessors 175 years
ago, and so are my colleagues in the restaurant industry. The restaurant industry says
they want to staff regulate and they will do the right thing, but for more than a 100 years
they have not done anything to help the workers. They treat employees like indentured
servants which theft is still happening everyday to them. When the employer does not
pay the difference between the minimum, the subminimum and the living wage, that is
wage theft and that is happening everyday. You don’t have to take my word for it, you
can subpoena the wage records or the payroll records of these restaurants owners and see
for yourself the level of wage theft that is going on. Owners and managers across the
industry, in fact have hundreds of stories from New York State and from across the
nation about men and women who face sexual harassment, age discrimination, racial
discrimination, intelligence bias, and many more atrocities within the restaurant industry.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.
Darrel Sujhdeo: Once again, thank you.
Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Winston Wright.

Female: Next testifiers are: Jamnie Thomas, Catherine Barnett, Nadia Lagos, Wendy
Joa, and Christina VVan der Veen.

Commissioner Reardon: Do | have Winston Wright? Winston are you here? Winston?
No? Here? I’'m sorry, Winston? I’m sorry?

Female: Jacqueline Ross, I think she was skipped.
Commissioner Reardon: Winston?

Winston Wright: Hello.

Commissioner Reardon: Hello.

Winston Wright: Winston Wright. Hello members, | just wanted to say this. | worked
mn...

Commissioner Reardon: Closer to the microphone please.

Winston Wright: 1 worked in the food industry for over 17 — 20 years already. It’s a lot
of unfair things that go on as a worker. You can work hard and you can bring revenue to
the restaurant. The gratuities that you get for bringing the service in and having customer
service, you know, people skills, you don’t get rewarded for. You can be the coat check,
you could be the server, you could be the waiter, you could be anything. It’s unfair when
they take your tips and think that that’s supposed to make minimum wage. It doesn’t. If
you, everybody should get minimum wage no matter what. It doesn’t matter what job
you work, you should have minimum wage to pay your bills. Everything is going up and
you can’t make no money off five hours, you can’t make no money off seven hours.
Minimum wage should be way higher than that but in spite of that, it’s the way your are
treated, and if your not bringing in people, they are going to lay you off and they can treat
you any which way and it’s unfair and they just throw you out the door. That’s not fair to
anyone in any business. If you work and you do a good job, yes you should get paid at
least minimum wage. You shouldn’t be treated unfairly. No matter what job you work in
any industry whether you are the person that mop the floor or whether you’re the person
that’s serving the food, the people in the back or the people in the front. The managers
come out to make sure everything goes right but you’re still there to give your people
skills or customer skills to people and bring in revenue for the restaurant. If all of us is
treated fairly or at least try to be treated fairly, | believe that business would be good for



Subminimum Wage Event Page 15 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

everybody but everybody should be entitled to a minimum wage to live. You shouldn’t
have to be worried about you going to work and only got car fare to go to work. You
can’t go home. What’s the sense, you are working hard, you shouldn’t have to take on
two or three jobs and be fired from one of the jobs because you not making a minimum
wage. What’s the sense of having the job? That’s it, I’'m not here to beat on anybody,
just makes sense for everybody.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Jamnie Thomas.

Jacqueline Ross: Commissioner, | think you may of skipped by name, Jacqueline Ross.
Commissioner Reardon: Jacqueline?

Mario Musolino: Someone spoke on behalf of Jacqueline.

Commissioner Reardon: Someone spoke on behalf of Jacqueline.

Jacqueline Ross: No, they didn’t.

Commissioner Reardon: If Jacqueline was not here when her name was called, we
skipped them, sorry. Either someone spoke or she was not here. Jamnie Thomas.

Jacqueline Ross: I’ll speak for Jamnie Thomas then. Good Morning, I would like to
begin by thanking you Commissioner Reardon along with the New York State
Department of Labor for the opportunity to speak here today. I live on Long Island and
I’ve been a waitress for nearly half of my life and I’'m a member of ROC New York. To
being | will say that relying predominately on tips to make a living rather than receiving a
living wage creates a system of distorted incentives. Service is geared towards every
individual patron, leaving servers lacking a structure by which to base their rights and
treatment, something that one fair wage would provide. Service is also subject to
situations beyond the servers control such as issues with the kitchen, management,
seating arrangements, other patrons, activities of coworkers, etc., creating an
unpredictable volatile environment to base payment on performance. Working as a
waitress on weekends and evenings has allowed me to put myself through college and |
still depend on this occupation as it allows me to work and pursue a PhD. | started
waitressing at the age of 16 and it is in the occupation that | grew up, that I learned what
it was like to work as a member of a team, | learned how to multitask and I learned what
it was like to work hard. This occupation has also been the space where | learned that 1)
| am an object; 2) that sexual harassment is a daily occurrence, and 3) that I in nearly the
entirety of my working career I’m deserving of a traditional wage and the protection that
that affords. | also learned that | must not only tolerate sexual harassment but those who
harass me are exactly the people who | must appeal to for my pay. My work rather than
being characterized by an employer/employee contract is instead a confusing
worker/employee/customer triangle. Depending on customer’s tips due to this
bifurcation of the minimum wage has subjected me to a precarious life. I’ve never been
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able to budget. I’ve always lived week to week, and in March of this year | received by
very first raise from an employer. My precarious income is not dependent on my work
performance but it is dependent on the weather, the season, and the shift assigned to me
and the arbitrary proclivities of each and every customer that | serve. Tips are not fixed.
They are entirely dependent on a social code and in no way obligatory, where wages are
fixed and allow a worker to depend on income. Tips are in addition, a gift, not a wage
substitute. The very word subminimum wage defines it as being secondary, ancillary, or
different to the minimum wage. We are not secondary or ancillary workers. As workers
we should be able to rely on a minimum wage, not gamble with our income through
predominately relying on tips. | want to, | hope New York will be a pioneer in this
progressive One Fair Wage Reform and | ask. Thank you, thank you very much.

Commissioner Reardon: Catherine Barnett. Catherine?

Catherine Barnett: Okay, Good Morning. My name is Ms. Catherine Barnett and | am
the Director of the Restaurant Opportunity Center of New York. For the past 17 years,
ROC has advocated for better wages and working conditions for the eleven million plus
restaurant workers in our nation; more than 400,000 of whom live and work in New York
State. Our industry is one of the largest and fastest growing sectors and a powerful
engine for the country’s economy. Although it is a fast paced, exciting and diverse
industry with a predominately female workforce, these women’s employments are
concentrated in low wage, front of the house positions and sadly these women are subject
to some of the highest rates of sexual harassment on the job of any sector as reported
annually to the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. We need to fix our broken
two-tiered system where tipped workers make less than the minimum wage relying on the
whims of customers in the form of tips to put food on the table for our families. In New
York, tipped workers make $7.50 to $8.65 depending on the region, relying on tips to
bring them up to the states general minimum wage. Our One Fair Wage campaign is a
simply solution to the rampant exploitation in the majority female and immigrant
workforces. A restaurant job is often the first job a young women obtains whether she
stays in the industry her whole life or moves on to another career, and these experiences
that they have in the restaurant industry determine the way that they look at and interpret
the world of work. One Fair Wage is good for business. Restaurants in states with One
Fair Wage, and there are seven of them in our great Union, report increased sales, more
robust wages and stronger employment growth in states without One Fair Wage. New
York can be the next state to pass One Fair Wage. Restaurant workers work hard, they
work very hard, and they deserve to be compensated fairly. They deserve to be respected
and they deserve to have our industry be professionalized and to be paid one fair wage.
Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Nadia Lagos. Nadia Lagos. Nadia Lagos.
Female: Is anyone from our side going...

Commissioner Reardon: Yes, you are all going to get a chance to talk.
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Nadia Lagos: Good Morning everybody. Okay, so first of all, there are a lot of
undocumented people here who unfortunately they have to find jobs in places who pay
off the books. Yes.

Commissioner Reardon: Nadia Lagos?

Nadia Logos: Yes.

Female: No she’s not.

Commissioner Reardon: She’s not?

Nadia Lagos: Yep, Yep. Now they all of a sudden get
Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me...

Nadia Lagos: One, they will no longer have jobs and second, those businesses will no
longer be able to survive and close down. If they have already ...

Commissioner Reardon: Let me explain something. Hold on, hold on, everybody, let me
explain something here. People are speaking in the order in which they signed up for this
hearing. We have, | believe, five pages of people who have signed up. If you signed up,
you will absolutely have a chance to speak. It simply is in the order in which you signed
up. It’s not a trick. You will be going in order but if you disrespect the people at the
table, you will probably earn that disrespect when you speak. The next speaker is Wendy
Joa. Wendy? Wendy Joa? I’m sorry, okay, no Wendy? Christina Van der Veen.

Christina Van der Veen: Thank you. Thank you Commissioner Reardon and the New
York State Department of Labor. My name is Christina. | live in Brooklyn, New York.
| am a ROC New York member and work as a server in New York City. I’m sincerely
grateful for the opportunity to share what is important to me about Governor Cuomo’s
proposal to examine raising the base wage tipped workers to the regular minimum wage.
| am a single mother with two daughters, one of whom is in college and one who works
in this industry as a tipped employee as well. | have more than 30 years of experience
working in the restaurant industry. This is an industry filled with people who work very
hard to be good at what we do. We’re professionals looking out for the basic needs of
others and while that may seem like a simple task, in reality it is one that requires
training, time, energy, dedication, and practice. It is important for the health and
wellbeing of diners that we’re able to handle food properly while providing an
environment that is clean and welcoming. Despite this because we are tipped workers,
we earn a subminimum wage from our employers and rely on tips to make our living.
Being a tipped employee means that no matter how hard or how many hours | work, |
never know how much money | will make. It is not unusual for diners to tip below the
suggested 15% and also not unusual for uninformed tourists to leave no tip at all.
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Additionally, at my restaurant, we are charged a fee on our credit card tips which is
deducted from our weekly paychecks. Servers are already often poorly tipped based on
gender, race, or age discrimination regarding of the service they provide. It says
something that as | get older, while my skills at this job have improved, | found that my
tips have actually decreased. | am not jealous of servers who earn more than I do but I
am concerned by the precarious position subminimum wage puts workers in. Studies
have shown that women who wear makeup generally receive more tips than those who
don’t. Having to appeal to customers ideas of attractiveness or to tolerate sexual
harassment is not a healthy position for any person. | love my chosen profession but
need to voice and standup for my concerns for all tipped workers who face similar
difficulties. Some employers expect servers to help with dishes, making drinks, bussing
tables, cleaning floors, and serving customers. This is not sustainable or healthy. These
employers hold us accountable for being ambassadors to their brand to uphold their
values and to keep their businesses profitable, but they are not willing to pay a living
wage. | want both my daughters to have the opportunity to have a job where they will be
fairly paid for their work. It would be a great benefit to tipped workers in the State of
New York to follow the example of Alaska, California, Washington, Oregon, Minnesota,
Montana, and Nevada, to make a law. Thank you.

Female: The next testifiers are Cynthia Torres, Basilisa Zafra, Lisbet Rosendo, Rosalba
Nestor, Maria del Carmen Cabrera Ayala.

Commissioner Reardon: Cynthia Torres and she will be followed by Basilisa Zafra.

Cynthia Torres: (Interpreter) Good Morning, Cynthia is not able to be here, so my name
is Glenda and I’ll be speaking in her set. I’ve worked seven years in the nail salon
industry and I’'m here representing our over 700 members of the New York Nail Salon
Association, and we’re part of Worker’s United. And we are working with a broad
coalition that is working to improve the conditions for nail salon workers across New
York State. And I’m here in support of One Fair Wage because we basically have to
depend on tips as nail salon workers and that is unstable. So we need to have a fair wage.
So we’re not just working as nail salon technicians, we also do cleaning and I’m here
representing my other companeros, other workers in the nail salon industry who are not
able to be here today to speak in front of you either because they had to work or they are
afraid and I’m here and had the bravery to come before you all and share these
comments. And if we’re able to make one fair wage, the basic minimum wage, that
would ensure us a dignified life and to be able to be content in both our jobs and in our
homes. We want to be treated like human beings, not machines that are here to make
profit for the owners. We want to be respected regardless of where we come from.
We’re workers and we need to be listened to by you all. And thank you to all my
companeros who are here today in support of One Fair Wage.

Commissioner Reardon: Basilisa Zafra and she will be followed by Lisbet Rosendo. So
Basilisa Zafra.
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Basilisa Zafra: (Interpreter) Good Morning everybody. My name is Basilisa Zafra and
I’m coming here representing the 700 members that are part of the New York Nail Salon
Worker’s Association. I have been working in the nail salon industry for the last nine
years. | am here today in favor one fair wage for all workers that have to depend on tips
for their wages because this is a pay system that results often times in unjust treatment
and unjust wages. So even if we are busy all day, working all day, because our tips,
because our wages depend so much on tips, we don’t even know if at the end of the day
we’ll make enough for the work. Sometimes they will leave $5.00 for the services that
we do or sometimes nothing at all. So this means that at the end of the week after
working 10 hour days, often times no breaks, not having time to eat, we’re not even
assured that we’re going to make minimum wage. Having to work these long work hours
not just affects us but affects our family because we are coming home really late and
unable to see the kids, unable to eat dinner with them. Not making the minimum wage
also affects our health and hindering us from being able to go to the doctor because we
are unable to pay medical costs or pay the medication. So to have a stable and just wage
would mean that we are able to provide for our families. Thank you so much for
listening.

Commissioner Reardon: Lisbet Resendo, Lisbet Resendo and after that, Rosalba Nestor.
So Lisbet Resendo, you are next.

Lisbet Resendo: (Interpreter) Good Morning everybody, my name Lisbet Resendo and |
have been working as a nail salon worker for the last five years. So this is the work that
I’ve always enjoyed, in fact I was working as a nail technician in Mexico. However,
despite me enjoying my work, it’s unfair that we have to depend on wages that are
unstable and often not even the minimum wage because we’re having to depend on tips.
So the amount of tips that we are making depends on if they are clients or if there aren’t’
for that day. And even when there are clients that come in, you know, even if you work
with someone you are not guaranteed that they’re going to leave anything. So you know
when they don’t leave tips this makes me feel bad because we put a lot of dedication and
love into the work that we do and so it makes us think that they don’t appreciate the work
that we’re doing. So for clients, they are not seeing the tips as part of our wages. For
them it’s an option, optional, but for us it’s not optional, it is part of our wages and so this
means that often times we’re making less than minimum wage. And so what this means
is that it results often times in a lot of wage theft. | work every single day at least 10
hours and my wage should not have to depend on how many clients there are that day or
the generosity of that person leaving me a tip. Tips should be what they are, extra. So to
get to make a just wage, this would help me a lot, this would help me be able to pay for
the basic cost of living and to be able to provide for my family. So now as it is, | often
don’t know if I’'m going to make enough. So I ask you all to put yourselves in my shoes
and think about what would it be like to have to work long hours everyday and not even
be assured that you’re going to make minimum wage, and for this reason we want and we
deserve a fair wage. Thank you.
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Mario Musolino: Rosalba Nestor and will be followed by Maria del Carmen Cabrera
Ayala.

Rosalba Nestor: Okay, so I’'m going to read on behalf of Rosalba. So my name is
Rosalba Nestor and I’ve worked in the nail salon industry for eight years. When I started
working, | entered into this because | was told you make tips. What I have found out is
that often times we’re not even making enough to make minimum wage. When we do
get tips, they are not a lot. So if it rains that means there are no clients for that day, which
means that we’re not making anything for that day. On the other side, when it is busy
and there are people, we are unable to take a break throughout the day. To just simply
get $5.00 more for tips, this means that we’re having to sacrifice the 30 minutes for lunch
for the possibility of making a tip when somebody comes in and we may be eating often
times we decide to forego the 30 minutes and so it becomes a question of what’s more
important, our health or to be able to make a little bit more. So in our work there’s a
huge difference in, it’s seasonal work; in the summer time and in the winter time. In the
summer time, there are more people but that also means that we are having to sacrifice
many things like the time that is needed to eat. What we’ve seen in this industry is that in
not eating, this is affecting our health. | have a coworker who just recently was sick, she
developed like a stomachache for going long periods of not eating and now she has been
without work for the last two weeks...

Mario Musolino: Excuse me, folks please, if everybody could be quiet so we can hear
the testifiers. Thank you.

Rosalba Nestor: So to make a fair and just wage would be so much better for us not just
economically but in our health. Thank you.

Mario Musolino: Thank you.

Female: The next five testifiers are Sonia Morales, Maria Yupa, Mayra Yesenia Padilla
Guzman, Luzmmila Yagloa, Yolanda De Jesus Gonzalez.

Mario Musolino: Okay, next could we have Maria del Carmen Cabrera Ayala.
Maria del Carmen Cabrera Ayala: (Interpreter)
Mario Musolino: Could you speak into the microphone please?

Maria del Carmen Cabrera Ayala: Good Morning and thank you to the Commissioner
and to the Department of Labor for offering me the opportunity to share my comments.
My name is Sonia. | live in the Bronx and I’ve worked as a nail salon technician for 10
years. I’m part of the New York Nail Salon Worker’s Association, which is part of
Worker’s United, and we’re more than 700 members who are fighting to improve the
conditions in our industry. I’m here today as a worker who has been in this industry a
long time to say that making less than minimum wage affects us deeply and we need to
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be able to make the regular minimum wage plus tips. And why am I in favor of this?
Because for me this would mean being able to spend much more quality time with my
family and my children. It seems very unjust to me that we have to depend on tips just in
order to make a wage because as we all know here, giving tips is voluntary. This is not
something that is assured to us that we can know we’re going to get at the end of the day.
Through today in the last 10 years that | have working in this industry, no owner of any
salon that | have worked at has ever wanted to pay the basic minimum wage because of
the tips. And so because of that imbalance we end up having to work more and more
trying to see if we’re going to make enough tips and so we end of working upwards of 50
hours a week many days a week and above 40 hours we’re never making overtime. And
we do this because we’re working to be able to take care of our kids who are growing up
and we want to be able to provide for them and support their upbringing. And a lot of
times we end of coming in early and staying late to be able to see if we’re going to make
more and also out of fear of being fired. So many of us here have children and we’re
fighting today for our children and that’s why we’re here asking for One Fair Wage. For
us as nail salon workers, having to depend on tips results in a low pay and bad treatment.
As | said, I’ve worked 10 years in this industry as a nail salon, as a nail technician and
I’ve come to realize that the owners of these salons depend on my experience and
abilities to keep their businesses running. And that’s why I believe we need to be paid
and treated well. If this change in law comes to fruition, this would be something
positive and deserved, in my opinion. We’re not asking for something that we don’t
deserve. All of us deserve one fair and basic wage.

Mario Musolino: Please, please, please, let her finish.

Maria del Carmen Cabrera Ayala: And more important than anything, this would allow
me to spend more time with my kids and my family which is the most important thing to
me. Thank you. God Bless you all.

Mario Musolino: Next would be Maria Yupa. Maria Yupa and that will be followed by
Mayra Yesenia Padilla Guzman.

Maria Yupa: (Interpreter) Good Morning everyone. My name is Maria Yupa, | come
from the Bronx and I’m a nail salon worker. So we’re here today in support of One Fair
Wage because right now depending on tips creates instability for us. A lot of our
customers, our clients don’t even know that we don’t make minimum wage and many of
them don’t end of giving tips. So I usually work from 9:00 AM to 7:00 sometimes 7:30
or sometimes even later, if there are more and more customers and we’re not paid for that
extra time that we end of working there. We’re here today also in support of One Fair
Wage because it’s about our work being respected and valued. A lot of times when we
paint people’s nails sometimes they won’t even say thank you and our work is not being
valued in the way that it should. Many of us who are nail salon workers, we work, we’re
alone, many of us are single mothers and we are working to be able to cover our basic
needs and those of our children. We hope that our voices will be heard and thank you.
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Mario Musolino: Thank you. Next up is Mayra Yesenia Padilla Guzman, Mayra.

Mayra Yesenia Padilla Guzman: (Interpreter) Mayra is not able to be here so I'm going
to be reading her testimony on her time.

Mario Musolino: Okay and next up will be Luzmila Yagloa.

Mayra Yesenia Padilla Guzman: (Interpreter) My name is Mayra Padilla and | have
worked in the nail salon industry for seven years. | actually studied to do this work in my
country and I like it a lot but I wish | could make a fair wage doing it. So the current
salaries and the wages are very low because we have to depend on tips. Our wages that
we make should be separate from tips that should just depend on how someone does their
job. The tips that we make depend on how many customers we have in a day and if they
decide to leave tips because for them it’s optional. It’s happened to me that I’ve only
gotten $4.00 to $8.00 in tips in a day. Another week, | only made $35.00 in tips. You
can’t cover your basic needs with $35.00. Regularly, I make a lot less than the minimum
wage. We have to pay our bills and rent is not cheap in the City. So I worked in a salon
where we made money by commission and | worked seven days a week, 10 hours a day,
and | just made $70.00 a week. That was during winter and there weren’t a lot of clients,
customers who were arriving. In that week I couldn’t even pay one bill or cover all of
my food costs. This economic insecurity deeply affects my family. A change to One
Fair Wage would be a tremendous accomplishment for all of us. We work to be able to
support our families and making one fair wage and one stable wage would finally allow
us to do that. Thank you.

Mario Musolino: Thank you. Next, the next speaker is Luzmila Yagloa followed by
Yolanda De Jesus Gonzalez.

Luzmila Yagloa: (Intrepreter) So I’'m going to read on behalf of Luzmila who couldn’t
be here today despite asking for the day off was told that if she didn’t come into work to
not come back, and same goes for many of them.

Mario Musolino: Okay folks, really, please be respectful of the people who are
testifying. It’s a long day, everybody is on the list, which is 150 people are going to
testify, but please show respect to the folks who come up to speak. As the Commissioner
explained, thank you, but as the Commissioner explained this is the order that people
signed up on the website. That’s just what happened. This is the order people signed up.
Please, please stop the back and forth, this is the order that people signed up. We will go
through as quickly as we can but we want to give people the opportunity to speak. So
please let’s take a breath and let’s try to go through it. Okay, go ahead.

Luzmila Yagloa: (Intrepreter) So my name is Luzmila Yagloa and | worked as a nail
technician for the last eight years. Working as a nail technician is hard work and
unfortunately filled with mistreatment and discrimination. A change to One Fair Wage
would do wonders to better the conditions of our work. So in the salon where | was
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working, my pay was by commission. The tips would vary, sometimes they would leave
one and sometimes they wouldn’t, and we would have to write down how much we got in
tips and our boss would check it but often times she wasn’t believing that we made such
little tips, and that’s what happens when manicures here in New York City go for as little
as $10.00 or $12.00. This results in low prices, low tips. So under the current pay
system, we are having to work long hours in which often times the hours that we are
working are not being properly compensated. My boss often makes me stay after late; 20
minutes one day, 20 minutes another day, and for this | should be paid overtime but they
don’t pay us overtime so I work five to six days a week, 10:00 in the morning until 8:00
at night, or longer, so I’'m leaving really late at night and often times I’m unable to see
my kid at the end of the day. So this, the current wage is insufficient not just, it doesn’t
just affect us economically, you know, I recently hurt my hand in the job. There’s a lot
of injuries particularly to your hands and I’ve had to, to this day spend close to $1,000.00
in medical costs, and my wages simply don’t make it enough for me to be able to pay this
and for me to take the proper time for it to heal and so | have to go back to work and it
reopens it and it continues to last longer because I’m unable to take that time necessary to
heal. So if | was to make a fair wage, | would be able to cover the cost or take the time
necessary to heal. | have a son of two years old and so to be able to make a fair and just
and stable wage would not just be a huge benefit economically but would enable me to be
able to spend more time with him. Just wage would be a huge change in my life. Thank
you.

Mario Musolino: Thank you. Thank you, the next speaker is Yolanda De Jesus
Gonzalez.

Female: The next five speakers are: Maria llivicura, Sara Tixi, Carmen Santander,
Aquilina Lopez, Leticia Benavides.

Yolanda De Jesus Gonzalez: (Interpreter) I’ll be speaking for Yolanda who also could
not be here today. My name is Yolanda and I live in Queens. I’ve worked as a nail
technician for 17 years, and I’m part of the Nail Salon Worker’s Association of New
York, part of Worker’s United. I’m in favor of raising the subminimum wage to the
regular minimum wage because it’s past time that our work be recognized, just like all
other work is recognized in New York. It’s not, it’s unjust that we have to depend on tips
that no one assures to us. We deserve a stable and just wage and that is why we are here
today. This change in law would assure us the stable pay that we all need for our future
and for that of our families. The base pay that we receive per day is a lot less than the
minimum wage. So the owners of the salon often think that the tips that we get from
customers are enough and that they give them generously but it’s not always like that.
Our customers don’t always know that we depend on tips so they don’t always give us
tips. Also, the price of the services, especially in New York City, are very low and so
when they do give us tips the tips are also very low. Also having to depend on tips is
unjust for us because our work varies so much depending on the season. In winter there
is really not a lot of customers so we don’t make enough and then in summer, there is
many. So when that happens, when there’s a lot of customers a lot of times we are
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obligated to stay late to be able to attend to them and we have to do that hoping that
we’re going to get a tip out of it. If we say no, then often we’re threatened with being
fired and so we have to stay for fear of losing our job. For me, this change would mean
that I would be able to have a stable work and to be able to work with dignity, and that
finally the value of our work would be respected. I’m a professional and I deserve to be
paid and treated justly. We should not have to live with this insecurity and that is why |
support One Fair Wage. Thank you.

Mario Musolino: Thank you. Thank you. Next speaker is Maria llivicura. Maria? And
then Sara Tixi will be next. Thank you.

Maria lllivicura: (Interpreter) Hello, I’'m Maria and I’ve worked for eight years in the
industry as a nail tech. The low pay that we receive because we have to depend on tips
has affected me deeply and that’s why I am here today in support of One Fair Wage. We
cannot depend on tips; one, because we don’t know if the customers are going to leave
them because it is optional, and secondly sometimes we don’t even know if there’s going
to be customers that come to the salon. When they don’t arrive you end up sitting there
for long hours without being able to work but still obligated to be there but without being
compensated sufficiently for that time. We’re working long days and losing time with
our kids and our families and we’re not even making enough to cover our basic needs.
For me, making one fair and stable wage would help me to know and finally be assured
and at peace that knowing that I’m going to be able to cover my basic costs. With one
fair wage, [ wouldn’t have to be always stressed wondering if a customer is going to
arrive and if she is going to leave a tip. This change would mean not only, it would mean
a lot for me and all of the nail salon workers as well as workers across many different
industries. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Thank you. Next speaker is Sara Tixi and she will
be followed by Carmen Santander. Sara? No? So we will move on to Carmen. Carmen
Santander?

Carman Santander: (Interpreter) Hi everybody. My name is Carman Santander and |
have 10 years of experience working as a nail technician in the nail industry here in New
York.

| really like my job. I like doing designs. I like painting nails. What I don’t like is that
the wages, the economic uncertainty that comes with our work. And this is why | support
a just wage for all workers, like all the nail salon workers, that we have to depend so
much on tips.

So, having to depend on tips makes it so that we’re always constantly having to see if
there’s going to be clients that day. And if there are a lot of clients this means that often
times we’re not allowed to eat. So, also, we are often if somebody comes in close to
closing time we’re often made to stay and have to stay late. Even if we continue to work
we’re not paid for that time, that overtime. Nor are we sure that they are going to leave a
tip. So, my typical schedule is 10 a.m. to 8 p.m. but often times I’m staying until late,
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close to 9 but this is never accounted for. My base pay, so despite the hours I’'m working,
my base pay is $70.00 a day. So, in addition, $70.00 is my base pay. Maybe there will
be tips, maybe there won’t be tips. You know, typically they may leave 2 to $3.00 is
what the majority leave. If they leave some. And if I may have luck, $5.00, but that’s
usually not the case. So, you know, I feel bad because they’re not paying me what is fair,
what is just. And often times it’s not even enough to cover the minimum. I work five
days a week, 10 hours at least a day and I’m always arriving really late to the house. But
yet sometimes I don’t even have enough to pay the babysitter. So, to get a fair wage and
next year when it goes up to $15.00, if we were to get paid $15.00 an hour and to get the
tips apart from that would be a huge thing for me. With this we would be able to cover
our costs that we have and would represent a significant change for all nail salon workers.
Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Next speaker is Aquilina Lopez. Followed by
Leticia Benavides. Aquilina’s not here, Laticia Benavidez?

Ramona: The next five testifiers are Louis Gomez, Charlene Obernauer, Lucas Sanchez,
Mary Crosson, and Alex Martinez.

Leticia Benavides: Good morning, my name is Leticia Benavides and I’ve worked in the
nail salon industry for 14 years. So, when | first started doing this work | was making
$25.00 a day. And since then the base pay hasn’t gone up very much . The tips are not
guaranteed to us and we have to work many hours just to see if we’ll make some tips. A
lot of times on Fridays many people don’t come in and so we just end up sitting there all
day and we don’t even make tips at the end of the day. And many days, especially during
the winter, we’re there sitting all day again without customers coming in and we make
$5.00 in tips or sometimes even less. That’s not enough to cover our basic needs
especially those of us who have kids. On the other side of that is when there are a lot of
clients who come in a lot of times we don’t end up eating just to see if we can be with
one more client. Hoping that that person will leave us a tip. 1 like doing this work but
it’s not fair what we end up getting paid for it. We end up working many hours being far
from our families and from our children and making very little money.

Commissioner Reardon: Hold on one second, please. Folks could you be quiet it’s very
hard to hear up here with conversations going on. Thank you.

Leticia Benavides: So, being able to make one fair wage would enable us to have a little
bit more economic stability and cover our basic costs. For those of us who have children
we’re always living under the economic stress of not being able to provide for them.
We’re always wondering if at the end of the month we’re going to be able to make rent
and pay our bills. Making one fair wage would not only give us more economic stability
but it would give us the time that we so value and we need with our children. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Next speaker is Louis Gomez. Followed by
Charlene Obernauer.
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Luis Gomez: Thank you for this opportunity. My name is Luis Gomez. I’m the
organizing director for the New York/New Jersey Regional Joint Berg Worker’s United
SCIU. A union that represents retain workers, manufacturing workers, distribution
centers, and now nail salon workers through the nail salon organizing project. We also
form part of the New York Healthy Nail Salons Coalition.

Over the past three years we have assisted thousands of nail salon workers of all
ethnicities from obtaining their nail technician’s license to filing complaints with the
Department of Labor. You have heard from many members today and many others are
here in support. Throughout the two years with the Nail Salon Organizing Project | have
met with victims of harassment, discrimination, unhealthy working conditions. But the
one issue that continues to stand out is the issue of wage theft that runs rampant in the
nail salon industry.

The majority of nail salon workers are introduced to a pay system that is considered a
daily flat pay rate. That is usually well below the tip minimum wage. Workers are told
you are a tipped worker, here is your daily flat rate, what tips you make are yours. On the
surface this sounds somewhat legit but how it plays out day to day in the lives of nail
salon workers is a cause for major concern.

Nail salon workers are made to believe that they are exempt from all minimum wage
laws and that includes any overtime laws as well. This is why we see nail salon workers
willing to work ten-hour shifts, 50 hours a week. The concept of overtime is a laughable
one for workers in the industry.

In my three years working with the nail salon workers | have never heard a worker say
that the owner made up their difference when their earnings didn’t reach the minimum
wage threshold, never. And mind you this is their legal obligation.

The current complex and convoluted tip credit system allows for industry operators to
further exploit a system that has already made it difficult for workers to have a steady
income even after a 50-hour work week. Business owners that do not step up to their
responsibilities to ensure workers are receiving their proper minimum wage, make
workers dependent on customers and their incomes, and this isn’t the way business
should be done.

We are looking for a better standard of living for the overwhelming number of immigrant
women, 80% of them who are mothers. An increase in stable wage will improve and
facilitate their lives and handling the cost of living increases. This is why we support the
One Fair Wage. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Okay, next speaker is Charlene Obernauer. And in those
circumstances, it looks like Charlene’s here but I just want to give people a heads up, in
those circumstances where a testifier isn’t here and someone’s going to be reading
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testimony on their behalf, reminded that we have live translation services here so would
request that it just be read in English at the time.

Charlene Obernauer: Hi, my name’s Charlene Obernauer. I’'m the Executive Director of
the New York Committee for Occupational Safety and Health. And we’re here today to
talk about the 375,000 nail salon workers who are in the United States who are exposed
to chemicals and unjust working conditions every day on the job.

There are 5,000 nail salons in New York State. The Majority of workers who you’ve
heard from today are immigrant women, Asian and Latina immigrant women. And nail
salon workers can be paid as little as $35.00 to $60.00 daily, and they depend on tips for
livelihood.

Depending on tips means a salary is not guaranteed. People should not have to rely on
the kindness of strangers to make a living. It’s the employer’s responsibility to pay
workers. When business is slow workers’ wages are low. And nail salon workers are
often paid below minimum wage even after they receive their tips. Eliminating the
minimum wage would raise the floor on wages and increase salaries for workers.

So, | want to talk about Nail salon workers. But I also want to talk about restaurants.
Restaurants employ 7% of the workforce but they make up 37% of the Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission’s sexual harassment claims. It’s federal data.

So, why? Because workers have to rely on customers for their salaries and they have to
tolerate inappropriate and illegal conduct in order to be paid.

Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me. You’re going to have your chance at the
microphone. Please respect the speaker. If you signed up.

Charlene Obernauer: Subminimum wage is broken. But workers in this room who are
testifying here today will not be broken. We will join together to create safer and
healthier jobs and to raise the floor for New York’s hardworking workers.

The truth is that we know that when workers make subminimum wage they’re more
likely to be exploited on the job. They’re more likely to be subjected to unsafe working
conditions. They’re more likely to be also subjected to unhealthy working conditions.
And it’s because of that that we at NYCOSH support the elimination of the subminimum
wage and that we urge this committee to eliminate the subminimum wage. Thank you for
the opportunity to testify and for your patience.

Ramona: Next, next, next. Excuse me. Next speaker is Lucas Sanchez. Followed by
Mary Crosson. Lucas?
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Benjamin Britain: Good afternoon. Lucas Sanchez was unable to be here. My name is
Benjamin Britain, I’'m staff for New York Communities for Change. I’m going to read a
letter on his behalf.

First, we just want to thank Commissioner Reardon and the New York State Department
of Labor for giving me this opportunity to share my comments about Governor Cuomo’s
proposal to examine raising the base wage paid to tip workers to the regular minimum
wage.

My name is Lucas Sanchez and | am Long Island Director for New York Communities
for Change. Our Long Island office is located at 91 North Franklin street, suite 209 in
Hempstead, New York. New York Communities for Change is a multiracial membership
based organization of working families fighting against economic and racial oppression.

On Long Island our members fight for more and high quality affordable housing, better
public schools, and higher wages for all workers. We are here today to support One Fair
Wage for all workers.

We believe that because employers are permitted to pay, by law, to pay a subminimum
wage which is approximately two thirds of the regular minimum wage in New York,
tipped workers are completely dependent on customer tips to make a living. This is an
unstable and precarious way to make ends meet.

Being dependent on customer tips means tipped workers can’t count on a steady
paycheck. Their earnings go up and down depending on which shift is assigned to work,
how busy the night may be, and the mood of the customer. Tipped wage workers’
weekly earnings go up and down but their bills are the same every month.

Tipping practices are often influenced by a server’s gender, race, and looks, attributes
that they have no control over, yet they are factors in how a customer tips. And thus,
how much they earn. Which amounts to discrimination.

Because tipped workers rely on tips to earn a living they feel compelled to tolerate
inappropriate behavior on the job including sexual harassment.

Tipped wage workers feel compelled to work even when they are sick.
Tipped wage workers are at increased risk of wage theft.

Tipped wage workers deserve to be paid the regular minimum wage by their employer
and still earn tips just as other members of that profession do in California, Nevada, and
Alaska. In states with One Fair Wage the restaurant industry is thriving. Workers are
earning better wages and equal or better tips and owners are providing good stable jobs
for the community.
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Tips should not be a substitute for a worker’s base wage or a subsidy for employers so
they don’t have to pay fair base wage to their workers. Tips should be on top of a fair
base wage the servers should be receiving.

It is outrageous to expect customers to pay restaurant worker’s wages. When one goes
into a clothing store or other retail establishments.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.
Benjamin Britain: Okay, that’s it. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Mary Crosson followed by Alex Martinez. Mary? Mary
Crosson? She’s over here? Mary, down here. It’s right here.

Lisa Ladson: This way? This is really cute. Okay. Good afternoon everybody. Good
afternoon everybody. Okay, thank you. I’m here on behalf of Mary. This is my first
time and ’m a little nervous so please forgive me.

Commissioner Reardon: That’s okay, lean a little further into the microphone.
Lisa Ladson: Okay, is that a little better?
Commissioner Reardon: Yeah.

Lisa Ladson: Okay, thank you. I want to say thank you to the Commissioner and to the
New York State Department of Labor for allowing me to voice my thoughts. My name is
Lisa Ladson and I live in Hempstead, Long Island.

As an African American woman in my community | know women and people that works
in restaurants, diners, nail salons, and etc. And they depend on their tips to make a living.
We know that Nassau County, Long Island is one of the most expensive places to live.
And we are living in difficulty times.

Oh, I’'m a little nervous. I’m so nervous. Oh God, oh God please help me. Thank you.

So, we need, one minimum wage should be applied. The one minimum wage should be
applied to help people be able to live, be able to provide. Because Nassau County, in
order for you to be able to live in Nassau County the way the rent is it is very high. So,
by them having the one wage and plus allowing them to keep their tips because they
make it. They’re the ones who work for it so they should be allowed to keep their tips.

But to be on a minimum, to be on a one wage policy they should have that. They should
be on that. But they also should be allowed to keep their tips. I’'m not saying that, I’'m
not here to protest against your tips. But to make it equal.
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And for those who are not in your place you should be helping them get into that place
too. Some of you here, ’'m sorry I’m not going by the protocol here. I’'m using my own
words. I’m sorry so please forgive me everybody.

| feel everybody should work together, come together, help each other. Push this law in
effect and also keep your money. You make it. It belongs to you. Handle your business
the way it is. Thank you very much and have a good day.

Ramona: The next five testifiers are Bertha Chacon, Venus Charleswell, Humberto
Rodriquez, Camilo Montes, and Gerardo Gomez.

Commissioner Reardon: And now we’re hearing from Alex Martinez.

Alex Martinez: Hold on one second Alex. New York Communities for Change, do you
have someone to help him? Or can someone translate for him because he’s... Okay,
thank you. Thanks.

Josa Gera: Good afternoon everyone. My name is Josa Gera and | want to talk about
Alex Martinez. My name is Alex Martinez and | am an immigrant father from El
Salvador. Okay. I’m from El Salvador who has been working at the no union car wash
for seven years. As an immigrant worker this past year has been one of the strong
catalysts. I’ve been protesting on the street to establish the tax of my community. Butin
addition to all this I am struggling just to be able to survive and pay my rent. As a
carwash worker | receive the tip wages and am struggling constantly because | never
know if I will get the right amount of tips. If my boss would pay the difference if we
don’t get enough tips. Most customers only leave a dollar so in tips because most people
don’t know we depend on tips. Many times, the manager goes through our tips or use the
tips to other expenses than give us the and thinks we have been so bad and
I know | am working part time at the carwash and also working as an Uber driver just to
make the ends of the amount. Carwash workers and other tipped workers need One Fair
Wage. We should be getting the same minimum wage as all other workers. We have
seen too much wage tip in our industry. | am asking for the State of New York to give us
workers one for wage for all. Thank you for your time.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. So, next we’re going to hear from Bertha Chacon
followed by Venus Charleswell. Let me just clarify, if you are translating for a worker
who wished to speak in their own language both of you come to the table. If you only
have their testimony and you have it in English just deliver it in English. Thank you. But
if the worker is here, have the worker come and talk.

Josa Gera: Oh, but he’s not here.

Commissioner Reardon: He’s not here, do you have Bertha? No, this is?



Subminimum Wage Event Page 31 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

Josa Gera: This is, he is going to be talking about Bertha Chacon. So, I could read the
testimony?

Commissioner Reardon: Let him, if he wants to testify in his language that’s perfectly
fine. You do the translating. Okay.

Jose Hernandez: My name is Jose Hernandez. Seven years ago, | come from Dominican
Republic looking for American dream. | am the father of a daughter who lives back in
my old county. Many times, I have the illusion of bringing my daughter but it’s only a
dream because my salary as a restaurant worker does not allow me to even have an
apartment for me. | have to share my apartment with other people with different countries
and different cultures. My salary is very low and most of the time the client don’t give
any tips because the first thing the owner of the restaurant say is free delivery, no tips.
We are working eight hours daily. Most of the time | have to be working nine hours but
the hour extra I never get paid for. It’s very hard for us to cover our necessities. Because
a lot of costs are so high. We tried to change a job but all the jobs are the same. It’s very
low salary. | would like to say thank you. To everyone, to all the representatives, to the
Department of Labor and the Commissioner. To let us express our Thank you very
much.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much.

Commissioner Reardon: Venus Charleswell followed by Humberto Rodriquez. Venus?
Venus? There you are.

Patricio: Good afternoon everyone. My name is Patricio and | will be talking for Venus.
My name is Venus Charleswell. | am a single mother of two children and I reside in the
Bronx. Many times I have to decide if I can pay the rent or buy food for my family. I’ve
been working in several restaurants. And it don’t matter which one. I always have the
same problem. My wages and my tips; they are not enough to support my family. I’ve
been working for many years as a waitress. And any of the restaurants pay different. |
didn’t make at least minimum wage. For me it’s impossible to raise my money without
knowing how much money | will take home. At the end of the day I can’t depend on my
plans. With a tip since | cannot control how many clients are going to arrive and from
those customers how many are going to leave a big enough tip. Because to leave a tip is
not, the customer doesn’t have to leave it.

And because of the increase of the cost of living in New York, us tipped workers ask the
New York Department of Labor issue an opinion of the fair wage. For all of us and for all
workers including table workers can collect at least the same minimum wage as all the
workers. Taking into account, especially that the tips are inconsistent and that it
ultimately depends on where we work. This happens at many places because we are not
protected. We demand to have the same rights to collect the same minimum wage as the
rest of the workers. Thank you.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Next, we have Humberto Rodriguez followed by
Camilo Montes.

Humberto Rodriguez: [Good morning, my name is Humberto Rodriguez and | am a
carwash worker with Off Broadway Carwash. Thank you, Commissioner, and members
of Department of Labor for this opportunity to testify on the tip minimum wage.e: | am
one of the thousands of working men and women throughout the state that are subjected
to a subminimum wage. And | am a member of the Retail Wholesale and Department
Store Union. And I’ve been working as a carwash worker for two years and six months.
In the carwash industry there is next to no job security. I'm regularly sent home at 1 p.m.
even after the weather is good. This in turn leads to me working much fewer hours than
had anticipated for my budget. Apart from the scheduling issues we often receive very
little money in tips. Recently, our crew earned only $11.00 per five hours of work. How
sad. The weather and many other factors play a role in how busy the carwash is and in
turn how much money we take in tips. This amount of money, especially without steady
wages, is not enough. Every day I'm forced to pay $6.50 in transit, $10.00 for lunch, just
to come to work. The weather affects us and when I’m sent home I can’t do anything.
This money without a stable salary is not enough. My job is extremely challenging and |
work in all weather and work with dangerous chemicals. Often without the proper safety
equipment. | deserve to make a real salary and make additional tips on that. We deserve
job security, respect, and a fair wage in addition to the tips from the customers that are
coming from the customers, not the employers. Thank you very much. Thank you very
much.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Camilo Montes, followed by Gerardo Gomez.

Ramona: The next five testifiers after that we have Ernesto Salazar, Patricio Santiago,
Carlos Castianos, Ramon Perez, and Brianna Humphrey.

Camilo Good morning. My name is Camilo Montes and I’m a carwash worker for the
21%t Street Carwash in Astoria, and one of the thousands of working men and women
throughout the state who are subjected to subminimum wage. I’'m a member of the Retail
Wholesale Department Store Union Carwash Campaign. I’ve been working as a carwash
worker for ten years. At the carwash I spend half of my day vacuuming cars and the
other half brushing them. My job isn’t easy. We work in extreme temperatures. Workers
regularly get heat exhaustion from high temperatures in the summer. During the winter
catching a cold and the flu is part of our job. We’re exposed to freezing cold water in
winter which inevitably sprays on us for hours on end. So, | do a regular difficult job.
One that the community needs. But at the same time, | often receive little to nothing in
tips. For instance my schedule can often be unpredictable and determined by the
weather. So, if there is bad weather than | will be sent home, only able to work four
hours and make very little for tips on that day. Many workers in my union carwashes are
also victims of wage theft and do not receive tips at all. Wages can also be seen for many
workers who work overtime hours but do not get compensated accordingly. I’ve asked
the majority of workers more than 60 hours per week. Luckily for me | am a member



Subminimum Wage Event Page 33 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

RWDSU for carwash campaign ensures that | receive fair and legal pay and my shared
portion of the tips. | need those tips in addition to a minimum wage because | work hard
and put my life in jeopardy in order to provide for my community. Customers give tips
because they believe my coworkers and | do a good job. And they believe us workers
deserve additional compensation. With my regular income always changing it seems
almost impossible how to predict how to save and spend my money in order to provide
for my family. In fact, I work such long hours and hard hours, entirely to provide for my
family. My wife, my children, my grandchildren all live in Mexico and | send them
money to help them support for schooling and college tuition. My family depends on me
and they depend on this job. Thank you.

Female: Thank you. Thank you. Was that Gerardo?

Commissioner Reardon: No, that was Camilo. Gerardo Gomez followed by Ernesto
Salazar.

Gerardo Gomez: Can we have some silence and respect for the workers that are
speaking? Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Excuse me, we’re going to have some silence in
this room to listen to this worker. And we’ll listen to you when you’re up at the
microphone.

Gerardo Gomez: Good morning, Commissioner Reardon, and members of the
Department of Labor. | want to thank you for this opportunity to share my testimony.
My name is Gerardo Gomez. I’m single, of Columbian origin, I have three children. I
have worked in the carwash industry for more than 13 years. The time | have been
working in the carwash industry has been very difficult for me and my family. We have
struggled to maintain a comfortable apartment where we could live with dignity. | have
felt very frustrated when in my free time my children have asked me to take them to the
movies, to the beach, or go the restaurant and I’ve got not enough money to treat them.
All because I haven’t been able to earn fair just salary. Because I have depended on tips
which vary day to day.

Meanwhile carwash owners take the money from the tip jar to pay for accidents, buy
towels, replace broken car antennas and broken mirrors or missing carpets. In addition to
this abuse they commit wage theft and rob us of our salary. Another situation that all
workers face is that sometimes when we show up for work the managers don’t give us
enough hours. He sends us home early when there is not much business or the weather is
bad and rainy. Sometimes we have to wait up to eight hours sitting around. That affects
us because we rely on tips.

Another thing, a confusing one, but one that can reduce our wages is that there are
different levels of pay on the minimum wage. My partner got a job where she earned
better wages than me even though | work longer hours. | could never earn more than her.
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My salary was never enough to make ends meet so when she started earning better
money she opted to break the family unit. Mr. Governor, Andrew Cuomo, on behalf of
carwash workers | thank you for your support to give us and through this testimony...
Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.
Female: Ernesto Salazar, followed by Mercutio Santiago.

Ernesto Salazar: Good morning, afternoon, Commissioner Reardon, and members of the
Department of Labor. | want to thank you for convening these hearings and for giving us
an opportunity for us to testify on why we need to bring tip workers to the full minimum

wage.

My name is Ernesto Salazar and | have worked in the carwash industry for the past 15
years. Today | work part time as a carwash worker and part time with the union helping
to address the health and safety concerns at carwashes across the city. When | work
regularly at a carwash I help organize my shop on Webster Avenue in the Bronx and
became a shop store. We organized because of increasingly low wages, abusive bosses
who stole our wages and our tips, and because of the occupational health and safety
hazards.

Before we unionized we could have accidental damages to cars, a broken mirror or a torn
carpet, deducted from our paychecks or taken by our tips by the management. It’s not
uncommon to hear a carwash worker say that they work 60 to 70 hours per week doing
10 to 12 hours a day, six to seven days a week. We do it because it takes that many hours
to earn enough to live on.

When | work at Webster we work 28 workers. We pool tips and we have to share with
everybody working in the shift. The guy who scrubs the cars gets the same amount as the
guy who cleans the pit and the same as the guy in the management office sweeping the
floor. Back then, before the union, | worked 60, 70 hours and would end the week with
350 per week. Back then, before the union, I worked 60 to 70 hours and it would end the
week with 350 for the week. Now, thanks to the fight for 15 wages are slightly better.
But it’s not enough because the minimum wage is still not enough to live on and tips are
inconsistent. We are at the mercy of the weather, the seasons, the generosity of each
patron.

On top of the low wages carwash workers have to deal with hazardous conditions and a
lack of interest by employers to ensure we are all working in a safe environment. On top
of low wages carwash workers have to work under extreme temperatures, exposed to
excessive heat and little or no shape while doing physically demanding work. We also
work with notorious chemicals every day with inadequate personal protection equipment.
We use harsh detergents to clean the cars and acid cleaners to clean the rims. Thank you.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Patricio Santiago, followed by Carlos Castianos.

Patricio Santiago: Good morning, my name is Patricio Santiago and I’'m a carwash
worker at Main Street Carwash. I’m one of the thousands of working men and women
throughout the state that are subjected to subminimum wage. And I’'m a member of the
Retail Wholesale and Department Store Union and I’ve been working as a carwash
worker for eight years.

At the carwash | work in front where | do a lot of different jobs but I specialize in
detailing. Detailing work in difficult and a real skill. Not just anyone can do a good job
detailing a car. So, I know when I receive a tip it’s because the customer is happy with
my work.

So, not only is detailing a skillful job but one that can be dangerous. We often work with
intense toxic chemicals...

| hope that we are respecting our worker here. Please, thank you.

We often work with intense and toxic chemicals. The washes are very effective at
cleaning cars but potentially very hazardous to humans. | understand this might be very
dangerous to my long-term health and I continue to do it in order to provide for my
family.

For all this dedication and skill, it takes to detail a car, | am still paid with a subminimum
wage. | have worked in this carwash for a long time. | can remember that before we
even had a union we were victims of wage theft. The employer would steal our tips and
would use to pay for broken bumpers, antennas and other parts of the car that were
damaged while going through a carwash.  Thankfully once our union came in they
helped us to stop wage theft. They even worked with Attorney General Schneiderman to
win $4.2 million in lawsuits for me and my other coworkers.

None the less a different form of wage theft and tip stealing still exists. It is considered
legal by the government. With the tip credit in place worker like me have our tips taken
from us. If, for instance, we have a good day and make lots of money in tips then we turn
in and make less money in actual salary. And the tips are supposed to make up for it. In
my mind and the mind of other coworkers this is stealing from our tips that we worked
for. 1 need tips to make a higher total amount of money because | need to support my
three children and my wife. My three children are still in school and everybody depends
on me to support them. On top of that | send money to my parents in Mexico as well as
my siblings that are still in school. | need a good wage to be there for my family.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Carlos Castianos, followed by Ramon Perez.
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Carlos Castianos: Good morning, my name is Carlos Castianos and I’'m a carwash
worker at Jumar Carwash. ’m grateful for the opportunity Governor Cuomo and
Commissioner Reardon have given me and my colleagues to testify on this issue.

| am one of the thousands of working men and women throughout the state that are
subjected to a subminimum wage. And | am a member of the Retail Wholesale and
Department Store Union. And | have been working as a carwash worker for six years.
At the carwash I specialize in vacuuming car carpets and brushing and drying cars. The
work is demanding and | am on my feet all day. | am forced to come into contact with
dangerous chemicals. At times me and my other coworkers actually feel the chemicals
on our skin and in our lungs. I’'m putting myself at risk by doing this job.

Customers tip us because they recognize the difficult nature of our job. And now they
give us extra money with help to show their appreciation. They do not give us money
with the thought that their tipping will have a serious impact on our overall financial
status. Often workers from non-union shops can be victims of wage theft and are only
paid subminimum wage regardless of the number of tips that they receive. Because | am
a member of a union | always make at least the minimum wage. However, at times this
can be very frustrating as we do earn tips even when business is bad and we’re not given
those tips in addition to the minimum wage. With that, when we make lots of money in
tips we will also make much more with a standard minimum wage because the
subminimum wage is low.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.

Carlos Castianos: We deserve to make an actual wage and have tips...
Female: Thank you.

Carlos Castianos: ...Complementary to the One Wage.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.

Male: Well you all are very loud back there, I can’t translate, so you’ll have to wait. I
have one more person too, so you can all yell all you want.

Commissioner Reardon: Alright, alright. Thank you. There’s one person running that
meeting and she’s sitting up here. Thank you very much. Ramon Perez, followed by
Brianna Humphrey.

Ramona: Okay, after Brianna the next testifiers are Donald Yu, Kyong Eun Pak, Kyong
sook Bae, Matthew Cohan, and Sun Jie Kim.

Ramon Perez: Sorry, into the microphone. We can’t hear you. Stop. Thank you,
Commissioner Reardon, and members of the Department of Labor for the opportunity to
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testify today. My name is Ramon Perez and | am a member of the Local 1102 RWDSU.
| work as a valet parking attendant at Stony Brook Hospital in Suffolk County. And as a
tipped employee | am subjected to subminimum wages. | have worked at the hospital for
10 years. From the beginning I have been someone who has fought to stand up for
what’s right and improve working conditions. Iled successfully organizing efforts the
unionize our shop because of low wages and unfair treatment of workers by management.

Today we earn more than the legal tipped minimum wage but we still rely on tips to
complete our wages to bring us up to the full minimum hourly wage. As you probably
know tips in for valet parking attendants are pooled. At the end of the shift we all count
and divide up the tips among all of us working that shift while the employer reports our
tips in our weekly paychecks.

For better or worse it rarely reflects actual tips earned. It’s always the same amount even
though our tips are never the same week to week. For example, we don’t earn as much
during holidays, when it rains, or there is other bad weather. But customers are not
always more generous just because we’re parking their cars in the snow or rain. For me
wages as a valet parking attendant are not reliable or consistent. | work 40 hours a week
as a valet parking attendant and 1 work another 40 hours a week as a cook at the college
because life in Long Island is expensive. My wife and | are raising three children ages 12
to 23, two who are still students and are living at home. The cost of living in Port
Jefferson takes a toll on a family budget. The rents are high, the food is expensive, and
the car insurance astronomical for me. There is no way | could get by if | only had one
job. So, my family puts up...

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much.
Ramon Perez: Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Next speaker is Brianna Humphrey followed by
Donald Yu. Thank you.

Deena Gonzalez: My name is Deena Gonzalez. On behalf of Humphrey representing
We the Servers from Applebee’s. First of all, why does the sign state subminimum
wage? Isn’t this a tip credit hearing? Isn’t it illegal to pay subminimum wage? Isn’t
everything that these people have been testifying illegal? And aren’t their issues more
about enforcing labor laws versus changing the wage? Their issues, ’'m not done, I’'m
not done.

Their issues won’t be fixed by increasing the wage. Their companies will still break the
law and should be punished.

Many servers left today because they were told they couldn’t sign up at the front door to
testify or fit in the room today evidence for the Fire Marshall clearing the room.
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But I’'m here for We the Servers. Sexual harassment is everywhere we go, guys. Come
on, whether it’s $7.50 an hour or $15.00 an hour. I’m unsure what we are here for. This
is not a pity party. I don’t know why you guys are putting up with harassment. Get it
together.

Since that’s out of the way. Hey, Governor Cuomo, keep your hands out of our pockets
or do something great for once. Pay us $15.00 an hour and allow the guests to tip us as
they please. We want the cake and we want to eat it too. The government wants to pay
us $15.00 an hour and tax us the servers even more. When you do that math it’s about
$200.00 a week. I don’t know about you but I make that in two days. I am very, very
outgoing, come on stop.

| am very, very outgoing and a hard-working lady who takes pride in everything that I do.
Only because of going into this waiter industry which taught me how to work very hard
and work pays off. When the guests are happy and they know how to tip the servers,
we’re taken care of. $7.50 is great but $15.00 is even better. It’s like in heaven with tips.
Save our tips.

Hey, Governor Cuomo, go Visit a nail salon with the labor law. Because they aren’t
getting paid for working. 1 speak for you guys too, okay.

We the Servers are able to work four hours and bring home a minimum of $100.00 but
only if the server is good at what him or her do. Save our tips. If it’s not enough money,
if you’re a server not making enough money, well do something else. Walk in our shoes
for an hour. With 15 people, 20 people with a check of $300.00, in a server’s mind that’s
a $60.00 tip. We go above and beyond to make these 30-people happy. If we get paid
$15.00 an hour and no tip you’re going to get shitty service.

So, Governor Cuomo, know that we work for our money. Common sense, this is
America, life isn’t easy. We want $15.00 an hour plus tips. When Governor Cuomo
comes out to eat we get crappy service. We want both. $15.00 an hour and tips, alright.

Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me. Donald Yu followed by Kyong Eun Pak.

Donald Yu: Hi, my name is Donald Yu. | am Director of the Korean Honorary
Nail Salon Association of New York.

Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me, excuse me. Hold on please, Mr. Yu.

Male: 1 just have a question. Why is the Board commenting when we have one server up
there you didn’t comment to one person that was over there speaking.

Commissioner Reardon: We didn’t comment.

[Inaudible — talking at once].
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Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me, excuse me. Nobody is speaking to any of the
speakers.

[Inaudible — talking at once].
Commissioner Reardon: Alright, calm down. Oh, great.
[Chorus of save our tips].

Commissioner Reard: Let me just make it perfectly clear what we’re hearing testimony
about today and it is about the subminimum wage. We are not talking about removing
tips from anyone.

[Inaudible — talking at once].

Commissioner Reardon: That’s up to your employer. We’re talking... Excuse me,
excuse me, excuse me. We are talking about your salary not your tips. Mr. Yu? Mr. Yu.

Donald Yu: Yes, hello. My name is Donald Yu. I’m a director of the Korean Honorary
Nail Salon Association in New York. And I’'m also owner of a small nail salon in New
York City.

First of all, we thank you Commissioner Reardon and the various commissioners and
members of the New York State Labor Department for us to have an opportunity to speak
our concerns.

The rent is going up every year. Property taxes are going up along with the price for the
nail supplies going up every year. And we also have more competition from our
neighbor nail salons offering cheaper price.

When I talk to the workers they say that they are making more money with tips from the
customers than what they would make with full minimum wage without the tip credit.
Keeping the tip credit will give incentive to the small business owners and keep the...
I’'m sorry. Keep the service price low. And it is also good for the small business industry
in New York State.

I’'m sorry, [ have a cold. Some of the small nail salon owners are thinking about closing
the salons because of this extra burden on their payroll or they may have to increase the
service price. That means higher price and less tip or no tip.

Last time we increased the service price the customer asked is this price including the
tip? So, we said no, no it’s just there are more expenses so we simply increased the price.
And then later the workers told us with the higher service price the customers gave our
workers less tip.
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Now, for those who might be worried about any nail salon owners pocketing the worker’s
tip, that never happens in the nail salon because the tip is always given directly from the
customer to the workers, not through the owner. So, the owner never takes worker’s tip.

Please understand that eliminating the tip credit is not a good policy for the small
business owners as well as for the workers and the customers in general. So, we oppose
eliminating... Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Kyong Eun Pak, followed by Kyong Sut Bay.

Kyong Eun Pak: Hello, my name is Kyong Eun Pak. | am the President of the Korean
Nail Salon Association of New York. I’m also an owner of a salon in Manhattan and
Long Island. We represent 2,000 nail salons around the five boroughs of New York City,
as well as Long Island and Westchester County. Most of our member salons are small
businesses employing less than six people and they are running on a thin profit margin.

If you eliminate credit toward calculating minimum wages they will give our
member salon owners an extra burden and might eliminate their thin margin of profit
altogether.

The workers make more money when they get tip from the customer. But once the state
eliminates tip credits salon owners will raise their service price. They will include the tip
from the customer and that means less money for the workers.

Some salon owners have already tried to set higher price, service price that included tip
from the customer. And the result is that no one like it. Customers don’t like it because
of a higher price. Workers don’t like it because that eliminates the tip income. And
owner don’t like it because a higher price means less customer or same number of
customer doing their service less frequently because of a higher price.

Many salon owners now want to close the shop. Please keep the current tip credit toward
the minimum wages. That’s also good for the state economy. Thank you so much for
your time.

Commissioner Reardon: Kyong sook Bae, followed by Matthew Cohan.

Kyong sook Bae: Hi, my name is Kyong sook and | have a nail place in Long Island.
First of all, I’'m not against raising the minimum wage. | support the idea of improving
wages for nail employees for their quality of life.

My issue is with eliminating tip credit because tip credit allowed the owners some
breathing room. By eliminating that we owners will suffocate. We cannot survive.
We’re going to die.



Subminimum Wage Event Page 41 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

Nail service is an affordable luxury to virtually all Americans, especially ladies. They are
highly sensitive to price increases. From my experience, every time | increase the service
prices a lot of my fellow customers turned away from my store because they keep buying
them at a cheaper price.

It’s simple. We will be forced to increase prices. Then our business will decline. Then
we have to cut down technicians working hours or their working days. I don’t want to do
that. And eventually many businesses have to lay off our employees. And also,
eventually many businesses, nail businesses will go out of business. And the employees
will no longer have a place to work. It defeats the purpose of eliminating tip credit.
What’s the point? In the end it doesn’t benefit employees if they don’t have a job to
begin with.

Secondly, Governor Cuomo indicated that tip credit was linked to a higher rate of sexual
harassment. 95% of my customers are ladies. In nail industry sexual harassment is
virtually nonexistent. We are not massage parlor. We are nail place. Our employees
don’t have any reason to get or stand for any sexual harassment to get better tips. They
just give better service.

Lastly, it’s a question of whether New York State can effectively enforce the law.
Otherwise people who cheat, there is a cheater everywhere | agree there, will drive decent
law-abiding owner out of business like me. It’s not fair to those who abide by the law.
So, unless it’s strictly enforced decent people will suffer as a result.

Okay, my fellow, the technician who worked in nail place. You sit and complain you
don’t have any lunch hour, you don’t have any overtime, you work too much. Please call
me. There are so many jobs. Itry to find a technician, I didn’t get any phone calls, we
are short of hand. Please call me, okay. Or if illegal place you can call the Labor
Department. They are there. Okay?

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Mathew Cohen? Mathew Cohen followed by Sun
Jie Kim. Mathew Cohen.

Ramona: The next testifiers after Sun Jie Kim we have Enu hae Lee, Melissa Fleishut,
Kevin Dugan, Anthony Rovet, and Muna Punel.

Commissioner Reardon: Is Mathew in the house? No? Okay, Sun Jie Kim.
That’s okay. Yes.
Grace Lee: Hello, my name is Grace Lee. | have been a part of the nail and spa business

for 30 years in New York City. During those 30 years | am proud to say that | have been
able to run a successful business that has been safe, fair, and lawful for everyone.
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| have employed over 100 technicians. Sponsor the employees to maintain American
citizenship and watch thousands of single mothers send their children to college. All
from a system that has worked for us this long.

Governor Cuomo’s proposal to eliminate the minimum wage tip credit is not a good idea
for everyone. This change will bring negative effects to our beauty industry. And
anyone running businesses will be affected. Small business owners will have to raise
service prices to meet the new increase in wages. The client will not enjoy or understand
the price hike and will pay less tip naturally. The may come less often or may stop
coming at all. The workers will receive an increase in hourly pay but lose in end because
they can make more money with an open tip system. They may lose working hours if
business owners have to cut their time to make ends meet. The outcome will be a loss
and not a gain. 1 am a small business owner in the beauty service industry and | am a
woman. I’m a single mother too. When a system is fair and just and when your
employee are treated professionally the system should not change. Please understand that
ending tip credit is not beneficial to business owners.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you, thank you.
Grace Lee: Their workers and to the client as well.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Unu Hi Li, was that, Unu Hi Li? Unu
Hi Li? Nope. Melissa Fleischut, followed by Melissa Dugan.

Melissa Fleischut: I’'m Melissa Fleischut and I’'m President and CEO of the New York
State Restaurant Association.

At this time, I can express no other sentiment than disbelief that after eight years, two
wage boards, two laws passed by the state legislature and signed by the governor that we
are once again finding ourselves here debating the tip credit.

A wage board was held in 2010 that kept the tip credit and increased the cash wage to
$5.00 an hour in 2011. Then the New York State Legislature voted to increase the
minimum wage in 2013. They kept the cash wage at $5.00 an hour but a wage board was
called again. In 2014 that wage board actually took a vote to eliminate the tip credit but
it did not pass. Instead they voted to increase the cash wage 50% to $7.50 an hour. Most
recently the legislature and Governor Cuomo enacted increases to both the minimum
wage and cash wage for tipped employees that are being phased in at various rates across
the state. Now while that increase is still being phased in we are here again discussing
this issue.

The idea that restaurant employees have been left behind or aren’t receiving annual
increases is ridiculous. During the past eight years tipped restaurant employees have
received increases of anywhere from 115% in New York City to 61% in Upstate with
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more to come. That doesn’t even begin to count the additional tips they are receiving as
menu prices climb since customers tip on the total bill which continues to rise.

The restaurant industry provides flexibility to its employees and the opportunity to gain
skills and rise to management truly fulfilling the American dream. We have more
women managers and more minority managers than any other industry. One in three
adults had their first job in the restaurant industry. Nine in ten managers started at the
entry level. Eight in ten restaurant owners started their industry career in an entry level
position.

Tipped employees are not overwhelmingly female in New York State but makeup 53% of
tipped employees in our state. During the next ten years job growth in the restaurant
industry is expected to slow to 0.6% a year and 6.1% over ten years in New York State.
That will make us 49" in the country just slightly ahead of Alaska. And that’s before
eliminating the tip credit.

Eliminating the tip credit would not make the restaurant industry stronger and it is naive
to think you can compare New York to any state the eliminated tip credit 30 years ago.
The only example we have to go my is Maine where the failed policy had to be
dramatically overturned in less than a year. Governor Cuomo claims he wants to stop
wage theft and address sexual harassment. We want that too. We ask the governor and
the Department of Labor to sit down with the Restaurant Association and representatives
of our industry to address the issue head on.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.
Melissa Fleischut: Eliminating the tip credit is not the answer.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Kevin Dugan. Kevin Dugan followed by Anthony
Rovet.

Jacqueline: Kevin and I just switched, that’s okay.

Commissioner Reardon: Okay, who are you?

Jacqueline: My name is Jacqueline.

Commissioner Reardon: Okay.

Jacqueline: Hello, my name is Jacqueline. And so far, I’ve learned today, the only thing
I’ve learned today so far is the Department of Labor seems not to be doing their job
enforcing laws that are already in place to protect us. | am currently a server and a
bartender for Applebee’s. I have worked for the company for almost seven years.

However, | have been in the restaurant business for many years prior. | love the company
I work for and I absolutely love working in this field. I take pride in my work and I’'m
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confident to say that my guests always feel welcome and cared for. The flexible hours
and the fast-paced atmosphere.

Male: Could you hold up for one second while we fix the microphone?
Jacqueline: Sure. Sorry, I’'m nervous too.
Male: No, it’s not you it’s us.

Jacqueline: Continue? | love the company | work for and | absolutely love working in
this field. | take pride in my work and I’m confident to say that my guests always feel
welcome and cared for. The flexible hours and the fast-paced atmosphere make it
possible for me to work and also run a world class color guard program for an under
privileged school.

| felt the need to testify today because | fear the outcome of this change will impact our
industry not only in a negative manner but | also feel that it could be detrimental to the
restaurant business altogether. Eliminating the tip credit could definitely jeopardize my
career and cause much hardship. 1 feel it is important for you to realize that this is
something that we as an industry do not want. Minimum wage is an unfair wage and it
will negatively affect everybody sitting in this room whether you are a dining consumer,
a manager, or a server.

| support my household along the side of my mother who is also a waitress. And if this
goes through we will no longer be able to cover our finances due to the dramatic pay cut.
| love serving but if this proposal goes through | will have to leave the industry and find
another job because there will be no incentive to work as hard as we do for the money
that we earn now.

| work in a safe and fair environment where we are all treated as equals with no trace of
discrimination and where we are rewarded for the work that we put in no matter our
gender, of race, or whether or not we wear makeup. | receive fair breaks and have never
felt taken advantage of by my company.

| fear that if we eliminate the tip credit my wellbeing as well as the others sitting beside
me will suffer. Please help save our jobs by keeping the tip credit.

Commissioner Reardon: Anthony Rovet, followed my Muna Punel. Anthony?
Male: Hey, your restaurant’s being sued for stealing tips.
Commissioner Reardon: Enough already. Please control yourself.

Anthony Rovet: Anyway.
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Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me, order in this room.

Anthony Rovet: | just have one question. Do we all know the definition of make-up
pay?

Commissioner Reardon: I’m sorry, what?
Anthony Rovet: Do we know the definition of make-up pay?

Then I guess we have some big problems. My name is Anthony Rovet. I’m a Divisional
Vice President of Miller’s Ale House. Overseeing six New York restaurants with
combined annual sales of over $37 million.

| speak to you today as a New York resident, an employee of the hospitality industry, and
a business operator. | have many serious concerns about eliminating the tip credit in our
great state. Let me explain why.

We employ over 600 New York residents and to stay competitive in hiring talent our
average non-tipped employee earns an average wage right now of $15.00 per hour.
Which is $4.00 above the current New York minimum wage right now. Our tipped
employees earn an average wage of $18.00 per hour when combining the required hourly
wage and their tips which is $7.00 above the current New York minimum wage. The
math is simple. $7.00 puts them way over $15.00.

| have never appeared at such a hearing like this. There has been such an outpouring
from my service employee vocalizing their fears with women crying regarding this issue
that I felt compelled to appear before you today. They know that the last increase in
minimum wage caused our business to increase our prices on our menus to offset the cost
of our business.

The economic impact of that price increase caused us to lose customers. We serve 2.1
million customers a year in New York. That had to pay for the increase on our menus. It
cost more than that to go out to eat. So, they went out less often causing our traffic to
decline which forced us to cut employee hours and jobs.

Eliminating the tip credit in New York will hurt the very people Governor Cuomo is
attempting to help. We will have to raise prices again. We will lose business. We will
cut hours and jobs. Guests will perceive that tipping is unnecessary. Guests will stop
tipping or tip considerable less and ultimately reduce server income.

In conclusion, I implore you as a New York resident and restaurant business operator to
listen to the constituents you are trying to help and the employees in our state. They are
opposed to eliminating the tip credit. It is a bad policy and will hurt them. Both through
job elimination and lower wages. The governor is attempting to fix something that
doesn’t need to be fixed.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Muna Punel?
Ramona: The next five testifiers...

Commissioner Reardon: Muna Punel? Okay.
Ramona: The next testifiers after Muna are...
Commissioner Reardon: Excuse me.

Ramona: Rajeshwari Nakarmi, Pushpa Bhattarai, Rita Sherpa, Goma Unzany Garoun,
Martha Mafay.

Muna Punel: Thank you, Commissioner Reardon, and the New York State Department
of Labor for giving me this opportunity to share my experience and comments about
Governor Cuomo’s proposal to examine raising the base wage paid to tipped workers to
the regular minimum wage. | am in favor of raising the tipped minimum wage to the
regular minimum wage and tips on top of that. My name is Muna Punel and I live in
Queens, New York.

I’m a nail technician and have worked in the nail industry for two and a half years now.
I’m also a Registered Nurse in back country and am in the process of becoming a
Registered Nurse in here. So, I am very much concerned about health.

We as nail technicians are not getting one fair wage and we have to depend fully on tips.
Tips are so fluctuating with days. For instance, weekends are really busy and days are
empty. During weekends | have to work while my friends are enjoying the weekend with
family and friends. I don’t get to spend time with my friends and family which is why
I’m here today.

And it also has caused me and it’s causing a lot of my friend’s mental health issues. Not
only that health is so much affected while working in nail salon such as eye irritation,
respiratory problems, arthritis, and mental problems like depression.

| want to share my experience that happened one year ago. | was going through a lot of
problems and also, | lost my family member, he was my brother. And | was having a
hard time to concentrate on my work because my brother died. And it made me feel like
| did not have the energy to go through my daily life. | used to work on Saturday and
Sunday and my friend used to get off on weekends. | do not have many friends from
back country so I didn’t realize while working for one and a half years continuously on
weekends that I need to enjoy on weekend. Because we have ups and downs in life and
then | went to depression because of that. So, during that time I would cry in front of my
friends and my coworkers and also my doctors. But because | was a nursing student in
back country and was a Registered Nurse | knew what was going with me. So, | got
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treated as fast as | can. So, | went to the doctor and | got treated quickly. | was able to
take care of myself on time because | was a Registered Nurse. But what about the
families who are unaware of the health issues? So, we as low wage workers we are
bound to work without concentrating on our health and because we have family to
support.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.
Muna Punel: Thank you, sorry.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Rajeshwari Nakarmi, followed by Pushpa
Bhattarai. Rajeshwari Nakarmi? Do | have Rajeshwari Nakarmi here? Okay, Pushpa
Bhattarai? No? Rita Sherpa.

Rita Sherpa: Thank you. Thank you for the Commissioner and New York Department.
Commissioner Reardon: Closer to the microphone.

Rita Sherpa: Thank you to Commissioner Reardon and the New York State Department
of Labor for giving me this opportunity to share my comments about Governor Cuomo’s
proposal to examine raising the base wage paid to tipped workers to the regular minimum
wage. My name is Rita Sherpa and I live in Westside Queens. It’s been 24 years since |
have been in the United States. | am a professional nail technician and have worked in
the nail salon industry for 23 years. | am in favor of raising the tipped minimum wage to
the regular minimum wage.

Rita Sherpa: And also, I have three daughters | am the mother of two kids. One of them
is still going to college. Two of them have already paid for college expenses but
depending on the tipped minimum wage | do not know how to balance my bills for
paying the expenses for my last child who is still going to college. Because I rely on tips
to earn a living, I feel compelled to work even when | am sick. | am 51 years old now
and there is a lot of pain in my body. I am not able to work like before when | was
younger. I’m also going for therapy as I have to take care of myself and sometimes I
need to go to the hospital and get bills which adds more to my expenses. If | do not make
good tips, 1 would not be able to handle all these bills all by myself. | have to support my
family back home as well. It’s not only just the US and because I rely on tips to earn a
living, | feel compelled to look for another nail salon to support myself and my family.
However when I try to go for jobs they would not hire me for my age and sometimes
offered less money or hours, and it is really frustrating for me. So as a skilled
professional | deserve to be paid more than the minimum wage by my employer and
thank you so much for listening to my story.

Commissioner Reardon: Goma yonzon Gurung, followed by Martha Maffei.
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Goma yonzon Gurung: | want to thank Commissioner Reardon and the New York State
Department of Labor for giving me this opportunity. My name is Goma yonzon Gurung
and I live in Woodside Queens. | am a professional nail technician and I’ve worked in
the nail salon industry for 21 years. Because my employer is permitted by law to pay me
a subminimum wage which is approximately two-thirds of the regular minimum wage in
New York, I’'m completely dependent on customer’s tips to make a living. It is not
enough to pay the rent and other household expenses. There are times when customer
does not pay tips. There has been times when it’s not enough to even buy lunch or a
metro card fare. Now in nail salons a lot employers take the good customers who pay
high tips. Sometimes she does not allow us to take care of the customers so that she can
keep the tips for herself. This makes our money left and sometimes we have to distribute
the tips among ourselves. My employer takes some amount from the tips and leaves me
only $3.00. How am | going to survive with just $3.00 when there are not any new
customers coming and | cannot even take care of the customers? Because | have worked
for 20 years, my employer gives comments like | need to retire soon. | know that our nail
salon industry do not get any pension even though | have worked for so many years.
How am | going to pay my bills, take care of my family and myself if I stop working. |
work for my family here in New York and at the same time | support my family back
home in Nepal. Because of earthquake my family back home were affected and we still
have not fully recovered. | have to continue supporting them financially. And sometimes
we are discriminated due to our age. Employers and customers prefer young nail
technicians and also they tip us accordingly. This breaks my heart because we have so
much experience but they do not see it that way. Tipping practice influencing
discrimination. | am a skilled professional and | deserve to be paid the regular minimum
wage by my employer and still earn tips. This is my request to the Governor to pass the
one fair wage campaign.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Martha Maffei followed by Gilma Garcia.

Female: After Martha, our next 5 speakers are Gilma Garcia, Jihee Kim, Lisa Walsh,
Jaesool Park and David Rubinstein. If you’re one of those 5 people make your way
towards the front.

Martha Maffei: Thank you. Thank you for the opportunity. My name is Martha Maffei |
am the Director of SEPA Mujer, Inc. on Long Island. | am here today on behalf of the
hundreds of women that my organization represents and the thousands of families that
live in poverty due to less than minimum wage. Many of the immigrant women will earn
low wages and there are no denying the economic contribution of immigrant workers in
our society tremendous economic challenge they face. In addition to
discrimination, sexual harassment, gender inequality, of hourly wages and cash
tips. There are people in our community who didn’t even know there was a minimum
wage let alone the employers who steal wages and tips from the employees. Last year
my organization helped 23 restaurant workers file a complaint with the Department of
Labor and the Attorney General for wage theft, intimidation, discrimination and stole
tips. The owner of the Princess Diner pled guilty to stealing workers wages and the fraud
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a class E felony. Unfortunately, this is not a unique situation. There are many workers
feeling victims of economic exploitations from their employers. Think about business
time when you go to restaurants, get your nails done in a hotel, housekeeper, the guy who
washes your car. These are people that we are all fighting for. 1 am very glad that this
side of my folks have the opportunity to bring food with how they worry the next day
they don’t have, for transportation, to pay bills, to feed their family. But I am so happy
for them they have to think about the other sides, about the other families because we all
are a community. We all are a society and we all need to live with dignity and have our
children have the same opportunities that they all do have. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Gilma Garcia followed to Jihee Kim. Gilma First.

Gilma Garcia: I am translating for Gilma. I’'m Gilma thank you for letting me be here
and for listening to us. Eight years ago | worked in a restaurant in West Hampton. |
witnessed my manager making the waitresses wear shorter clothes and show more skin
for more tips. And many times | heard that the more skin you showed the more tips you
would get. It was mostly so that men would get more attention and assist more
frequently to the business. Many times | heard that they would get touched and many
times would not say anything for fear. The payment we received daily was not enough to
much less provide food, for bills, gasoline, water, electricity.

Commissioner Reardon: Sir I’'m sorry you can’t do that during the testimony, please.
Thank you.

Gilma Garcia: In fact sometimes we heard that if you let them touch you or rather accept
sexual harassment, customers left you more tip. | felt | had to resign because of the
unfair treatment | saw and | heard that women waitresses received and also because of
fear that someone could disrespect me or sexually harass me as the other women in the
restaurant were exposed. For this reason | am here so that people do not have to depend
on tips for a good quality of life and are not forced to do other things they do not want to
outside of the rules of work. Many women who are also single mothers are exposed and
subjected to this abuse and harassment and it’s difficult to get their children ahead. This
is why | support the increase of the subminimum wage so that people don’t have to
depend on their charisma. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Jihee Kim followed by Lisa Walsh.

Jihee Kim: Hello my name I Jihee Kim I am nail salon worker and | have been working
in the nail salon business for the last 20 years. When | first heard about eliminating tip
credit | thought that was great because my pay would go from $11.35 to $15.00 an hour
next year. However more and more | am now worried that my hours
overall will be cut from 40 hours to maybe even 30 hours a week because my boss will
have no choice but raise the service price in order to survive and will result in customers
paying higher price. That also means workers will not be tipped. Every worker make
more money with a tip from the customer now. On behalf of all the other workers, |
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would rather get low hourly pay and receive tip from the customer. Anyway | heard that
same story, same situation whatever. I need a job, I need the money, I love my work, I'm
so proud my job. In conclusion we oppose eliminating tip credit. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Lisa Walsh followed by Jaesool Park.

Andrew Reynolds: My name is Andrew Reynolds and I’ve sat here since the beginning
of the testimonies and one thing I have to say is I truly feel bad for everybody that is on
this side of the room and to separate people like that | think was absolutely the most
unfair thing to do and we’re trying to do a fair wage.

Commissioner Reardon: We didn’t do that.

Andrew Reynolds: Secondly, my point is, we have a thing called make up pay in New
York State. Make up pay is when a worker doesn’t make minimum wage, the company
is required to pay the difference in what they made in tips vs. what minimal wage tip
minimal wage is. They are guaranteed minimum wage. Unfortunately, there’s a lot of
people that are cheating the system and that’s causing this distress over here and I totally
feel for them. It is way unfair. In New York State businesses are closing down
everywhere. If you look in strip malls in Long Island everything is closing down. We
have restaurants that have strip malls behind them with one store in them. Everything is
becoming automated these days. Go into Pathmark, go into Stop and Shop. There’s two
employee registers open with people that are actually bagging groceries, everything else
is automated. The restaurant industry will become automated if we raise minimal wage
and get rid of the tip credit. Now this situation that we’re dealing with here is very
unfortunate because it seems to me like the government is failing to do their job. They
need to go out after these people that aren’t paying these people fairly and make sure
these businesses are sued or whatever they have to do to make sure that they’re paying
these workers because | work for companies as well as a lot of people behind me that are
to the letter of the law and do pay people fair minimum wage. So we could sit here and
argue, but the issue is, is this is wage theft over here and that’s the problem. We need to
fix wage theft. Now when we talk about sexual harassment, New York City is just about
to implement a law where they’re going to require people to take a class to learn about
sexual harassment. That’s how you’re going to help sexual harassment. People that are
actors making millions of dollars get harassed. People that work in businesses making
hundreds of millions of dollars get harassed, teach people and try to help the situation.
Whether they’re tipped or not, everybody is dealing with the same problem. This is wage
theft, this is not. Help us as a government to make sure people are doing the right thing
out there then we won’t have this big argument. But we will become automated, it will
happen. Go to Chili’s you pay at the table. You’re going to lose jobs and it’s not fair to a
situation that’s already happening in Long Island.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Jaesool Park followed by David Rubinstein.
Jaesool Park. Jaesool Park. Are you from a nail salon? David Rubinstein. Nice try
though.
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David Rubinstein: Good afternoon my name is David Rubinstein | have a carwash in
Long Island. It’s simple, eliminate the tip credit and the unemployment rate will surely
rise. Why? As the price of labor goes up, more restaurants, car washes and any other
serve related industries will look to automate as an alterative resulting in employee
layoffs. Automation shows up to work. Automation doesn’t strike, and automation
provides a level of consistency that people will come accustom to. It’s already happening
in the fast food industry, restaurants and in the carwash industry all over the rest of the
country. Less full service carwashes will remain. Each carwash can employ upwards of
35 employees. Restaurants can employ way more. Do the math. Too many jobs are at
risk. Plus I know in my business my workers will not take kindly to this and likely look
for other form of work if tipping was now included. They do well on tips. They go home
everyday with money. It’s why they have been loyal and been part of my team for
upwards of 20 years. If it wasn’t good for them they would have left. On another note,
we know why this is happening. Some rotten apple spoiled the bunch. Corrupt operators
will still be corrupt and look for other ways to cheat their employees as we know that a
lot of this was pushed by the unions in retaliation of corrupt co-op carwash operators.
What are we going to implement when the next round of corruption hits? We can only
find the corrupt ones stealing their worker’s tips and not making right on the current labor
laws. Some go as far as steal their hours. Just imagine what other sneaky ways they’ll
come up with in order to take advantage of the system. What will be next? Find a way to
punish all the abiding operators and have a mandatory weekly hour requirement? The
potential for elimination of the tip credit will hurt small businesses. Its’ too much for a
small business to swallow. Are we expected to change how we do business overnight?
We need to figure out how we’ll cover this cost if this happens and pass it to the
consumer. This isn’t money that’s just sitting on the table. This added expense will put
many places out of business, people out of work and more corruption amongst the
already corrupt operators. My advice, just enforce the current labor laws.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Natalia Leal followed by Rosalinda Ramirez.
Natalia Leal followed by Rosalinda Ramirez.

Natalia Leal: Hi Rana Mendez is subbing for Natalia. Okay my name is Rana Mendez
and I’m here because I’'m support a one-wage fare. It’s very important for me

that the workers who receive tips receive them all. We work very hard for
that. 1 worked for about 8 years as therapies. | do different services and | work very hard
for $9.50. As a professional, $9.50 plus the tips you know it helped me a lot. Obviously
you know so many times | notice my boss she ah took the money in front of me you
know the tips. You know they put the money in their little envelops with my name on it.
So I caught her a couple of times taking money from my envelop and I don’t think its fair
because you know with a minimum $9.50 plus the tips could help me a lot. But as a
single mother you know divorced with two kids and the university it’s very hard to live
normal. Okay so | really feel like this is very important for us to receive at least you
know the one normal salary. | support this because two kids and the university with the
cars and all expenses is really, really hard so | really appreciate if you think about that.
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It’s not only the salons, the carwashes, its fair to separate people. As an owner |
understand as I’'m employed you know like its very, very hard to have a you know
everybody’s happen but at least to live normal with dignity. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Rosalinda Ramirez followed by Dulce
Rojas.

Rosalinda Ramirez: Hi, thank you for the opportunity, my name is Rosalinda Ramirez
and I don’t have the biggest speech I have it in my heart because I’ve been living in Long
Island for the past 25 years. I am a mother of two and I’ve been working so hard. I went
through all kinds of things that happen in restaurants you know between the little things
that happened inside when you charming and when you get good tips and then you get
excited and you say, “Oh I make this much money I’m so happy” and then the next day
suddenly change the position. They put somebody else and change you to some place
else. 1didn’t even know that there was a like a minimum. | was excited because | was
going to make my salary and tips and when I found out about this I, | start suffering
because everything reflects when you come home. How can you come home when
you’re dependent on the weather. The weather, especially in New York, New York’s not
place to truly having this and especially single mothers. When you are a woman you
have to move to apply your energy, your time, your heart everything because you cover
everything and at least, we should have like a minimum salary to feel safe. To feel like
we can at least put the food on the table. | feel that when | come to the stores, its not the
same me and my friend Maria just because we have different positions. If I’'m working
under tips | cannot buy the same groceries shopping. Like we are all mothers, we are all
ladies, what do you buy with $30 or $40 you buy nothing? It’s only 4 or 5 items and then
you’re paying like $100, $80 every time I go to the store. We are afraid to go to the store
lately because the cost of living is so expensive in Long Island and if it wasn’t for my
positive attitude and my temper that | really have to be a big fighter because my priority
is to raise my children in a proper way. They are my priorities and | will do everything
on the normal basic terms to bring the food to the table. So thank you so much, I hope
you can fix this at least something basic that we can plan and we can live under. Thank
you so much.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Dulce Rojas followed by Marianita
Julca.

Dulce Rojas: So hi, my name is Dulce Rojas | am with SEPA Mujer a Latino Rights
Organization. My role in the organization is not to lead or organize Latino immigrant
women and families but rather empower them to be their own advocate, to advocate for
themselves and their families and their communities. | have the pleasure and honor of
knowing powerful women and men that have come forward to speak against wage and tip
theft, against all odds of fear of retaliation, even status uncertainty. This is why I’m here
today. There are too many people being negatively impacted by the two-tier system and
this outdated broken system in Long Island. People we’re not even talking about, people
in the shadows. People that couldn’t be here today because they were afraid of
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retaliation. So Long Island has a large cost of living and this has even pushed out our
youth. And you can see it in the economic wealth disparities so the subminimum wage
must be raised to the full minimum wage now because there’s too many families that are
dependent on this. Families that you’re not going to see here today either because of
transportation, what have you or language barrier or fear. Many of the tipped workers
that we’re also not talking about and we also have tried to highlight was housemaids in
hotels, valet workers. My mother that spoke before, she worked at a spa. She didn’t do
nails, she was a therapist and she got tips and her tips were stolen as well. true that these
are things that we have to look into with putting in claims, however the reality is that it
does happen and if there’s no way of saying that you’ll still get your one minimum wage
it will also eliminate a lot of the confusion in the community where subminimum wage
and regular minimum wage. The average custom does not know who gets subminimum
wage. So this is very important. At SEPA Mujer working day in and day out also with
lots of immigrant women and families, a large majority are also victims of domestic
violence, human trafficking, sexual assault, harassment, abuse, rape, economic justice is
their key to freedom and breaking from a cycle of violence and abuse. | call on you all to
do the right thing for all New York tip workers not just a few but all on behalf of
countless women and families that couldn’t be here today because they couldn’t afford it.
Thank you.

Marianita Julca: 1 will be translating for Marianita. Good afternoon my name is
Marianita. Ilive in Long Island. I’m just here to share a little bit about what happened
with me. [ worked in a restaurant and at that time I didn’t realize that so many workers in
the restaurants are discriminated or exploited. In my experience working as a waitress
with tips, it was not a job well paid. I’d have to be very nice sometimes. | take orders
and because they thought I was Hispanic I’d be discriminated because they thought I
didn’t speak the language. And that happened to me a lot and the fact is I do understand
the language. And unfortunately this didn’t help the salary didn’t help pay for the bills
such as gas, rent, water. At that time I had 3 jobs and | never realized that what | was
getting paid as a waitress was not enough and unjust and it didn’t suffice the bad
treatment that we all had. Many times some of the other girls would tell me that they
would want to leave early because they were being sexually harassed and nobody would
listen to them. Many of our families depend on our income and our minimum salary
especially for working in restaurants. So | think that there should be changes in the
subminimum wage because nobody deserves an unjust pay and while many are being
harassed, discriminated or live in fear of being fired and not knowing what to do. Thank
you for listening to me.

Commissioner Reardon: Next we’re going to her from Eftihia Nomikos, followed by
Elizabeth Olwaldo.

Eftihia Nomikos: Good afternoon. My name is Eftihia Nomikos | retired last year after
working in the nail business over 20 years and now my only income is social security
because I couldn’t make 2 years any profit, I lost everything. It is not enough to cover
my cost so | had to looking for a job about 1 years. | finally got a job for 2
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days a week as a receptionist in a nail salon. As a senior citizen, it is not easy to found a
job so I was very thankful for this opportunity. But now my boss told me my have to
close her shop when the tip credit levelations are enforced because her shop prices are too
low to compete with such levelations. She can’t pass this cost onto her customers or she
may lose their business so now we are in dangerous of losing our jobs. This is the same
in many other salons. Please consider this point in how it affects us. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Elizabeth Olwaldo followed by Maricela Lucas.

Elizabeth Olwaldo: I’ll be subbing for Elizabeth. My name is Christina Serone. Good
afternoon, my name is Christina Serone, | am the staff attorney for SEPA Mujer working
predominantly for immigrant women, victims of crime in Suffolk County. Victim
survivors oftentimes cannot leave abusive relationships because they don’t have
sufficient funds or the economic support they need to escape. Generally, my clients are
employed in low wage jobs and many cases depend on tips to make end meet. | see their
struggle daily because tips are discretionary and it puts all New York tipped workers in a
vulnerable position. This is why | support the raise base pay of New York tipped
workers because for the people that | represent, economic power is very important and |
believe when New York becomes a one fair wage state, it will give victims of domestic
violence another tool to take back control of their lives. Thank you very much.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Maricela Lucas followed by Anely San Juan.

Anely San Juan: Maricela is not here but this is Anely San Juan and | will be translating.
Hello my name is Anely San Juan | worked in a hotel in Sack Harbor for 4 months as a
maid. My job was to clean the hotel room but oftentimes we had work more than was
required. And the supervisor would take half the tips and the other half was redistributed
amongst the other workers and she constantly harassed us for little things, insulting us,
calling us idiots. The manager would constantly steal our tips, taking tips and hiding
them in the linen. Twice | witnessed it first hand. After | also worked in another
restaurant in the east end, | worked sometimes 14 to 16 hour shifts with the base pay.
The supervisor constantly called us names and insulted as well. Even after closing, they
would make us work after hours cleaning, no pay. They would all divide the tips. In the
morning it was a family restaurant but at night so at night it was a bar and they made
waitresses to change clothes and show more skin and sell more liquor. Many times the
waitresses would come to me crying and upset because customers would yell and grab
them and they had to stay because of fear of retaliation. I left because I couldn’t stand
seeing all that let alone sharing their tips. I’m here today to ask that our rights and
dignity as employees be respected. To end labor abuse, sexual harassment and right for
fair treatment and one fair wage. And I think its time that more people benefit from the
economic growth and if owners are profiting its because of our hard work. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Eric Miller followed by Dean Cirella.
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Eric Miller: Good afternoon. Thank you for having us here today and thank you for your
patience today as well. The impact that this proposal will have across all facets of the
restaurant industry will be astronomical and with negative repercussions on all tipstaff,
restaurant owners and customers alike. From the employer’s perspective, we work on
razor thin margins in the restaurant industry especially for the seasonal restaurants like
ours. We have seen our profits shrink since the years we’ve been in business even as our
sales increase. The loss of the tip credit will be the nail in the coffin for the company we
have worked so hard to build. Having a tip credit enables the staff to have an appropriate
number of employees to maintain optimal service as well as operate on a substantial
profit margins which is normally less than 10%. The elimination of the tip credit will
force restaurants to eliminate jobs keeping only minimal staff and will reduce hours just
to make a profit. They will be forced to reform their business model, supplement the
losses incurred by the hike in associated labor costs, making changes such as
incorporating more technology, automated systems wherever possible to reduce the need
for the staff and association of labor costs, increasing menu prices to the customers. If
we lose the tip credit we will be out of business in New York. From the employee’s
perspective, your proposal will have the potential to cut their income substantially. Most
tip employees make the vast majority of their income in tips far exceeding the minimum
wage amounts, often doubling or tripling minimum wage. If restaurants increase their
prices to supplement the loss of the tip credit, customers will be much less inclined to
leave tips on top of the price increase. Alternatively, some restaurants may elect to
implement a no tipping or no gratuity model to make up for loss wage for the wage
increase. Consequently if employees had to work on a minimum wage alone resulted
from corresponding reduction or elimination of tips received, they would not longer be
able to support themselves or their families. The employees who remain would have to
work harder for less money then many employees and also face the potential loss of
hours and their jobs altogether. For our restaurant alone if this was to increase, the tip
credit was to go away, just within the first year we would lose almost $352,000 because
we have 4 restaurants in the Long Island Community. The results of moving forward
with the removal of tip credit will force us to make extremely changes to our business
model to make up for loss of profits or move out of state. We would not be able to
continue the growth of our hospitality company as investors would no longer want to
invest with us because their returns would be too low. It would cut our finances off
completely. Investors would shy away from our restaurant groups and the closure we’ve
asked. Increasing in menu costs, limiting staff per shift. Please don’t punish the
companies that are doing what is right, we are one of those companies that do something
right. Punish those companies that are doing something wrong. Go after those that
don’t’ do what’s right for the employees. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Dean Cirello followed by Monica Albanese. Dean Cirello?
Dean are you here? Okay. Monica Albanese. Okay moving right alone. Are you
Monica Albanese? No, okay Dean Kois. Dean Kois. Are you Dean. Nope. If you're
moving I think you’re the testifier. Suzanne Adely. You’re Suzanne you’ve changed.
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Christopher Malboro: My name is Christopher Malboro, | am a wage an hour attorney, |
sue employers who cheat their workers out of minimum wage in overtime. And I’ve
been involved in a number of cases with thousands of employees concerning issues
related to the tip credit.

Commissioner Reardon: Could you tip your microphone up just a little bit?

Christopher Malboro: Okay so let me tell you about why one fair wage is not fair to me.
One fair wage is not fair to me because it will simplify the minimum wage in a way that
will make employers much easier to comply with the law and not get sued by me and |
will lose money on my cases and I'll give you two examples. One of those examples is
what we call double dipping on the tip credit. So the tip credits applies to the minimum
wage whatever that may be. So for a regular hour at the end of the year it will be $12 an
hour in parts of New York State. A minimum wage hour, I’m sorry an overtime hour is
$18 an hour. The tip credit you only get once. It’s going to be half of that tip credit
which is currently $3.75. So if you take off that $3.76 a minimum wage hour is $14.25
an hour but what employers often do is take the $7.50 and then multiple that number by
one and a half times and they get a number that approximately $3.00 lower per hour that
they’re paying their workers possibly innocently. I’ve been in depositions where
employers have said, | always paid my workers right, and how much did you pay them
for an overtime hour? Well | paid them 1 % times what | was already paying them. Well
you just admitted that you lose the case. Now its just a matter of how much money you
owe them. I’ll give you another example and that is on the side work issue and there are
employers, possibly honest employers who have gotten caught on the side work issue
including I think someone earlier said that Miller’s Ale House had been sued for taking
tips, I don’t know anything about them being sued for tips, I did read an article where
there was an issue relating to side work at Miller’s Ale House and that is a situation
where workers are required to perform work that is not related to the services they
provide. And if that exceeds a certain amount then those workers would have to be paid
at the full wage for that work. And oftentimes employers are faced with a dilemma now
because we have such a complicated law they’re faced with the dilemma, “Well do I have
the dishwasher who’s getting paid at a higher hourly rate to go clean the bathroom or do I
have the server go clean the bathroom because I can pay him less?”” And on the national
level that $2.13 an hour vs. $7.00 minimum wage that’s an extraordinary amount and as
the minimum wage goes up that problem is going to increase.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Sandra Finley followed by Howard Taub. Is
Sandra Finley here. Somebody’s’ running. Sandra Finley no. Howard Taub? Howard
Taub. Okay. Woo Shik Lee? Hi.

Woo Shik Lee: Hi. Thank you for giving me an opportunity to speak on behalf of
subminimum wage. | work as a manager in a spa in Manhattan. | would like to express
my honest opinion on abolishing tip credit. As a manager of a spa, | am concerned for
employees and owners. According to the Governor’s plan to abolish the tip credit, I
believe nobody wins. Employers are worried about high cost of running their business
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while the workers worry about reduction of gross income. Workers in the State of Maine
suffered a loss of their income after removal of a tip credit. Employers in Maine State
didn’t hire more employees because of the high cost. Instead they reduced the work
hours for their workers. First of all, they welcome the one fair wage in Maine. However
they believe to make more money however their gross income significantly reduced.
Recently the workers cried out to return to the original plan which was that they want to
bring the tip credit back because that will bring more wage for them. We don’t want our
state of New York make the same mistake. Minimum wage in Maine already went up
but the income for the workers was significantly reduced because of tips are decreased.
The workers in the State of Maine cried out to lower the minimum wages and to bring the
tip credit back because they want to bring more income to their family. According to
what happened in Maine, I’'m very concerned for our fellow workers in your spot. Those
workers rely on tip credit and average wise about $22 to $25 an hour. If they receive this
one fair credit, the business owners will find a way to remove the obstacles to running
their business and they’re going to develop a new business model with no tips. Then our
workers will get paid a very minimum wage. | urge you to be mindful of this and our
owners will suffer because they have to overcome the high cost of health insurance and
other requirements while our workers are out. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Sangsuk Lee followed by Junghee Park.

Male: And let’s read out the next 5 names in case people are in the hallway or the back or
something.

Female: Our next 5 are going to be Junghee Park, Sanguk Park, Il Hyung Kim, Tanya
Lindenberg, and Kay Clifton.

Male: 1 will translate. Sangsuk Lee my name. First of all, | thank you for Department of
Labor to have an opportunity to have my opinion in this place, thank you. To my
knowledge, eliminating the tip credit may first sound good to the workers but it will give
extra financial burden to the owners. | opposed eliminating tip credit because my opinion
is the tip is based on my technique, my work, my service to the customers. Tip credit has
been a good incentive to the small business owners like the nail salons and if the tip
credit is abolished then the owner will be forced to raise his service price and that means
the customer will have to pay more price for the service and that means the customer they
may reduce the number of visits to the salons that will hurt the business. | heard from the
Korean radio broadcasting that there was some other states who eliminated the tip credit.
Eventually there were some bad results out of eliminating the tip credit | heard. So that |
believe that eliminating the tip credit will hurt the business, will also hurt the workers
because the number of days will be reduced or the number of hours will be reduced for
the business to survive. | cannot want to fight or argue with the workers when | have a
good relationship and as a result we oppose eliminating the tip credit.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Junghee Park followed by Sanguk Park.
Junghee Park, Junghee Park. Sanguk Park. Il Hyung Kim. 1l Hyung Kim. Tanya
Lindenberg.

Female: After Tanya our next speaker is Kay Clifton and then Meagan Torns, Marla
Cornejo and Jessica Charvat.

Tanya Lindenberg: Hello, my name is Tanya Lindenberg. | am against eliminating the
tip credit. Instead of listing many reasons why this is a bad idea and would not benefit
anyone, | thought I would quickly tell you my story and why | choose to work for tips. |
am a server at Applebee’s and have been for about 19 years. aside from other restaurants
in similar tip positions, | also worked at jobs that were not tipping positions. In 1998 |
got married and had my first child. At that time | was working in an investment firm and
my pay wage was $10 per hour. The state minimum at that time was about $4.25 so it
was a pretty good job and at first | had planned to come back to it. But, after figuring
daycare expenses, added stress of getting a baby ready in the morning and all the extra
supplies and out the door early, it did not seem worth it. | decided to work nights and go
back to serving. This worked perfectly for my family. | got to spend all day with my
baby, my husband would come home and | would get to go to work. | had my next 3 kids
while [ worked at Applebee’s and my decision to keep working as a server continued to
benefit my family. My health insurance I received from there covered all my pregnancies
and my employers always treated me right. As my Kids started school | was able to play
an active part in their school lives as so much of it happens during the day. | was a class
parent and PTA member for all their elementary school years. | was there for book fairs,
class parties, holiday boutiques, Thanksgiving, pumpkins, class activities, mother’s day
and so many others and | never had to take a day off. | got to know their teachers,
principals, parents and other classmates. In 2010 my husband got a better job and his
hours changed. | could no longer work only nights. Our youngest was just in preschool
so working in the day did not fit our schedule and I took a little break from working.
When he started full-time kindergarten | went back to work which was 2011 and the state
minimum was about $7.25. | heard they had an opening in the cafeteria at Babylon High
School. The pay was $16.00 an hour. Most cafeteria jobs do not pay so well. Some
schools, like the one | worked at plan out for parents, sell their own lunches. The money
they make pays the salaries. Most other schools use an outside catering company and the
cafeteria jobs hired through them they pay minimum wage. | got lucky and the hours
were great. after a little while I decided | wanted some extra cash, Christmas gifts for the
kids so I went back to Applebee’s was going to do it part-time you know just a few nights
and then with the change in the food industry for the schools we had to let some people
go. I was the last one hired so I was laid off and I just decided I’m going to stick to
serving and do that in the day and its still working out great for me. I’m still able to do
all the things I’ve always wanted to do for my kids. I don’t have to work 2 jobs. I get to
work part-time when | want to, fulltime when I need to and its always there for me and
I’ve never ever felt sexually harassed and I choose to work for tips because it works.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Kay Clifton followed by Meagan Torns, Kay
Clifton.

Kay Clifton: Hello, my name is Kay Clifton and I’'m an employee of Applebee’s. I’ve
been in the restaurant industry for over 40 years starting at 18 when | was trying to make
a living in the entertainment industry. 1 met my husband Michael and we settled down
while | continued to work in the restaurant industry. After getting married we have 2
wonderful children Elizabeth and Christopher. | remained in the restaurant business as a
server and a bartender for several reasons; we could balance our time with Liz and Chris
and have time for ourselves, and due to me being a tipped employee | was able to
contribute to our household income much more than if I was just on minimum wage. |
had several opportunities to move up into management but never did because | like the
fact that I have a set scheduled, whereas in management, your schedule is always
changing. But life quickly changed from the best of times to the worst. In a matter of
about 3 weeks my husband became ill and then passed away while my children were both
only teenagers. | held everything together the best that I could, even going back to work
and making funeral arrangements. This was only possible because | had the needed
flexibility due to the nature of the job I do. Since then, I decided to continue working in
restaurants. Thanks to this industry I’m able to afford to stay in my own home and keep
both my children in college. My daughter is in graduate school at the University of
Connecticut going for her Ph.D. and my son is at SUNY Oneonta finishing his
sophomore year as an undergrad. By working in this industry as a tipped employee, both
my children have no student loans and | would not be able to do this for them if this
legislation is passed. Another issue with the proposed law is that it eliminates the main
appeal of the business. Serve and bartenders often work long, hard hours on the move
without any rest. We as service and bartenders give the best service possible because we
know people appreciate it as well as come back for the interaction and tip us for our
excellent service. However, the main problem is that if this legislation is passed, the
guests will be the ones that suffer. They will have fewer face to face interactions with the
servers and bartenders because our employers will have to cut back on staff in larger
sections and will probably have to rely on the server module system for the guest to place
their own orders. In addition, owners will have to raise prices to cover the increase in
payroll and this will make it less affordable for people to dine out and our business will
decrease. In many ways, the service industry is as a whole would suffer as with the
guest. | take pride in my job and the way | do it. | hope that this legislation does not pass
so | can continue to do my job and do it right. Spending time with the guests, interacting
with them but also making a living where | can support myself and my children are all
the things | value and this act will shatter the foundation of both.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Meagan Torns followed by Maria
Cornejo.

Will Oblito: 1 will be speaking on behalf of Meagan Torns my name is Will Oblito.
Basically | just want to speak about the subminimum wage hearing obviously that’s why
we’re all here. A lot of points were brought up today, I’'m looking at it from my personal
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perspective how its going to affect my day to day operations as a restaurant worker.
Generally, we have something that’s called pays of service in our industry and that means
you have to be attentive to your tables, you have to make sure you’re fielding any
problems, questions, concerns a guest may have at any time. The pace in which we
respond to those are directly impacted upon our tips. | understand that the subminimum
wage is not going to abolish tips but by raising the cost of food across the board and the
other costs being passed onto the consumers, the excess funds that they would have to tip
us will then go to the establishments to pay for the increase in the food. So, essentially it
would be a removal of the tipping process. | strongly feel that minimum wage will elicit
minimum effort. I’ve worked in the industry for 10 years. I’ve seen people who are
genuinely greedy people who will actually be better at their job and give better service
because they know they’re going to get tipped for doing so, Jordan Caposi. Quality of
service is also very important in dining experience. As far as going to a fast food place.
You get an hourly associate there to take your order. You drive away, you look in your
bag its wrong. You go out to a restaurant you have a server coming to your table smiling
at you, engaging you, knowing your personal preferences and ensuring that your order is
going to come out correctly, not only so you have a great experience and so that we can
get a good tip and therefore pay our bills. Finally, the cost, the cost altogether, we’re in
an age where our jobs eventually will be phased out by automation. Lots of more skilled
people were explaining that earlier. If you look all throughout like King Kong, not King
Kong what was it, Burger King here we go. They have the automated soda machines. |
could definitely see restaurants putting on one either side and cutting the staff in half and
that’s going to affect us. So even if you’re raising the minimum wage but there’s no
shifts for us to work, it doesn’t really help us in the long run. Generally, like I say, I’ve
worked in the industry for 10 years, | work in an industry where we have discounts and
deal with a lot of kids, late night specials. I’ve been disrespected over mozzarella sticks
more times than | care to count. Why do | keep coming back? Why do I continue to
work there? | do enjoy the work but if the tips and the pay rate were to switch | would
have to re-evaluate what I’m trying to do and what I’'m already doing. If you’ve ever
gone out to eat and you had a good experience and you had a server be attentive and give
you excellent service, I don’t have a problem ever giving them money out of my pocket
and making sure that they are taken care of for going the extra yard for me. | think that
this law, if passed, is only going to be detrimental to everyone, the servers, the customers,
the owners and pretty much everybody else. Thank you very much for your time and I do
apologize for everyone being cranky before but you have to understand our industry runs
on cigarettes, coffee and Red Bull and we all woke up really, really early to be here.
Thank you so much.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Maria Cornejo followed by Jessica Charvat. Maria
Cornejo, is Maria here? Okay. Jessica Charvat, Jessica are you here. Jessica Charvat.

Maggie Raczynski: So my name is Maggie Raczynski but I’m reading this on behalf of
Brianna Humphrey. She says, “I’m a teacher and a waitress. I am writing this because |
am unable to attend the hearing and speak on my own behalf. | have been waitressing
since [ was 16 years old, that’s 10 years and | have worked both at a place that pays you a
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flat fee and establishments where you earn income from tips and let me tell you, the grass
is not greener on the other side. When | worked for a set salary, yes, | knew exactly what
my income was going to be, but | had to work double the hours | do to make what |
currently make waitressing. The tipping industry is what makes it possible for me to
work only one extra day a week from my teaching job as a waitress and make enough in
those four shifts to cover my entire rent. | actually made more money waitressing full-
time than I do as a new teacher. Yes, I don’t plan on waitressing for the rest of my life as
my only source of income, but this industry gives me a job for which extra income and
gives me a full-time job over the summer when | do not work. This industry is something
special because the reason food prices stay so low is because the server’s income is lower
because we are expected to get tipped. If you want to ensure your servers make more
money, why not make added gratuity legal in New York State for all restaurants. That
will even still hurt my income because | usually make approximately 20% in tips from
each of my tables. | have friends and family that can support their families pay rent while
working their serving jobs. if you take away the tipping industry, you aren’t just hurting
the industry at a corporate level, but everyone. You are hurting the mother who is barely
getting by from being able to take her children out to Applebee’s to celebrate their
birthday because the price of the food rose to a point she can’t afford it. You are hurting
the single father who is waiting tables to support his family while only working one job
because he makes over minimum wage levels at the end thanks to his tips. You are
hurting the teacher who works an extra job on the side so she can pay for her student
loans she made so she can get an education. You are not fixing an injustice, you are
destroying lives. Unless you work in this industry, don’t pretend like you know what’s
best for the people in it. Unless you have walked a mile in our shoes, don’t tell us what
shoes we should buy. Do you know that since the minimum wage of servers raised the
last time, the number of restaurants that closed went up. There is a direct correlation
between the two. You will see the prices at chain restaurants like Chili’s, Outback and
Miller’s Ale House rise and you will see an increase in the unemployment rate because
the number of guests attending these restaurants will drop due to the increase and when
the restaurants stop getting guests, the restaurants close down and the number of
unemployed rise. This is one of the few careers that a person who did not attend college
can do and make a livable wage. So yes, this may not be a system you know or trust but
people working in it wouldn’t be so loyal and stay in it if it didn’t work or wasn’t paying
the bills. Don’t assume that because we don’t earn minimum wage in a paycheck that we
don’t make the minimum wage and/or more because of our tips. We are hard working,
proud and intelligent people. We wouldn’t work for an industry that didn’t make it worth
working for. The word tips is an acronym, To Insure Proper Service. If it takes away our
tips why would we work harder to make the experience extra special for you? Don’t fix a
system that isn’t broken”. Sincerely, Brianna Humphrey.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Maggie Raczynski and Rosanne Keegan. Well
you’ve already spoken. You don’t get to speak twice.

Maggie Raczynski: No, that was Brianna Humphrey’s testimony. I was reading
testimony left by Brianna.
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Commissioner Reardon: Okay, I didn’t know she was Maggie. Okay after that its
Rosanne Keegan followed by Michael Saltsman.

Maggie Raczynski: Good afternoon esteem members of the Department of Labor, my
name is Maggie Raczynski and | started the group Supporters of the Tip Credit in NY. |
am a bartender and | have been working in this industry on and off for well over 15 years.
My group is filled with 19,000 people who support keeping the tip credit intact in New
York. We are a group, mostly made up of restaurant professionals currently working in
the industry. | started this group when the Governor made his announcement to include
these hearings in the State of the State Address. | wanted a place where industry people
could discuss and organize to fight against this change. | started simply by adding 3
friends and within 4 months the group has grown immensely. | have also been traveling
the state to meet with people who wanted more information about this possible change.
In talking to people throughout the state, | have heard many concerns about this issue.
The biggest concern of my followers is that this issue has been turned into a Humans
Rights and Woman’s Rights issue. The people in my group women and men alike do not
feel that they are being taken advantage of or that they are treated unfairly because of
their pay. We are guaranteed by law to make at least minimum wage. If our tips and
wage do not equal the minimum wage, our employers are required, by you to pay them to
us. But eliminating the tip credit, or the truth is however we make well over the
minimum wage. But eliminating the tip credit could have a negative effect on that. the
tip credit guarantees that servers and bartenders are allowed the opportunity to make tips.
While | fully understand that this proposal does not eliminate tipping, it could sway
restaurants in the direction of non-tipping models which are not favorable for guests or
employees. The majority of people I talk to are not in favor this and I, for one, do not
want to work in a restaurant where |1 made the same as everyone else. People also fear
what the restaurants might do is not be able to sustain this change. It is impossible to say
what all the consequences would be because the 7 states that do not have a tip credit have
not had one in many years. There is a lot of uncertainty when talking about this issue, no
one knows what will happen. But what we do know is that the current system is working
for the overwhelming majority of us and we aren’t asking for change. The people who
are asking for it do not represent me or the 19,000 people who support me and my cause.
| beg of you, please take into consideration the worker’s lives that will be affected by this
change in policy. Please listen to the people of my industry who love their jobs and want
to continue to be successful at them. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Rosanne Keegan followed by Michael Saltsman.

Female: After that we have Sigrid Meinel, Chang Gyu Kim and Maria Mena rounding
out the next 5.

Rosanne Keegan: Hi, I'm Ro Keegan I work at Miller’s. I’'m a mom and after listening
to everyone today, | have to say that | feel very lucky to work in this industry. This is an
industry that my company has taken care of us. We’re not sexually harassed. If we call
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in sick we don’t get grief. You’re sick; they don’t want you serving people sick, that’s
not a good thing. They work with our schedules. For all the kids that are working that go
to school, they work their schedules around their schedules. That’s important. You don’t
have a 9 to 5 job that will do that for you. You want kids to be educated today. | worked
in schools, I worked in offices making minimum wage. As a mom going through a
divorce, $15 an hour doesn’t cut it. You cannot pay your bills. I then proceeded to go
into waitressing. I’ve been doing it for 15 years. Yes I make $7.50 an hour but I actually
make $28 to $35 an hour because I work my tables. I have customers that come in. It’s
my family. | have customers that come in. | have gone through pregnancies, deaths,
births with these customers. | served a baby the other night I remember her being in her
mom’s tummy, she’s now 11 months old. But that’s important. It’s important to us.
People pay us tips for our service. By eliminating this service, by eliminating tips for us
you’re causing unemployment to go up, homes to be foreclosed on, that’s not what we
want for this economy. We have people fighting over here, that’s a different issue
altogether. They’re being abused by their employees, employers excuse me. We need to
think about all of us. We have the luxury of being able to make our own hours, make our
own pay basically. Yes, you’re giving us $7.50 an hour but like I said $35 how many
people are making over $30 an hour? Right I can pay my bills. | paid off my kids
student loans, can pay my mortgage, my credit cards, | have no debt. | can’t do that on a
9 to 5 job making $15 an hour cause out of $15 an hour we see $12. So in a 40-hour
week that’s nothing. You can’t rent a 1-room apartment for that. Please, please think
about all of these people that are still sitting here wanting to speak. Think about not
taking away this tip credit, it’s not beneficial. Restaurants will close. People are not
going to come in and pay $20 for a hamburger, not happening. They’ll go to McDonald’s
automated. Thank you so much.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Michael Saltsman followed by Sigrid Meinel.

Michael Saltsman: Hi, I’'m Mike Saltsman, I run a think tank in D.C. called the
Employment Policies Institute. In my time here today | want to address the two biggest
misconceptions in the debate over tip credit elimination. And here’s the first one, it’s the
misconception that California shows that eliminating it makes it painless and easy for
business owners in New York. Restaurants in the Bay Area, these are owned by
progressive, forward thinking folks who’s likely never voted for a Republican have been
petitioning for a tip credit for years and its because its not a political issue for them, it’s a
math issue. The lack of a credit in the Bay Area in California has caused an unusually
high rate of restaurant closures. It was a trend that was documented last year in 2017
Harvard study. The economics aren’t complicated. Restaurant prices in the City are
skyrocketing, up 50% in recent years according to a recent investigation by the San
Francisco Chronicle. Many owners have found that their customers don’t want to pay
higher prices, they don’t want to pay $35 for a roast chicken and so they’ve been forced
to close and the impact has been felt the worst in restaurants that operate at a lower price
point; diners, cafés pizzerias that are neighborhood institutions. We just completed a
survey of several hundred full service restaurants in New York and discovered that the
worst impact of tip credit elimination is on areas with a price point of $15 or less per
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customer. Nearly half of these restaurants told us they’re very likely to close. And I
submit to you that these folks are not crying wolf because after the tip wage was
increased in New York at the end of 2015, over 270 restaurants closed that following
year. This was after consistent years of restaurant growth in the state and in that same
year, all those restaurants closed, New Jersey and Pennsylvania saw restaurant increases.
So there really is an issue at play here. And the second misconception | want to address
real quick is this notion that somehow there’s a relationship between restaurant sexual
harassment and that its lower in states without a tip credit. A few months ago | filed a
public records request for the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and | asked
them to give me all the data on restaurant industry sexual harassment charges by state and
I’m actually presenting it here today for the first time and I’ll include it in my written
testimony. In the 7 states without a tip credit, 6% of sexual harassment charges come
from the full service restaurant industry. In the 18 states that follow federal law on
tipping and tip credits, 6% of sexual harassment charges, the exact same percent come
from the restaurant industry. The point here isn’t that sexual harassment isn’t a problem,
the point is that sexual harassment has little to do with how a state treats serving’s tipping
income. So with those data points, and I’ve got a lot more information I put in my
written testimony, | just want to close with one observation. | was here 2 years ago when
several hundred fast food workers in New York organized in favor of a $15 minimum
wage in a wage board that was empanelled by the Governor responded to their request.
Gave those employees what they asked for. Today as the server who just testified you
have over 19,000 people who have organized against this, and so | hope just as you
listened to the voices back in 2015 who wanted $15 you will not listen to the
overwhelming majority of voices who don’t want you to do away with the tip credit.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Sigrid Meinel followed by Chang Gyu Kim, Sigrid.

Sigrid Meinel: Hello it’s been a long day and we’ve heard very moving testimonies from
the many people who took the time to come here today. I’m just going to add a little bit
of a different perspective. my name is Sigrid Meinel and | am here representing
Progressive East End Reformers, we’re known as PEER, a chapter of the New York
Progression Active Network known as NYPAN. We have 900 members and followers
on the south fork of Long Island and NYPAN has 3,000 members and followers in the
state. We strongly support one fair wage and we urge Governor Cuomo to move quickly
to establish legislation to this effect. I’'m also here representing Neighbors In Support of
Immigrants, another east end organization. NISI works to make a welcoming community
by advocating for civil and human rights for all our residents. We believe in fairness
including a working environment that is equal, safe and just. Both NISI and PEER are
grass root organizations advocating on many local issues in the Hamptons. The
Hamptons is known to be a luxurious, expensive area on Long Island where the wealthy
and famous come to play. Barbara Ehrenreich a well known journalist who has studied
and written about low and sub-wage jobs says, “If a place is beautiful you can’t afford to
be there”. She described these workers as esthetically deprived. They can’t afford to live
where they work, they must travel long distances to their employment and most of the
jobs out in the Hamptons are wait staff and bed makers. Workers who do these jobs
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depend on tips that are erratic to compensate for sub-wages. A fair wage a minimum
wage at least would be something they can count on. We’re not saying to eliminate the
tips by no means are we saying that, its hard enough to live on Long Island. Our east end
community thrives on an economy of busy vacationers who come in droves for the warm
weather. But the economy would not prosper if there were no people willing to do the
service jobs necessary to make life perfect for the tourist. These workers in turn need a
fair wage in order to make ends meet. It is a myth to think that tips are so generous that
they suffice. Most of the employees | speak of live lives of poverty. 61% of the women
who do these job experience sexual harassment. Thank you very much for this
opportunity. Do you want a copy?

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Yes, thank you. Chang Gyu Kim followed by
Maria Mena. Chang Gyu.

Female: And after Maria can we have Jacqueline Arquer, Joshua Chaisson, Young Hwan
Kim, Sung Mook Kim, Yonjoo Lee. Please make your way down to the front.

Commissioner Reardon: Maria Mena.
Michael McGilley: Jacqueline Arquer she left.

Commissioner Reardon: Hold on our second, | want to make sure Maria is not here.
Maria Mena. Nope? Okay. Go ahead.

Michael McGilley: Good afternoon, it’s been a very long day, I’ve been here since the
beginning I know you guys have too. I just hope you’re still listening so we get to my
point. My name is Michael McGilley, I’ve worked in the hospitality industry since I’'m
13 years old, for over 30 years. I’'m actually surprised this hearing was held on a Friday
being that that’s one of the busiest days in the hospitality industry. Maybe a future
hearing could be made on a Monday night when it’s a little quieter in the business and
more waitresses and bartenders and servers could be here. | own 3 small businesses;
restaurants and pubs in Suffolk County. I currently employ about 100 people. Raising
the service minimum will destroy our industry and will eliminate jobs, cut wages for the
people that you’re proposing to protect. As it stands, at $7.50 an hour minimum wage we
are twice the national average for server minimum wage. If the minimum wage for
servers were to go up to $11 my bus boys would have to be laid off, | would have to raise
my prices 25%. Laying off bus boys and cashiers replaced with ordering kiosks and
iPads. The 25% increase in my pricing will most likely result in less customer visits.
Less customer visits equal less food purchased. Less food purchased from suppliers
means less work for delivery truck drivers, for butchers, for bakers and everyone
involved. This decision affects more than just the servers who are paid this way. My
servers generally make between $18 and $25 per hour. If it snows, if it rains or they have
a slow shift and they don’t make $11 an hour I’'m required to pay them and make sure
they do make $11 an hour. 1 think a lot of the testimony today were bad employers and |
would implore you to go after those bad employers and let the people that are doing the
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right thing and paying the people leave us cause if the minimal wage goes up, we are
going to end out of business. Employers who do not pay their servers appropriately
should be enforced by labor laws not by raising the wage. What stops the employees if
you do raise the wage from still stealing their tips or still whatever? In the past 20 years,
I’ve employed hundreds of people who have all made minimum wage, they’ve gone on to
be police officers, teachers, firemen and still will come back to work for me from time to
time. | offer this suggestion, instead of raising the rate and enforce the law of owners
who do not follow the rules. And, how does a higher wage prevent sexual harassment, I
don’t understand?

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Joshua Chaisson followed by Young Hwan Kim.

Joshua Chaisson: Please forgive me, I’'m actually reading the testimony of Josephine
Knote in my place. | spoke earlier in replacement of Richard Zoob if you remember.

Commissioner Reardon: Okay.

Joshua Chaisson: I just want to reflect that thank you. My name is Josephine Knote, I'm
a server at Miller’s Ale House in Commack. Here are a few reasons why we need to
keep the salary system we have in the restaurant business. In an ongoing effort to keep
afloat financially in the City like New York and its suburbs like Long Island and
Westchester, a person like myself must work many more hours than I would beina9to 5
job to supplement family’s daily expenses. The type of work that I do does not afford me
a fancy new car or extravagant vacation. What it affords me is the ability to work
flexible hours so I don’t have to leave my children with babysitters. This job allows me
to be able to place my 3 year old in daycare and also I’m able to pick up an extra shift or
two when my husband is at home and off of his job in the hopes that we may be able to
deliver the American dream one day of owning our own home here on Long Island where
my children can grow up and know their extended family and create memories. Its nearly
impossible to live in Long Island with a family of four with one income. Yes, | can move
out and go south where the cost of living is much lower but what will that accomplish?
The only thing it would accomplish is my children, myself and my spouse would be so
far away from our family and friends. | was born and raised here with my family and |
want our children to have the same opportunity we had. For any of us to live here and
have a decent life, having lived the American dream a family must earn a certain income.
$15 an hour when it finally gets here is not going to be enough as the cost of living keeps
going up. Waiters and waitresses in the restaurant business need and should have the
opportunity to make supplement a family income. We are not looking to live a lavish
lifestyle but for financial security. Working in the business allows us to have control
with whom our children are left, I and | am sure every other parent would much rather
have their spouse be home with our children over a stranger. A 9 to 5 job will not give us
this privilege or time flexibility. I’m not a business woman but I do know enough with
many of my years of experience to know that $15 an hour salary will change the way
restaurants do business and operate; 1) by the time $15 an hour is implemented it may
take a few years, with that fact, what do we do in the meantime? As the salary escalates
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from $7 to $15 it will certainly not happen overnight and this will take many years. By
the time the business adopts this new salary plan, lots of changes will be made. The
employee staff will be cut down to a minimum to cover shifts, many people will lose
their jobs, this | assure you. a restaurant must pay the new salary regardless of the
number of patrons sitting at the table, this will be a tough task. 3) if I may repeat, the
increased cost to operate businesses will be passed on ultimately to the clientele the
people that pay our salaries presently. If the pay system is left way it has been the burden
not only lays on the businesses but on the customers as well the wait staff will keep their
jobs and the customer benefits by receiving better service.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Young Hwan Kim followed by Sung
Mook Kim. Young Hwan Kim? Sung Mook Kim? Yoonjoo Lee followed by Christine
Colligan. Yoonjoo?

Female: Okay, after Christine we’re going to have Jack McCarthy, Michelle Sangiovanni,
Stacey Panzella, Junghee Cha, and Josephine Knote.

Commissioner Reardon: Josephine has already been spoken for.
Female: Sorry about that. Let’s have Ryan Kim after that.

Yoonjoo Lee: Good afternoon. By the my pay into minimum wage
you are not helping me but hurting me. | work hard at a nail salon to receive
tips. If I want to receive just minimum wage | will go to out find job McDonalds or

. You are taking my hard earned money by remove the credit the owner will
raise the service price then customers will no longer give tip. Many customers tip
because of the great work that | do. Please understanding my income comes from mostly
tips. This will also harm many business and they will no longer be able to afford to keep
same number of workers they employ. Before costing many people’s their job, this will
do more harm than good. I don’t want to work 2 or 3 jobs to make up my income. With
one fair wage | could not survive in New York. | did the consistent tip income to support
my family. Please let it stay as it is now. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you very much. Christine Colligan followed by Jack
McCarthy. Christine, is there a Christine Colligan? Are you Christine? Jack McCarthy.

Male: Jack McCarthy left early Pam Winberry is going to speak in his place.

Pam Winberry: Hello, to the Department of New York Labor, please consider leaving
the tip credit alone. As a restaurant worker who lives off tips for the last 15 years, | can
only tell you a little of my story to understand how | feel and what will happen to me and
many of the others like me if we receive minimum wage and eliminate the tip credit. If
this tip credit goes away and people realize | made minimum wage, | can almost bet
people will stop tipping so much. If this happens and for some reason | only make the
minimum wage which will soon be $12 an hour with no tip credit | will no longer be able
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to live in New York. When they raised the minimum wage for tipped workers to $7.50
an hour, over 400 restaurants had to close their doors in this state. We heard about Maine
already it didn’t work out. California eliminated the tip credit, they have the highest rate
of poverty and I’m sure its added to the list. Since 19 I had to provide for myself. I'm
not from a rich family but neither poor, just making it as most families on Long Island
are. Long Island is considered one of the most expensive places to live in the US. Taxes
alone in New York I’ll never be able to afford a house. I’ve pretty much accepted that.
If I afford it and barely make it I’ll need help from a partner. Remember when we cried
as kids and our parents said, “I’ll give you something to cry about” we thought they were
going to hit us but instead they destroyed the housing market and quadrupled college
tuition. Unfortunately, with my parents struggling to make ends meet and pay our bills
on time and have a nice house on Long Island with 4 kids provide food on the table, |
wasn’t given this opportunity to go to college. I did well in high school but not enough
for a full ride. I was only able to afford community college. Learned quick what the real
world was for a 20 something year old fresh out of high school and community college,
bills. Parents started charging me rent to make ends meet. | decided to move out and get
my own apartment. If | had to pay to live at home | might as well have my own. $1000 a
month for rent not including utilities, cost of living, gas for my car, doctors appointments,
prescriptions, groceries, health insurance, car payment, car insurance, phone bill, two cats
| have expenses for, gym membership, going out enjoying life, going out to eat
sometimes with my friends and family, enjoying something fun on the weekend, all of
those things I jut mentioned I wouldn’t be able to afford if I didn’t make the tips I do
today. Minimum wage is a pay cut for severs. $12 an hour and tax gone. let me break it
down quick, if I work a quick 4 hour shift and make $100 an hour, $100 with my $7.50
tipped minimum wage, do the math, that’s almost $30 an hour, 30 not 12. most of my
friends who went to college and have 100 grand debt in college loans would never be
able to pay them off with $12 minimum wage. Why do you think most college students
work as servers and have these jobs? For tips. They have to pay off these ridiculous
loans and degrees they don’t have jobs for. They can’t even get a teaching job.
Nobody’s hiring, most people with degrees are working blue collar jobs and get by and
able to afford to live on Long Island. Sometimes I regret not getting a college degree but
then again I don’t have that kind of debt. What’s worse no college or no job with a
degree and college loans, I don’t know. Either way as tipped employees we need this tip
credit to remain the same or everything will change. Prices at restaurants will go up to
pay this minimum wage. Small restaurants won’t make it. Most of your favorite
restaurant bartenders are going to find other easier jobs, lose their jobs in general. Why
wouldn’t we just go work minimum wage for the same minimum work as a register
worker. As a bartender a.k.a. your therapist because let’s be honest, half of my job is
listening to people’s problems and being there to listen and serve them best I can, some
of these I have to offer, let’s be honest, people are lonely and go out to eat, way of the
house...

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you.

Pam Winberry: | would say goodbye to all those things. Everything.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Michelle Sangiovanni followed by Stacey Panzella.
Michele Sangiovanni are you here? Nope. Stacey Panzella? Stacey Panzella. Junghee
Cha. Ryan Kim. Sue Kim. Kyeong soon Lee. Seung Lee. Jane Kwak. Diane
Bonavito. Laura Russo.

Female: | am not Laura Russo, | have her written testimony. Hi, my name is Laura
Russo, I'm 26 years old and I worked at Applebee’s for almost 10 years. I started
working there since | was a senior in high school. | tried out a few colleges and quickly
learned college just wasn’t for me. People always ask me why after all these years I
choose to stay in the industry and the answer is simple, the money that | make. | take
pride in my job and make what | make because of how well | do it. For most of my life
my mother has been a single parent. Between her, my sister and myself, we support our
household. All of the costs are split 3 days. For my mom and my sister who are both
college educated, they struggle to meet ends meet so where I can | pick up a shift and
when I get the quick cash I give it to them. That’s where my job comes in to play. If the
tip credit is removed I’d be in the same predicament as the other 2/3 of my household.
Living on Long Island is hard enough with the way things are now. If the tip credit is
removed where does that leave us? Who would try to make the guests feel wanted?
Who’s to say we would even be serving? If we’re all getting paid the same what’s to stop
our managers from making us wash the dishes instead? Who would want to work a
Friday night or Saturday night when you can make the same amount of money on a
Sunday or Monday morning? There are many things that servers deal with. Examples,
difficult orders, difficult people, etc. though we are not victims of sexual harassment,
let’s be realistic, not every person you come into contact with is a walk in the park. No
matter what job you have, we all have to deal with difficulties. Our incentive to work
busy shifts and give impeccable guest service is the money. It’s what keeps the world
moving. If we lose the tip credit who knows what will come of the entire guest
experience. Dinner and a movie which makes fun date night will now be, “Well who
wants to go out to eat when the menu prices have skyrocketed, will we even get good
service?” No dip credit means fewer jobs which leads to bigger sections which leads to
no attentiveness. As a server and a customer I don’t want to lose the tip credit. We are
fine with how things are now, let’s continue to keep everything how it is and let’s focus
on the bigger issues in this state. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Ah was that Diane or Laura? Laura. Andrew Atsidakos,
Andrew Atsidokas going once. Denise Cuiffo. You’ve turned into Denise.

Female: My entire staff had to go to work.
Commissioner Reardon: | may do that too.
Female: And I hate public speaking guys.

Commissioner Reardon: It’s not so public now.
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Female: My name is Denise Cuiffo. | currently work at the Applebee’s in Lindenhurst.
I’ve been in the restaurant business for almost 27 years. I started as a host and worked
my way through all of the front of the house positions before becoming a full-time
manager almost 21 years ago. In the first 6 years being in a tipped position | paid for a
wedding, bought a car, paid my rent, had my first child and saved enough money for
almost a year of leave time after his birth. | have a few points that | would like for you to
consider when deciding whether eliminating tip credit is a good idea. Applebee’s on
Long Island currently employs about 800 people in tipped positions who currently earn
an average of $25 per hour according to their declared wages. A great many of our team
are single income earners who provide for themselves and their family with what they
earn on waiting tables or bartending. Just under 1/3 of our team members take advantage
of our company sponsored health insurance at an average cost of $101 per week. Via
sick math, $25 an hour at a 40 hour a work week, that’s $1000 before taxes, after health
insurance $899 per week. Take away the tip credit that server bartender now ears $440
so after health insurance before taxes, $339 per week. Asking for someone to work less
than for half of what they’re currently earning is unfair. Many people will argue that as
long as the server continues to give great service they will be tipped. | can tell you that
businesses cannot afford to increase payroll and will have no choice but to cut positions,
reduce hours, force those servers and bartenders to take care of more people and do more
tasks in that store that will take time away from the guests and greatly diminish the level
of service that they can give to a table. Now remember not great service equals not great
tips. When tipped employee minimum wage went from $5.00 to $7.50 per hour my
location alone reduced the number of front of the house shifts by 22 per week that’s the
equivalent of 4 % full-time workers. So not only are employees going to earn less per
hour, they’re going to potentially lose their jobs. Tipped workers are against this
happening. Yes, there are groups where people who are out there that claim they speak
for the workers, you saw a lot of them today. | can tell you that they do not. I’ve spoken
to so many tipped workers and they’re happy with the way they earn their living.

They’re not living in poverty. They’re not an underserved part of the community, most
are doing what they love for a great amount of money with a great amount of pride.
Many of them have given up the career that they went to college for in favor of waiting
tables because they do it well, they enjoy the flexible schedule, meeting new people, and
the satisfaction of earning the great tip. Don’t let people tell you that this is a facial or
gender inequality issue. It is not. Speak to the workers, listen to what they have to say.
As you’ve been told, the people that spoke today didn’t belong at this meeting, they
belong in your office complaining about their employers. Your job is to make sure that
their employers are paying them correctly. They are not paying them correctly. We as a
company pay our employees the tipped minimum and we base it to $11 an hour when we
are required to. We have payroll reports that we run every single week. None of my staff
is suffering. 25% of the people that you saw here today are my staff and they are behind
me and | am here speaking on their behalf not mine. They make more money than I do. |
assure you | work way more hours and they make more money than I do. We just all
love what we do and we want it to stay the way that it is. Thank you.
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Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Sun Woo Chung, Sun Woo Chung. Jason Edone.
Jason. And then after Jason it’s Jennifer Bono.

Female: Okay after Jason we’re going to have Kevin Messina, Jackie Bauer, Lawrence
Torini, Brian Arons, and Cassie Reda.

Jason Edone: Good afternoon everyone. I’m here to speak on behalf of Jason Edone.
Jason had to leave today to report to work. My name is Jason Edone and | currently work
at Cassie’s Restaurant in Orangeburg, New York. I have been a server since 2002
working at Applebee’s to help with college expenses. In 2004 I started my last year at
Pace University. When | went to my first class | was told to leave and go to the

office. They told me that | had not paid my entire bill for the semester,
would have to pay the balance of $5000 by the end of October. This was due to my
father emancipating me from my parents divorce agreement and him not paying his share
of my college tuition. | ended up working almost 86 hours a week as a server/bartender
and was able to earn the money to finish my degree. In 2005 | found a full-time job in
my field of study and left serving. In 2008 | moved out of my house and needed extra
money to pay rent. | went back to the service industry part-time at Cassie’s Restaurant in
Orangeburg to pay rent as | knew this was the best option to earn a high hourly rate while
working minimal hours. While at Cassie’s I met my wife who still works there. We have
two beautiful children Aubrey in 2012 and Jackson in 2015. In 2016 we found out that
our in-laws were moving out of state and my mother-in-law would not be able to watch
our children during the day. We had to figure out if we could afford daycare or if my
wife needed to become a stay at home mom. We decided on the latter but to make up the
loss in wages my wife picked up 2 extra shifts a week at Cassie’s. Currently we work
about 34 hours a week combined as service/bartenders. We bring home about $850 to
$1150 each week before taxes, about $25 to $30 on average with tips. If the tip credit is
abandoned and we go to $15 an hour rate for all we would make less than we are now
which we cannot afford. Our hourly rate would double but our hours will decrease, our
owners will have to raise meal prices to afford the increase in wages just to stay in
business which will push guests to different alternatives and we will lose out on tips due
to our guests’ knowledge that we make a regular minimum wage. Without the ability to
earn tips, my life would not be the same. | may not have never graduated college, been
able to afford rent, met my wife and have two amazing children. We live off tips not our
wages. Tipping is essential to the service industry. It makes servers and bartenders
provide a better service to the guest by knowing that a poor performance will affect how
much money they will earn. If everyone got paid at equal wage of $15 an hour there
would be no incentive to provide excellent service and we would just provide average
service knowing that we would make the same money no matter what. | have worked
with all types of people, ages young and old, different races, different upbringings but no
matter what walk of life we come from, we all know one thing, provide excellent service,
work hard and you will earn a lot more than $15 an hour.

Commissioner Reardon: Jennifer Bono followed by Kevin Messina. Jennifer.
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Jennifer Bono: Hi I’m Jennifer Bono. | started serving because it was the only way to
make a lot of cash fast. At first it was just a way for me to make some extra money but
by the time | got to college, serving because a big reason why | have no debt as a 22 year
old college graduate. Being able to make enough money to pay college expenses in cash
was such a stress reliever. Today | still serve part-time in addition to my full-time job. |
make about $160 in tips alone for two 5 hour shifts a week. If you include my pay that’s
$235 | take home a week. Elimination of the tip credit does a couple of things to us
servers. 1) Because minimum wage raises, food costs would have to also increase for
restaurant owners to afford to pay us. If they can’t afford to pay us we’ll be replaced by
computers. If ’'m one of the lucky that they can afford to pay, then raising these prices
would make guests not want to tip as much since their same meal just went up in price.
So | got from pocking $235 a week to $150 a week. 2) It destroys the incentive to hustle.
What’s the point in taking a table of 8 over a table of 2 which is significantly easier if I’ll
be paid the same amount no matter what. Eliminating the tip credit is basically telling me
to work just as hard as I do now while I’ll be taking home considerably less money.
Money | depend on to pay for my rent and other expenses. On behalf of myself and the
other servers that couldn’t afford to lose their Friday night shifts, please do not eliminate
the tip credit and take away the tips we work hard for. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Kevin Messina followed by Jackie Bauer.

Kevin Messina: Good afternoon, thanks very much. Thank you for having the meeting.
Thank you for coming down, | appreciate it. First | wanted to apologize to all those folks
that were speaking earlier in the day on behalf of the folks who are in the restaurant
industry and the business. That’s not the business we’re in. That’s not what we do. 1
feel very sorry for those people and we’d love to hire any single one of them because
they’re great people and they would do great at our jobs. There’s a lot of people still here
that represent the real restaurant industry. Those folks let me just tell you which laws
they indicated that were broken, Wage Theft Protection Act April 9, 2011 signed by the
Governor. Yeah, they’re breaking that. The Gratuities or Properties of the New York
State 196D, not property of employers. So | would hope that somebody is looking into
those issues and addressing them yeah. Because that is not the folks and their illegal
activity should not affect the people who are doing it correctly. So I just want to separate
those two issues. | do feel poorly for them. I hope they get a different job. 4%
unemployment, pretty easy to get a different job. I’d like to discuss the 25% increase that
will cost us. This is where the tipping comes in. You say, we’ll it’s not limiting tipping,
correct. But if you look at the Danny Meyer model which has partially failed in most of
his casual dining restaurants or a little closer to home if you look at the Davidson
Brother’s model out of Glens Falls, you’ll see that that doesn’t work. They still get 25%
price increase cause that’s what they need to take to be able to pay the people to work.
That’s it. You want to see the numbers, we’ll show you the numbers. But that’s what
happens. You take a 25% increase, the guests don’t have anymore money to tip. I don’t
have a crystal ball, I don’t know what will happen. Nobody does, you don’t, they don’t,
nobody does but I don’t think people are going to pay an additional 25% on top of their
price and then leave the server more money. Will they, won’t they, I don’t know. What
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they’re saying and I’m saying is its fine now. We’re making money, just leave us alone
and we’re perfectly fine. Fix those people that are not being taken care of and address it.
So I just want to jump up and say that’s basically all [ wanted to say. But that’s where
you get the 25% increase. There is no money left after that and that’s what we have to
take. That’s what Danny Meyer took and that’s what the Davidson Brothers took. So
that’s not a number made up out of thin air, that’s the reality of what it costs. And we’re
still catching up from 2015 to 16. More restaurants will close because we are still
catching up. Those numbers are there. People are tired into leases. When you sign a
business, you’re the person responsible for that lease. They’re trying to make it work.
They’re not able to make it work, they will still be closing over the next couple of years
and that’s all due to that 50% increase. So that’s the reality of the situation.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Jackie Bauer followed by Lawrence Torini. Is
Jackie here? Jackie Bauer going once. Lawrence Torini. Lawrence Torini. Brian
Arons. Cassie Reda followed by Sara Rabot.

Cassie Reda: Hello. My name is Cassie Reda I’'m 26 years old and I’ve worked for
Applebee’s in Lindenhurst for just about 10 years. The restaurant industry is all I’ve ever
known and I’ve always been more than okay with that. Where yes, there are things that
are difficult about the service industry and their cons, but they’re outweighed by the pros.
This job and the industry is not for everyone, | understand this and that’s okay cause
that’s where the millions of servers and bartenders come in to cater to you to give you a
good dining experience and to work till 2, 3, 4:00 in the morning. if you take away the
tip credit | feel confident in the amount of us will no longer care to give good service or
no longer want to work those hours because our tips is what keeps us motivated and
keeps us working harder and harder at our job. This job has always allowed me to stand
on my feet comfortably. | support 1/3 of my household and I could never imaging doing
so on minimum wage. The thought of working so hard all week where | average $25 to
$35 an hour and making less than that in a weeks pay is insulting to the work we put in. |
don’t want to feel punished for being good at my job. We make our money based on the
service we give and not because we are sexually harassed or feel obligated to do so, so
please don’t victimize us. Eliminating the tip credit is going to kill this industry and the
sad reality is it won’t be just us but it will be the guests as well. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Sara Rabot and followed by Amanda Broderick.
Female: I'm actually reading for Courtney Stein in place of Sara Rabot.

Commissioner Reardon: You’re speaking for who?

Female: For Courtney Stein in place of Sara Rabot. Hello my name is Courtney Stein
and I work at Applebee’s in Lindenhurst. I am 24 years old and I’ve been in the service
industry for 6 years. I’m against minimum wage for servers and the removal of the tip

credit. Removing the tip credit in New York would mean an extreme pay cut for a server
bartender like myself. It would really harm the industry that | genuinely love being a part
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of. I love working in the restaurant business for so many reasons and I’ve always thought
one day | would take my experience and make a career out of it. Unfortunately though
removing the tip credit won’t allow me to do that. I originally choose this path because I
was able to make more than enough money to live within my means. | help support my
household with the money that | make off of the tips and | would struggle severely to do
this on solely a minimum wage income. Also, many restaurants would struggle to
accommodate a wage increase like this. You may think this is going to help us but in
reality you put a lot of us in the real threat of losing our jobs whether that be from
restaurants closing or cutting back on staff in order to be able to pay a higher wage that
no one in this industry wants. We all love the satisfaction of working hard and being
rewarded with generous tips based off of great service and I know I don’t want to lose
that so please leave our industry alone, | promise we are doing just fine.

Commissioner Reardon: Amanda Broderick followed by Yi Zheng.

Amanda Broderick: Hi, I’'m the 138" speaker today. Nice to meet you. My name is
Amanda Broderick and I’ve been in this restaurant business since [ was 15 years old. I
am here today to not only represent myself but also the 100 plus employees from my own
establishment in Saratoga Springs that were unable to be here because they are working.
Working for tips, working right now but maybe not working if the tip credit is eliminated.
It is important for our voices to be heard because we are career servers who support the
tip credit. The threat of elimination directly affects our livelihood and future of our
industry. I love my job. | love my job. | am passionate about my job as a bartender and
server in a wonderful town of tourism and small local business. The restaurant
atmosphere has allowed me the most flexible schedule and a comfortable income. 1 like
so many of my colleagues know that we are commission based sales people. We control
our pay checks. Factors including schedule, sections, hours, attitude, work ethic and
personal relationships that | built for my establishment all weigh in on my weekly
earnings at this current business model with lots of hard work. My husband I have been
able to build a house this past November, pay for our wedding, afford two vehicle
payments, pay solely for my college loans and now hope to have a family some day. If
the tip credit is taken away my life will drastically change because the business model
will drastically change. We know this will not eliminate tipping but it will eliminate the
way we live off of our gratuity. | will not be able to afford the lifestyle and debt I have
been accustomed to over the last 16 years. | am here today fighting for my future and
your future of dining out. Restaurant income is based on relationships and work ethic.
By eliminating the tip credit you would be destroying both these things. This industry
thrives because of the human interaction and ability to multitask. In the city I work in
there are over 185 restaurants and bars. The bus position | started in over 15 years ago
would disappear. If employers are forced to raise the minimum wage restaurants will be
forced to lay off support staff like busers, hosts and food runners. This in turn puts more
task on those left decreasing the ability to spend more time with our customers and
supplying quality service. Menu prices will rise and customers will deplete. Already
thousands of jobs like mine are being replaced by tablet service, if you can call it service
at that. We should be focusing our attention to protecting our jobs not to cut our jobs. |
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did not ask for an increase for minimum wage. Organizations like ROC do not represent
me or anyone | know in this industry and | am happy where | am in my life. This is my
passion, this is my career choice. Please don’t take it away from me and don’t take it
away from thousands like me.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Yi Zheng followed by Nicolas Bates. Yi Zheng.
Nicholas Bates.

Female: Okay, after Nicholas Bates we’re going to have Libby Gallagher, Susan Mezera,
Zhong Ying Fan, Keith Gutstein, and Danielle Popik.

Nicholas Bates: Hello, my name is Nicholas Bates, | am 22 years old and | work at
Applebee’s in East Islip as a server among other things. I raise to say to speak in
opposition to the proposed elimination of the tip credit program in New York State.
Being a member of the restaurant industry for the better part of 5 years, | can attest to this
programs success. This program has provided superb opportunity to workers in the
restaurant industry for a plethora of reasons. Firstly, this program provides a greater
opportunity for restaurant workers to make above the minimum wage. | can count many
times where at the end of a shift | made more than what | would have if | were making
the regular minimum wage. Secondly, the tip credit program incentivizes us restaurant
workers to provide good service. It incentivizes us to work as hard as possible to ensure
good service. Thirdly, speaking also as a college student working in the restaurant
industry, the payment system works like a miracle. It is incredibly easy to let the pay
checks that we receive at the end of the week to accumulate in our bank accounts and
either live off the tips that we make or budget them out to add to our bank accounts. |
have saved more money while being a part of the tip credit program than I ever did while
working a regular minimum wage job. Lastly, should this program be eliminated, there is
no doubt in my mind that there will be labor cuts. Shifts will be shorter, morale among
workers will subside and most of all unemployment will run amuck throughout the
restaurant industry. | am a democrat, | believe that one of the fundamental tenants of
government is to protect the working middle class. | understand the desire to raise the
minimum wage. | also believe in providing as much opportunity as possible to the
middle class to make as much money as possible. Eliminating the tip credit program will
steal that opportunity from the very group that this administration claims it is here to
defend. Mr. Governor, | implore you to reconsider, Mr. Governor | implore you to see
reason and | implore you to support the middle class workers of New York State and to
provide ultimate fiscal opportunity for those who work in these types of industries.
Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Libby Gallagher followed by Susan Mezera. Libby
Gallagher. Libby Gallagher going once, okay Susan Mezera.

Susan Mezera: Thank you. My name is Susan and I work at the O’Brian Inn, [ have a
paycheck. | have been a server for 43 years. | love my job. And I enjoy the interactions
with my customers. I’ve never once been harassed. I earned my money. I’m not a
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victim. It is well known that the quality of your service and the attention to your guests
directly relates to your earnings at the end of the day. I’m not here for myself. I could
retire tomorrow, just walk away. But what | cannot walk away from are all the workers
that would be adversely affected if the tip credit is eliminated. With a drastic increase in
payroll, the workers that will pay the price are the extra dishwashers, prep cooks, line
cooks, busers, hostesses, the support staff who for so many are their first jobs in high
school, college or their main income for their family. They will be the first jobs
eliminated. For 43 years they were there to support me in my career. I’m here now to
support them and their jobs and every server in this industry. Please don’t let this happen
and don’t eliminate the tip credit.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Zhong Ying Fan, Zhong Ying Fan, Keith Gutstein.
Keith? Okay. And following Keith will be Danielle Popik.

Keith Gutstein: Good afternoon. My name is Keith Gutstein and I’m a partner with the
law firm of Kaufman headquartered here in Long Island. 1 also serve
as the co-chair person of the firm’s labor and employment practice group. I want to first
thank the community for allowing me the opportunity to be heard on this important issue.
I’m here today to offer my own insight as to why the tip credit should not be eliminated.
The Committee has undoubtedly heard persuasive testimony on both sides of the issue
from people whoa re certainly passionate about their perspective side and my testimony
shares that passion. For the last 18 years my law practice is focused solely on
representing employers in all industries and connection with navigating federal and state
employment laws. Whether it involves assisting companies and making sure they are
compliant wit applicable labor laws or litigating issues before the Department of Labor or
in court, our field of practice has become quite busy. During the last 18 years many
employers here on Long Island and in the City have confided in me and shared stories
about how difficult it has become to do business in New York State whether it involves
the change in minimum wage amounts based on the county and the company size or a
compliance with spread of hours which many employers still don’t know what that is, the
cost of compliance in this state is high and the cost of non-compliance is even higher. To
help off set these costs, many businesses including restaurants, valet parking companies
and carwashes rely heavily upon applying the tip credit to pay certain eligible employees
less than the minimum wage. Eliminating that tip credit would significantly increase the
cost of doing business and, this in turn would undoubtedly lead to the increase in cost of
products and services provided by those businesses. For example, one prominent
restaurant client of mine told me that the elimination of the tip credit would result in such
a marked increase in the cost of meals served at his restaurant that he would anticipate an
immediate sharp decline in business. He also explained that those customers who
continue to visit his restaurant will likely decrease the tip amount that they’ll leave for
their servers as there is only so much discretionary income a family has. Because of my
position, | have heard the growing chorus on long Island and New York City from
employers saying that doing business here is simply becoming too cost prohibitive and
sadly that chorus is growing louder. It is my concern that the elimination of the tip credit
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may be the nudge that many businesses have been waiting for to flee our state and if that
occurs, we all get hurt. Thank you for your time.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Danielle Popik followed by Rebecca Lanfrit.
Danielle Popik. I'll bet you’re Danielle.

Danielle Popik: I had plans on coming in here telling you all about how getting rid of the
tip credit would result in lost jobs as the cost of doubling pay would have to be
compensated for by an increase in menu prices. If these changes occur over the
suggested 2 years I’'m worried that the hike would be dramatic and noticed by customers.
I’m worried about losing business. I’'m worried that doubling the payroll will incentivize
automation that at a rate this industry isn’t ready for. This morning however | had the
opportunity to listen to the stories of the tipped workers from the other side of the room
and my worries seemed a bit smaller. It is heartbreaking to hear your salary is below
minimum wage because you are being cheated. It is appalling to come to work just to be
sent home right away without enough money to ride the bus or that you worked 12 hours
without getting overtime pay. And employers stealing tips, its despicable and you’re
right it is injustice and its injustice in the most literal sense of the word because what
they’re experiencing is illegal. Right now already that their employers can victimize
them with impunity speaks to the most serious problem here. Our government could pass
this law tomorrow and it wouldn’t matter. They could say they’re entitled to $20 an hour
and it wouldn’t matter because they’re failing them by not enforcing the laws that
protects them from predatory employers. They’re failing them because enacting the law
is hard, enforcing it is hard and maybe unilaterally making changes to a law is easier. 1’d
even argue that getting rid of the tip credit is the least effective and maybe laziest way to
solve this problem. I’m calling on anybody in this room who is a law maker or knows a
law maker or has any influence at all over policy decisions to do what would benefit most
of the people that were in this room today. Leave the tip credit alone for now. Focus
instead on enforcing laws that are designed to protect tipped workers. Focus instead on
seeing to it that in New York our employment laws don’t just work for the people who
are fortunate enough to sit on the right side of the room. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Rebecca Lanfrit and Rebecca is followed by Joane
Castanares.

Rebecca Lanfrit: Hi my name is Rebecca Lanfrit. I’ve been waitressing and bartending
for over 17 years. If I was only working my current hourly wage job | would probably be
living off the system. How is this helping taxpayers? | have a career | sit at a desk 40
hours a week for over 10 years now. I’ve always waitressed to make ends meet. I was
diagnosed with MS at 20, | raised my son on my own who is now 21 in college who
wants to join the NYPD with little and no help from his father. 1 would have never made
it this far just working in an office 40 hours a week or making $12 an hour or part-time.
I’m sure there are many single parents in my position as well that would agree with me.
This is also my career and I love doing what I do. In all my 17 years I’ve never been
approached in a negative way or sexually harassed by a customer. Eliminating tip credit
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will hurt us all in the end. It will hurt local businesses across New York, the employers
and the employees creating the trickle effect. If the restaurants fail so do the businesses
that supply them; the food distributors and the beverage distributors and so on. Raising
wages will cost the average employer twice as much as the increase in 2016 which
increased from $5.00 to $7.50. That’s a 50% increase. For example for an average
business with 40 front of the house employees, that was $100 an hour increase with an
average 30 hour work week that is $3000 a week. That is $156,000 a year for businesses
to have to pay their employees. Due to that increase it left people unemployed. Now you
want to increase it again 2 years later almost double that amount. Do the math. How will
this affect our local businesses and their employees? More jobs lost and more businesses
failed. This will also affect service, which again hurts business and other employees that
will have to pick up the slack for employees that have been laid off due to the increase.
What will happen to the employees that can’t work in bad weather conditions? You will
not get paid and the tips that would have been made on the nice days will no longer be
something to fall back on, that goes for carwashes as well. As we all know, you have
your good days and your bad days. They always even out to a decent monthly salary. If
you do it this way you will not have that blanket to fall back on anymore. So when its
raining or snowing and you no longer get paid, we all know that we are working these
jobs part-time so there are no benefits to fall back on. How will raising minimum wage
eliminate sexual harassment? There is more sexual harassment in higher wage jobs than
in a restaurant as well as back of the house and front of the house. I’m not sure why this
is even an issue. There are just as many male employees as women. I don’t know why
this became a women’s rights movement. It doesn’t make sense. I also know that nail
salons and carwashes are paid differently and they should confront the labor laws and not
our wages.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Joane Castanares followed by Cristina Cerone.

Female: Okay after Cristina we’re going to have Zechariah Choi, Lucia Erwin, William
Ippolito, Angela Collazo and Michael McElwee.

Joane Castanares: Good evening, my name is Joane Castanares, I’'m a waitress who
supports the tip credit. | have been working in restaurants and hospitality on and off for
20 years while going to school and maintaining a flexible schedule. The American dream
is about self-reliance, hard work, making an honest living and ultimately self-
actualization. This is what waitressing at Applebee’s has allowed me to do. I started off
after high school, the flexible schedule allowed me to pursue my Masters, support my
family. | have the freedom and autonomy and flexibility that | need. Although this
proposal may be rooted in good intentions, | feel it would categorically destroy our
standard of living by limiting or destroying our jobs. | feel that passing this proposal
would actually make our tips go away. Taking away our tips would essentially crush a
class of people who are working hard to make it in New York. My job as a waitress has
enabled me the freedom to actualize my goals. We servers, bartenders, hosts, represent a
cross section of people. I have paid tuition, made car payments, I’m raising a family.
I’m a mother with 2 young children, buying formula and diapers. | do have another job
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but I work at Applebee’s to supplement my salary as a teacher. Ultimately, we restaurant
employees contribute to the economy, pay taxes, vote and | feel that this law would take
away my livelihood. Please consider the people you would be affecting. We are a
working class. We deserve to be able to make an honest living. We feel that by raising
the minimum wage in the restaurant business our tips will be taken away. | am not
protesting a fair wage, I’'m protecting the possible loss of jobs or tips. I do not want to be
reduced to being an hourly employee. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Cristina Cerone. Cristina Cerone. Zechariah Choi. Lucia
Erwin. Lucia is followed by William Ippolito.

Lucia Erwin: Good afternoon, my name is Lucia Erwin. | currently serve tables at the
O’Brien Inn in Saratoga Springs. I love my job. Everyday at work you meet and interact
with so many new people and personalities. I’ve worked in retain, insurance and various
other fields before joining the service industry. At my previous jobs | always felt
overworked and underpaid. When I moved into service | saw how much money there
was to be made if you really put in the work. | applied to the O’Brien Inn for hostessing
and busing positions where 1 worked for over a year and a half. Hostessing and busing
allowed me to learn the ins and outs of the restaurant industry. Learning about all of the
moving parts in the restaurant gave me the advantage when | wanted to start serving. |
love my job and I wouldn’t be the server I am today if it weren’t for those stepping-
stones. In fact learning every different role lends itself so many different ways to the
strengths that you accumulate over time. That is my particular, why my particular
employer assists on a day of expediting a thorough tour through the prep kitchen and a
temporary pit stop in hostessing before you even get to train as a wait staff. My boss
isn’t trying to waste our time, he’s trying to impart on us the idea that every cog in the
machine is important. Every role deserves respect, and every single employee is
important. This is why | am here today. If the tip credit is eliminated those jobs, those
important roles will not be there. Not only did my former positions help me to become a
stronger server, but these are positions. These are jobs that pay for my co-workers
college classes, my colleague’s kids to have a good Christmas and my friend’s dream
home. On top of this, without support staff service will suffer. I can’t bring your hot
food out to your table while its still hot if I'm washing dishes or seating another party.
You won’t have to worry about tipping but you sure will miss it. ROC wants you to
think that we live in poverty and Hollywood wants you to think that we are in consistent
danger of being assaulted. Governor Cuomo wants you to believe that we want to go to a
no tipping system. I’m here to tell you that none of this is true. Since I became a server,
I have paid off numerous credit card debt that | accumulated when | was younger and
first got credit cards. | have been able to pay every single month for my car payment, car
insurance, rent, utilities, groceries, college bills and on top of that I am starting my future
in getting a college degree and have not gotten a single debt from college yet. 1 am even
able to go out and leave a fat tip when | go to restaurants and have someone else serve
me. In all seriousness, serving has allowed me to plan for my future by going to college
and not being a server forever but its definitely helping. Please take this into
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consideration today and let it go on the record that | love my job, | absolutely love my
co-workers, I love my tips and I love giving my guests great service.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. William Ippolito. You’re William Ippolito. Okay.
And Angela Collazo next after William.

Michael: Hello my name is Michael, I'm a server at Applebee’s I’d like to thank the
Commissioner as well as the Department of Labor for giving us this time today. A lot of
issues and | guess arguments were brought about on the concerns of the minimum wage
being raised to the $15 and I feel that while listening to this side, there’s a lot of concern
on issues that | feel would benefit if we put more attention to. So instead of searching for
more pay across the board, I feel that if, I’'m sorry, I’'m a little nervous. So it’s the
subminimum wage hearing. I feel that we’ve heard a lot of testimonies today, the same
that we can hear a car alarm or an annoying buzzing sound and | feel that the same way
we hear those things we can tune them out and | feel if we start listening to the actual
issues and concerns of what is going on, on both sides of the arguments today and putting
more attention to solving those problems, we could move towards a solution that would
benefit both sides tonight. That’s all I want to say. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Angela Collazo followed by Michael McElwee.
Angela.

Female: | have Angela’s testimony she had to go to work. Hello and good afternoon, my
name is Angela Collazo I work for Miller’s Ale House in Staten Island. I was here today
to speak up for myself, my co-workers and any and all tipped service employees. We are
employees in the service industry. We work hard for our tips and we depend on our tips.
That is our income and believe me | pay plenty of tax on my income. | am a professional
server, it may not sound like a glorious job but it’s my job and I love it. I’ve been a
server for 17 years. I’ve raised my family of 6 on this job. Ibreak my butt for tips and
depend on those guest connections | make. Those are my guests that come into my
establishment and request to have me wait on them. any person who works off tips
knows how important these connections with our guests are. I’ve had guests come in and
won’t eat in our restaurant if [ can’t serve them or will wait 30 minutes to sit in my
section. That’s guest connection. This is something you won’t get from a kiosk ladies
and gentlemen. It’s already been proven that a family can’t live off of two minimum
wage jobs in New York. Why would you want to put so many families in the welfare
system and on unemployment. Servers like me who live close to surrounding state
borders will take the trip over the border to make their money. Real nice way of keeping
the money in New York. I’ll gladly travel 5 minutes over the bridge ride to New Jersey
to keep my tips. This will change the service industry for good. We don’t want this. The
restaurants will be forced to cut staff, owners will now have to pay full minimum wage
and many prices will skyrocket. I’m not a food runner, I’m a service professional, leave
my tips alone. If people aren’t making the same as other employees then step up your
game, get more experience or change jobs but for those of us who love and depend on
what we do and take pride in what we do, leave us alone. If someone isn’t make as much
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as other employees that’s not my fault. Why should my job be affected? Maybe they
need more training or to find a different profession. We employees who choose to work
off tips do it because we’re good at what we do and we have a passion for it. Ilove
meeting new people and making their dining experience a great one just like I’d like it
when I go out to eat. I enjoy making experience of someone’s birthday, graduation, any
occasion or just a simple dinner. 1 am a professional server. | can wait on anyone and
kill it, that’s why I do. Just like so many others. Leave our money alone, our tips are our
income and we put our blood and sweat and tears into our work. I work for Miller’s I'm
here to speak for my co-workers my managers, all tipped employees, but most
importantly my family. Don’t let this happen. It will change the service industry forever
and be detrimental to all families. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Okay Michael McElwee followed by Ahuradh
Magee. Michael McElwee. Followed by Ahuradh Magee and then Nancy Colle.

Sidney: Okay my name is Sidney, I’'m 22 years old I’ve worked for Miller’s Ale House
for almost 4 years. I started as a host and eventually worked my way up to a server. I'm
not sitting up here to throw a bunch of facts in your face; I’m here to tell you that all |
know is how to be a tipped employee. And as a tipped employee I’m scared. I’m sorry.
As minimum wage goes up so will our menu prices by at least 25%. I’'m scared I can’t
pay my rent every month. I’m scared I wont be able to afford my first car I just bought. |
come from a family of restaurant workers and managers and if they taught me anything
it’s that you work hard to get where you want. I love what I do. Anybody who knows
me can tell you that. | knew what | was getting into when | quit school to work full-time
and I’ve never looked back. I don’t only serve in my restaurant I also expo. Every
Saturday I work 6 hours sometimes 10 if I’'m scheduled to do a double and I make $14 an
hour. And even though its one day a week it still hurts my pockets. As far as being
sexually harassed I can tell you I don’t feed into it and my managers and co-workers
sitting behind me do not stand for it. I make the money I do because I’'m good at my job.
I work 5 to 6 nights a week and four of those shifts are closing where I’'m there until
almost 2:00 in the morning. But trust me when I say I’'m not complaining. It allows me
to make the tips I need for my own personal needs. I lost my dad when | was 9, my mom
was left with 4 kids by herself and she relied on her tips for us to get by. | lost my
stepdad in June. | have 5 brothers and sisters and my niece lives at home. My mom
needs help and the money | make allows me to do that for her. this job has pulled me out
of the dark. It allows me to pay for my speech therapy as well as my regular therapy
which is not cheap. I can’t speak for everyone but my managers at Miller’s go above and
beyond just to help their staff. | have seen managers take money from their own pockets
just to help a new server pay her rent. Please, we’re not asking for much, just for you to
fix something that’s not broken.

Commissioner Reardon: Ahuradh Magee, Ahuradh Magee, Nancy Colle, Larana Mejhi,
Raina Mendez, Nathan Berger, Blanca Villanueva, Peter Yu, Alecia Reynolds, Pathra
Chalada, Jordan Kline, Suzanne Snively. Andrew Grover, Danielle Palmonteri.
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Stephanie: So my name is Stephanie and I’'m 22 years old. I’ve been in the restaurant
industry since | was 15 years old which will be going on 7 years as being a server, a
hostess, I helped bartend, I’ve done just like everybody else here. I’ve taken part in
everything you could do in the restaurant besides cooking the food unless they need it.
Ever since | was 15 years old and | would start to work after school it would allow me to
give my parents the extra money that they wouldn’t have to worry about the phone bill or
paying for groceries or in case they weren’t able to work and didn’t have enough money
for a bill, I was able to give it to them. Now being a college student, | put myself through
college including my tuition, my textbooks and transporting myself to school that’s
$15,000 a year just in my schooling. On top of that I’m also able to help care for my
family because my father has just retired and my mother is almost at the age of
retirement. Being a server and being able to go to school full-time to give myself and my
family a better future so I don’t have to do this forever it enables me to help my parents
and taken a burden off of their shoulders that they don’t need to worry about extra money
or if I have enough money to support myself. On top of my parents | also take care of my
older brother who is special needs and my job also allows me to help pay his rent and to
help put food on his table and to take care of him. So I’'m sure I speak for myself and
everybody else here when we say that this isn’t a job that we’re forced to do. It’s a job
that we like to do and we love to do because it helps support our families and helps us
make other connections with people and to further ourselves and all of our connections.
Without service, if you raise minimum wage it will affect our jobs. we will not be able to
care for our families or plan for our futures or save money in case us or a loved one needs
it. If you do that and we have less servers and we go to the digital iPads like at Chili’s
and other restaurants have, then with that you’re putting people out of work and when
people go out, no one is going to want to pay $20 for a burger that they just paid $13 for.
So all we ask is that not to affect not only our lives but our futures and our family’s
futures. Thank you.

Commissioner Reardon: Frank Guziano. Okay.
Frank Guziano: How you doing? Alright so I’'m against the tip credit .
Commissioner Reardon: Can you speak into the mic?

Frank Guziano: We don’t need to get rid of it, we make enough money as is. the
minimum wage at $7.50 is more than enough. Some times they say more is less, less is
more type of deal. We’ll I’'m a server for 20 years and for 20 years, | can tell you that
I’ve always put food on my table, I’ve never had problems. I’ve always paid all my bills.
There’s been plenty of times where my friends have needed help and I went out of pocket
to turn around and do that. | had a friend who lost a job with an airline and for a while
there 1 was helping him and I actually got him a serving job at a restaurant over at Fire
Island. And these things are really, really important for us to make sure that we still have
our tips and make sure that we still have a good income. You know and if you get rid of
the tax credit for the whole tipping and everything, its going to hurt every industry. It’s
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going to go all the way down the line. Just like someone was saying before. It’s going to
hurt back of house. It’s going to hurt the deliveries, its going to hurt everybody. We
don’t need to do that. Have any of you worked in a restaurant before? Yeah you have.
And did you make good money?

Female: Yeah.
Frank Guziano: So why destroy that?

Commissioner Reardon: This is not about that, this is about the subminimum wage. It’s
not about the tip.

Frank Guziano: But it is by getting rid of the subminimum wage and getting up back
down to $15 an hour that’s going to hurt us. I mean you’re making over 100 grand a
year, do you want to go back down to you know 30 grand, 40 grand a year? Can you pay
your bills on that? You know I’m making a lot more than $15 an hour, I’'m making $25,
$30, $35 an hour and sometimes in the summer places | make even $40, $45 an hour.
Even higher on some of the private jobs. and the last thing you want to do is just turn
around and take that tip credit away from us and then we go down to $15 an hour. I don’t
want to take that table of 8, I’d rather take that table of 2 because its less aggravation.
You know by serving a table if you worked in a restaurant how aggravating it can be
when people are hungry. It’s not easy, its not easy to deal with people’s bullshit all day
long. So why should we turn around and be penalized and actually take a pay cut? And I
do feel bad for the people that were here that have really shitty employers; I’ve worked
for some of them. I’ve had enough that I turned around and walked away. I’ve gone to
the Board of Labor before and reported a person who turned around and was taking our
wages. He was literally paying us a shift pay of $3.00 a day, that’s BS. And it’s not fair
and its not right that we are going to get penalized for somebody’s crap. And we need to
turn around and focus on making their lives better and leaving us alone cause there’s no
reason to turn around and take the tip credit away and hurt everybody else. Because in
the long run when you guys come to dinner and you get crappy service cause nobody
cares anymore, not my problem anymore, it would be yours.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Carla Stool, Pam Winberry.

Pam Winberry: Let’s be honest, some people are lonely and go out to eat as a way out of
the house, to talk to somebody at a restaurant. Being a bartender | can tell you I have
regulars that come see me everyday and | know their lives and they know mine. Why
would they want to come to a restaurant and put in their own order on an iPad and not get
the good old customer service they once got? They might as well stay home. They come
to see me, us, let’s be honest, iPads and do your self-techniques will take over. What
person wants to go out and have to do that work and not be able to interact with society?
Talk to an iPad, what’s happening in this world? How about do you think your iPad is
going to ask you about your day? do you think it cares or do you think your local
bartender who you talked to every Thursday for the past 9 years cares? |, we care, |



Subminimum Wage Event Page 84 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

promise | care. and | know and | love my guests. But why would | want to care when
they don’t be able to show they care back with their generous tips. I mean I care but why
would I want to? This is what I do. I work for tips. Even if I don’t care, I pretend I care
for you, for your tips. 1 tell my friends I should be an actress because | have to put on an
act everyday for my guests. | could be having the worst day of my life and still have to
shut it off and act like I’'m happy so it doesn’t reflect on my tips. Bad attitude equals bad
tips, good attitude equals good tips. This is why your server is nice to you and happy to
serve you because we live off tips and we’re happy to do so because we get good tips.
We get more than minimum wage so again, I work hard for my tips. I’'m happy to go to
work to be your bartender. Its worked out for us for many years | promise. My mother
was a server, helped my dad pay the bills. She was in the same boat as me as a kid,
didn’t have an opportunity for college. Meanwhile, they didn’t have to pay for daycare.
She worked nights and she was able to stay home during the day and make my field trip
and be a PTA mom. Mine was the coolest. My dad worked days and came home and
took over when my mom went to work nights and made quick cash to make ends meet.
Guess what, her mother did the same. Come from a family of restaurant workers. This is
in my blood. Maine just voted to get the tip credit back because it was eliminated and
didn’t work out. But if we eliminate the tip credit, good-bye to all those things that we
take for granite that we have right now. Because we wouldn’t be able to afford those
things. So, please don’t make us move away. Please leave the tip credit alone. Please
leave our tips alone. | love my job, I love my customers and | love Long Island its my
home. Please don’t make me leave. Thank you for listening to my testimony.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Michael Madrigal. Nicole Duffey. Tegan
Dispensari, Nicholas Moon.

Nicholas Moon: My name is Nicholas Moon. I’ve been a server for the past 8 years with
4 years in the restaurant before that. I’ve worked both sides and made my choice to stay
in the front of the house knowing full well that the pay was subminimum wage
determinate upon my level of service. Knowing that, I’ve gone above and beyond to
make sure that I can provide the best service that my guests could possibly ask for. I’ve
taken the time out of my schedule to put myself through food and wine pairing classes,
classes on liquor and beer. Not only that I’ve taken the time to get with the chefs to learn
different cooking methods that I myself have brought home and taught myself to cook to
better explain the flavors of whatever dish the guests might be interested in. In doing
this, I’ve increased my own income significantly by landing a job in a much better
restaurant than | ever imagined working in with a better menu where | can better put
those skills to use. Putting these skills to use, I’ve been commended and rewarded on
several occasions for going above and beyond, but there’s no better reward than knowing
| have the best service | could allow my guests to have an amazing night out and to keep
them coming back for more. I’m not proud to say that an alcoholic but with the tip credit
in effect allowing me to learn larger tips based off the level of service I do offer, I’ve
been able to pay out of my own pocket to put myself through rehab programs that I’ve
needed to leave myself clean and sober today in front of you. While doing so this income
has left me able to pay the bills it takes to live on my own. Some of you may not know



Subminimum Wage Event Page 85 of 86
April 20, 2018
Farmingdale, New York

me but that food bill is not a small one. Not only that, but I’'m able to take multiple small
vacations throughout the course of the year. I don’t lack in any part of my life. This job
and this pay allows me to do exactly what it is | would like to do, when and where |
would like to do it. On top of that, I don’t drive because of the decisions I’ve made but
with my income | easily transport any and everywhere | need to go. | understand that the
elimination of the tip credit may not eliminate tipping initially but it will inevitably
diminish the way tipping is figured and it will eventually dwindle tipping to nothing. It
will make all the work that I’ve put into being the best server anyone could sit down with,
pointless. Why at that point would | go above and beyond to provide that same service
when the person at McDonald’s is making the same money frying chicken nuggets
quicker than a Pez dispense. | also acknowledge that this elimination of the tip credit will
eliminate positions that people like myself got their start at, being the buser, the host, the
hostess, the dishwasher, rippling even further into the kitchen, taking jobs from cooks and
prep cooks. This is inevitable, if this happens no restaurant can afford to increase their
menu prices at least 25% to cover those labor costs. Cuts will be made. Do those people
deserve to lose their jobs because you think we need a pay raise none of us are asking
for? I think not. I wouldn’t want to face any of those people losing their jobs after they
find out that they lost their jobs because people in the restaurant that already make the
most money supposedly don’t make enough. This increase will not be fair to me, to any
of your or any other people that we consider family in our restaurants that are being
forgotten during this movement. I’m here for me and I’'m here for all of you as well and
all of them as well. my message is clear, I’'m not a victim, my colleagues are not victims
and for no reason should I nor my colleagues be victimized for something we don’t want
nor need. | say save our industry and leave it alone.

Commissioner Reardon: Thank you. Jessica Diaz, Jessica Diaz.

Jessica Diaz: My name is Jessica Diaz, I’'m a 36 years old, I don’t have anything written
today because I drove down from Saratoga Springs this morning and I didn’t know I was
going to be able to talk to you today. I’'m excited I am because I’'m very passionate about
this. I’ve been in this industry since I was 16 busing, hostessing, the whole 9 yards and |
was able to travel from New York to California to Alaska and live in those other places
with the skill that’s transferrable state to state. I am college educated however I choose
this industry because it works for me. | have tried a couple of times to get out of the
industry and do a normal job or something like that. | cannot sit at a computer desk for
more than 10 minutes without like getting fidgety. This industry is good for people like
me; we like to talk, we like to socialize and interact with people. This is what makes me
feel good for me and my lifestyle. | am so happy with my life right now I never thought |
could like be this happy in my life and I am. | love my job. I work at a restaurant called
Long Fellows in Saratoga Springs and Steve Sullivan is the owner and he is a guy that
would give you the shirt off his back if you need it right now. | have never felt so
comfortable at my place of employment. And its not even about what you said the tip
credit, its not about the tips its about my job. It’s about what you’ve already heard earlier
about the trickle effect. My boss Sully won’t be able to pay for me anymore and what am
I going to do? Even though I’m college educated, this is what [ want to do and if my job
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gets cut, what am I going to do? I mean seriously, I’'m not going to be happy or fulfilled
or be able to take care of me and my dog. I love my dog she’s got treats and good food
and toys and like my rent’s paid and I have a great jeep and cool mud tires and | love my
life and I can afford my life and this is going to just like change my life as an individual
and its not about the tips its about my job. Will I have it or not? I mean this is what it’s
about. Its no like yeah | work hard for my money | work my tables, I give
my best service so | can get my best tips but its not just about the tips its about businesses
closing. It’s about unemployment. So am I supposed to go up on an unemployment line
because of this wage hiring whatever this is? Like I’m shaking, I’'m scared; my life is at
risk as we speak. I gave up a job shift tonight to be here because it’s important to me.
I’m losing money driving down here and hotels and food and everything else because it’s
important to me. It’s that important to me to give the last dollars I have so I can
hopefully have a job to make more money. I’m begging you please, what am I going to
do? Ilove my job. Please help me save my life.

Commissioner Reardon: Okay ladies and gentleman that’s the end of our testifiers, I
want to thank all of you today for coming. It has been a very long and very productive
day. Thank you for being here.



